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Everbright International

Corporate Profile

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is a
fast growing business conglomerate which has integrated
project investment, construction engineering, operation
management, technology development and equipment
manufacturing focusing on environmental protection and
alternative energy businesses. The business of the Group
is classified into environmental energy, environmental
water and alternative energy. Its projects mainly include
waste-to-energy, methane-to-energy, biomass power
generation, solar photovoltaic energy, industrial solid waste
and hazardous waste landfill, waste water treatment and
reusable water etc. These businesses are spreading in
Jiangsu, Shandong, Guangdong, Anhui, Zhejiang and
Hainan Provinces in the PRC and Germany.

With its highly trained and dedicated management team
as well as strong parental support from China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited, the Group is fully prepared to
further explore and develop the environmental protection
market and strives to obtain new environmental protection
projects, with the aim to become a leading player in the
environmental protection industry in the PRC.
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Anniversary

The 10™ ANNIVERSARY Of
Environmental Protection Business

Ten years is just a moment in history.
Everbright International has striven for eternity,
an eternal pledge to be the safeguard for
environmental protection.
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Financial Highlights
S 5 Bt O

2012 2011 Percentage
—E——F —E——F Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 Bkt
BT T B TIT b2
RESULTS E
Turnover from continuing BEKEER XS
operations 3,409,938 3,486,697 -2%
EBITDA on recurring basis* BAB - FHIE - ITEN
BT B 1,564,705 1,292,214 21%
Profit attributable to equity AR R FE (R &
shareholders 1,123,269 801,441 40%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) AREZELEHR(%) 15.45 13.90 1.55%
Basic earnings per share EREARRZF (BIL)
(HK cents) 20.65 21.86 36%
FINANCIAL POSITION B 5 AR
Total assets BERE 16,583,114 13,879,617 19%
Total liabilities BEEE 7,912,705 7,218,053 10%
Shareholders’ equity BRER A 25 8,349,759 6,190,024 35%
Net asset value per share A& R B %
attributable to equity BEFECEEIT)
shareholders (HK$) 2.068 1.684 23%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAEBLEE(%) 48 52 -4%
Current ratio (%) MENEL R (%) 164 138 26%

FRAE - BB WEREEABANSHEBAE  RHE -
FERBHAZANFERM o

# EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

FARAFEZSBITEERIECEETNRFE
B - T E KEH AR F B 301,885,000 7T
(ZZT——F : B%147,357,00070) REFEBHZEE
E5 1B 9,994,000 (=T ——F : &) °

* The amount for current year is stated excluding the EBITDA from
discontinued operation of HK$301,885,000 (2011: HK$147,357,000)
and impairment loss on available-for-sale securities of HK$9,994,000
(2011: Nil).
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Corporate Milestones
e PR T

e Entered into a concession agreement in respect of
the Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project

utafe A I "
kMG « Obtained a USD100 million of loan facility from
il . CARE Asian Development Bank and 6 other banks to
g support the development of waste-to-energy
projects

e Changzhou Equipment Manufacturing Project
obtained a subsidy of RMB9,700,000 from the
National Development and Reform Commission
(“NDRC”)

e Dehydration and incineration technology upgrade
in Jiangyin has passed inspection

s REMRNREBETHBEALLE S

o BLMBEBERITEARBTIRETERBEE SR
BRNIREEER

s BMNRBHERBEBFZERMUEZE S ([#K
ZD#HEEE ARKITOETT

o TSR RITERMBGETR B BB R

e Announced 2011 annual results, with profit
attributable to equity shareholders amounting to
HK$801,441,000

o NMHZE——FERFEE  HEREEERAF
B#801,441,0007T

e Entered into a concession agreement in respect
of the Pizhou Waste-to-energy Project

e Entered into an investment agreement in respect
of the Wujiang Waste-to-energy Project

e Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project obtained a
subsidy of RMB10,000,000 from the NDRC

e Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project achieved the
highest score in the Jiangsu Provincial Operation
Quality Assessment for waste-to-energy projects

. BEBMUREEEAFHEEHH

. BESTHREEEEREHY

« RILRFEEREEREUSHELS
ARH1,0008 7T

. WIHRHEERDTHALRE AR EBRE
THEREERSS




ERAZHE 5

e Convened 2012 annual general meeting of the
Company

o BITARNA _E—_—FERFAFAS

e Entered into a concession agreement in respect of
the Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project

e Disposed of interest in Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge
and became an integrated environmental
protection enterprise focusing on environmental
protection and alternative energy businesses

e The self-developed hydraulic mechanical grate
furnace passed the national assessment of
environmental protection technologies and has
reached the international standards

© BEEERUREEAAFHELHR

o WEUEM EHAREE - KRS BEMCREN
FeREB NG A ERREH

o SEFEOREMHRBNRERI IR RER -
B EIR S kR
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Corporate Milestones 48 3 K HE 2L

e \Won the tender of Sanya Waste-to-energy Project
e \Won the tender of Boluo Waste-to-energy Project
e Secured the Shouguang Waste-to-energy Project

o =GFHBBEATIR

o BELPHTEATIR
s HUEBANFEEIAA

Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, was honoured as the “2010-2011
Man of the Year in China’s Green Industry” by 8
PRC governmental departments and committees.
The Group was the first time being recognised
as a leading enterprise for the environmental
protection industry by the Central Government

TRAAERNFEEREHERRRREL SR
NEBEABE [2010- 2011 EFBEFEEAYE] -
AEEEREFRTERRITENRELE

Announced 2012 interim results, with profit
attributable to equity shareholders amounting to
HK$605,148,000

Secured Guanyun Hazardous Waste Landfill Project

Entered into a concession agreement in respect
of the Weifang Waste-to-energy Project

Re-selected as a constituent member of the Hang
Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
Series

AT -_FEPEBEE  FERREGLRT
75 #605,148,0007T

WS EEBEEEEE
BEAGNRETEEFTLEHE
BEANEEERHEZRSFEERBKNK
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Garnered the “China Green-Benefit Enterprise
Individual Award” in “The 2" International
Carbon-Value Awards” competition at the 5
(China) World Economic and Environmental
Conference, for demonstrating the greatest
potential value for low carbon development

Obtained loan facilities from the Asian
Development Bank again to support and develop
our agricultural and municipal waste-to-energy
projects

Won the “China Company Award” in the DHL/
SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2012

EERLEERRERRENE —fE [EERRS R 7R
o ESRASEERERENEEN [HEZMDE

X%
BEESIEMNFERTESNEEXFERERZEN
MEEYEERAR

=%~ 4DHL B E BN ESE R
e R [P BRI

e Selected as “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise
2012” by “Economic Digest” for the sixth
consecutive year

s BEFNFREIRE-BIRZ T _FFBH
aeflaE 3
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Chairman’s Statement
B X4

Carry forward
the spirit of

China Everbright

Strive to establish

a renowned
Environmental
Protection brand

28 53 6 KRS PP
B R

complex and turbulent, while market competition became

increasingly fierce. The Group tackled tough situations,
served the community and enhanced efficiency, delivering
fruitful results. During the year under review, the Group
ventured into the markets of Hainan and Zhejiang
Provinces, developed 9 major projects, established regional
management headquarters, formed the Changzhou
equipment manufacturing centre, successfully placed 350
million new shares of the Company which raised HK$1.24
billion, enhanced long-term financing cooperation with Asian
Development Bank (“ADB”) and successful registration of
“Clean Development Mechanism” with the United Nations.
Meanwhile, the transfer of Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge marked
the Group’s complete transformation into an environmental
protection enterprise.

I n 2012, the global economic environment was extremely

During the year under review, the Group continued its efforts
in energy conservation, emission reduction, and greatly
increased the production of green energy. As a result, the
Group was honoured with the “Outstanding China Enterprise
Award” and was re-selected as a constituent member of the
Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index Series
for two consecutive years, expanding its social impact and
earning acclaims in the market.

Up till now, the Group has secured 66 environmental protection
and alternative energy projects covering major cities and towns
in the eastern, central and southern parts of China. These
projects include waste-to-energy, water restoration, methane-
to-energy, photovoltaic energy, biomass power generation,
and so on, involving a total investment of RMB16.5 billion.
These have reinforced the Group’s leading position in the
industry.

RENYABREERAR « —E—_FEH
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During the year under review, profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$1,123,269,000,
approximately 40% higher than that of last year (2011:
HK$801,441,000). The result was mainly attributable to the
continuous rise in operating profit; the contribution of disposal
gain and net operating profit of Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge
Project amounting to HK$250 million and the improvement of
internal management that reduced operating costs.

In consideration of the satisfactory results and the healthy
financial position of the Group, the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) has proposed to pay the equity
shareholders of the Company a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share in 2012, the total dividends for the year are to be
HK®6.0 cents per share (2011: HK4.5 cents per share).

The green economy has become a global trend; in particular,
energy conservation and environmental protection are now
China’s national strategies. As such, the Group is presented
with rare development opportunities. The loan facilities from
ADB, the successful placement of shares and the disposal
of non-core business have all contributed to the Group’s
considerable enhancement in cash flow. China Everbright
Group, the parent company which is also a state-owned mega-
financial holdings group, has strengthened considerably as well.
With the internal and external advantages, we are confident of
our future development. The Group will continue to improve its
core environmental protection business, stay committed to R&D
and innovation, and consolidate its traditional market positioning
and develop areas of new strategic importance, so as to further
improve its operating efficiency.

| would like to express my sincere thanks to the management
and the staff of the Group, as well as extending my heartfelt
gratitude to all shareholders, fellow Board members,
Mainland and Hong Kong citizens, and our staff from various
departments. We will abide by our commitment and utilize
the advantages enjoyed by China Everbright Group, so as to
grasp market opportunities to generate better returns for our
shareholders, as well as assuming greater responsibility for
the community.

TANG SHUANGNING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2013
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

AT BCAR R

An enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth,
but also the Safeguard of Environmental
and Social Responsibility.

e RE YV E I E WSS E
o i 2 B B B AT AR I

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Operating Results

With continued weakness in the global economy and
unresolved global economic uncertainties such as the
European debt crisis and the U.S. financial cliff, major
countries worldwide are in need of stimulus to drive economic
growth and transformation. In such circumstances, active
development of the green economy has become a key growth
driver as the world faces the challenge of climate change.

In a bid to secure an advantageous position in the next
round of economic competition, China has endeavoured to
develop energy conservation and environmental protection
industry. In 2012, the State ranked energy conservation and
environmental protection first among the seven “Strategic
Emerging Industries” under its “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”. NDRC
has also refined the waste-to-energy tariff policy and provided
concrete support to the environmental protection industry
through special subsidies. In addition, social aspiration for
environmental protection is ever increasing. All these bring
huge development opportunities and challenges to the Group.

2012 was a year of reorganisation and also a fruitful year for
the Group. During the year, under favourable national policy,
the Group was able to achieve breakthroughs in market
expansion, internal management, technology research and
development, design and technology optimisation, fund
raising and financing, extension in industry chain and transfer
of non-core business, with its upheld objective of “Creating
a new horizon of steady and sustainable development by
drastic reorganisation” and guiding operating philosophies of

XBOEERSE
S

REBERFERS  BESRLAXEVREES
AELEMRBERER TRARZNDARSG R MR
R R 2R ERSREE(CHOE - BiR
ERGEKFERR/RIERRMALEBEER NS
MWEESIZE-

RTEF " HBEBERFHEBERBALE - PEH
BANERAERRER - —T——-F  BHE
AEERFRIB [+« AR | EXAFEREXZ
B ERBENZEURBEENEREER - LB
HPREFEEGIHRRITENER  NE4E
HIRERNBLTEIRR @ KAKETRERMNE
RE P -

T _FRAKREXRTARREN—F - B2
WELEREN—F - AFE  AKHEEEMN
[RTIEFRE  REARSERRERNBHH ]
MBER BEIHE B BE - 20K
EET EAMFNBEEK  EMEHERE - ARE
2 R TEE(  BEES  EXLTM
NREZFTEERHEZ T HBIUSRE - BiB%H



“Integrity, Efficiency, Pragmatism and Innovation”. Through
developments, the Group accommodates well to the more
complex and intense market competition, and manages to
reach a new horizon.

During the year under review, the Group achieved growth
in scale and effectiveness together. Through reorganisation
in market expansion, concentrating resources on key
areas and key projects, the Group succeeded in securing
8 waste-to-energy projects and a hazardous waste landfill
project that are designed with an annual household waste
processing capacity of approximately 2,957,000 tonnes
and hazardous waste landfill capacity of approximately
20,000 mé. The facilities commanded a total investment of
approximately RMB4.7 billion, the biggest over the years and
allowed business operations of the Group to extend further
to Zhejiang and Hainan Provinces from Jiangsu, Shandong,
Anhui and Guangdong Provinces. This has not only expanded
the Group’s market presence across the country, but also
laid a solid foundation for its next round of development.
At the same time, through continued reorganisation and
optimising production and construction processes, the
Group endeavoured to improve its overall effectiveness and
successfully achieved the profit attributable to shareholders for
the year exceeding HK$1 billion for the first time. With a batch
of projects completed and commenced commercial operation
in the past two years, our construction business gradually
enters into a period of consolidation, whilst the newly secured
projects are still in preparatory stage. The Group will constantly
learn from experiences so as to prepare adequately for the next
round of busy construction. It is expected that the new projects
will contribute more revenue to the Group following kicking-off
of construction and commencement of operation of projects.

Through reorganisation, the Group aims to seek a new
business direction, to promote growth, and to inject
vitality for new developments of the Group. In 2012,
Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Limited was
established in Shenzhen as the mainland management
centre, which integrated seamlessly processes of project
construction, operation, research and development and
equipment manufacturing, and strengthened management
of environmental protection business in the mainland
China. Entering this new stage of development, the Group
does not only focus on quantitative growth and external
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expansion, but also integrate speed, quality and effectiveness
in its development, aiming to achieve growth in scale and
effectiveness together, as well as sustainable development of
the enterprise, the society and the environment.

During the year under review, the Group had successfully
disposed of the Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge, its only non-
core business. This does not only enable us to recover the
investment amount earlier than scheduled and record a net
gain on disposal of approximately HK$209,768,000, but
also completely transform the Group towards environmental
protection businesses and facilitate the Group to focus its
resources in developing environmental protection businesses.

At the same time, completion of the equipment manufacturing
centre in Changzhou (“Equipment Centre”) has facilitated
development of a new business sector, as the manufacturing
of equipment promoted further project development and
technological research, allowing the Group to achieve its
developmental strategy to extend its supply chain from
downstream to mid and upstream.

In order to ensure sustainable development of the Group in
the face of volatility in the international capital markets, the
Group entered into a loan facility agreement with the ADB and
6 other banks in the beginning of 2012, securing a US$100
million B loan. In November 2012, the Group secured another
two loan facilities from ADB: a US$100 million A loan and
a US$100 million B loan to support agricultural waste and
waste-to-energy projects, further enhancing the financial
strength of the Group. In addition, the Company raised about
HK$1,237,100,000 in August 2012 through the placement of
350 million shares of the Company, which provided adequate
working capital and broadened our shareholder base and
equity base. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had cash
on hand of HK$2,796,509,000, and maintained a reasonable
gearing level and healthy financial position. The Group has
steadily achieved new milestones in business development
and further enhanced its competitive strength.
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The Group has continued maintaining its leading position
in the industry in terms of investment scale, quality and
return. In 2012, the Group was re-selected as a constituent
member of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index Series for two consecutive years.
This reaffirmed the Group’s reputation for outstanding
performance in corporate sustainable development, which
includes environmental protection, social responsibility and
corporate governance.

The Group was named the leading enterprise of China’s
environmental protection industry during the ceremony of
“2010-2011’s Man’s of the Year in China’s Green Industry”
in June 2012 which was organised by 8 PRC governmental
departments and committees, most notably the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of China. Meanwhile, the Group’s
dedicated efforts in the environmental protection business
have been widely acknowledged and praised by the country
and the community. During the year under review, the Group
won the “China Company Award” at the “DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2012”, was selected as a “Hong
Kong Outstanding Enterprise” at the “Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprise Awards”, and was granted the “China Green-Benefit
Enterprise Individual Award” at “The 2nd International Carbon-
Value Awards”.

The Group is actively involved in carbon emissions trading.
Following the Dangshan Biomass Power Generation Project
(“Dangshan Project”) last year, the Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy
Project (“Zhenjiang Project”) and Sugian Waste-to-energy
Project (“Sugian Project”) have also been successfully registered
in the United Nations’ Clean Development Mechanism.

The Group actively applied for government subsidy and tax
benefit for environmental protection industry. The Group has
received government subsidies, value-added tax refund and
profit tax refund of RMB39,772,000, RMB46,092,000 and
RMB17,573,000 respectively during the year under review.
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In 2012, the Group’s consolidated turnover from continuing
operations amounted to HK$3,409,938,000, a decrease
of 2% from HK$3,486,697,000 of 2011. The EBITDA on
recurring basis amounted to HK$1,564,705,000, a rise of
21% from HK$1,292,214,000 of last year. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company for the year of 2012
was HK$1,123,269,000, 40% more than the HK$801,441,000
of 2011. Basic earnings per share were HK29.65 cents,
HK7.79 cents more than the HK21.86 cents in the previous year.

The Group remained dedicated to enhancing value for its
shareholders. To reward shareholders for their support and
considering the Group’s need to achieve long term continuous
development, the Board of the Company has proposed to pay
a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share to shareholders of the
Company. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share already paid, the total dividends for the year are to be
HK®6.0 cents per share (2011: HK4.5 cents per share).

Environmental Protection

and Alternative Energy Businesses

To keep pace with the rapid development of environmental
protection and alternative energy industries, the Group actively
explores business opportunities in domestic and overseas
markets. Up to the end of 2012, the Group has secured 66
environmental protection and alternative energy projects with a
total investment of approximately RMB16.492 billion. Of these
projects, those with completed construction accounted for a
total investment of approximately RMB8.14 billion, while those
currently under construction accounted for a total investment
of about RMB2.876 billion. The estimated total investment
of projects still in the preparatory stage was approximately
RMB5.476 billion (amounted to RMB4.176 billion after
excluding the investment of the biomass power generation
projects of which construction has been postponed).

During the year under review, the turnover from environmental
protection and alternative energy business sectors amounted
to HK$3,409,484,000 in which the construction service
revenue decreased by 24% to HK$1,601,950,000 and
the operation service revenue was increased by 44% to
HK$1,212,540,000 as compared with 2011. The proportion of
the revenue is as follows: construction service revenue 47%,
operation service revenue 36% and finance income 17%.
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Major financial data of the environmental protection and alternative
energy businesses in 2012 is summarised in the table below:

—E-—FIRRKFRE
R

RER 2 T BB BIE

2012 2011
_T-CF _T—fF
Environmental ~ Environmental Alternative Environmental ~ Environmental Alternative
Energy Water Energy Energy Water Energy
PfOJeC Projects Projects Total Projects Projects Projects
RRABER  MaRER At RER  RIRKEER  HRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover EXB
- Construction - Bt
services 932,978 530,231 138,741 1,601,950 1,536,109 128,876 453,626 2,118,611
- Operation services - B2 453,654 502,789 256,097 1,212,540 347,148 431,275 61,743 840,166
- Finance income - BB 355,266 234,422 5,306 594,994 217,609 244,354 4,653 526,616
1,741,898 1,267,442 400,144 3,409,484 2,160,866 804,505 520,022 3,485,393
EBITDA RHE - BE-
ek
BHABT 996,743 442,860 205,157 1,644,760 820,373 440,454 98,752 1,359,579

In its energy conservation and emission reduction
operations, the Group processed household and industrial
waste of 3,711,000 tonnes and 45,000 m?® respectively,
agricultural waste of 429,000 tonnes and generated green
electricity of 1,307,547,000 kWh during the year under
review. This output can support the annual electricity
consumption of 1,090,000 households and is equivalent
to saving consumption of standard coal of 523,000 tonnes
and reducing carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions by 1,285,000
tonnes. Meanwhile, the Group treated waste water of
508,822,000 m® and leachate of 757,000 m? from waste-
to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 192,000
tonnes. Since the Group’s first environmental protection
project commenced operation in 2005, the Group has
processed an accumulated household and industrial
waste of 11,445,000 tonnes and 176,000 m?® respectively,
agricultural waste of 516,000 tonnes and generated green
electricity of 3,625,280,000 kWh, which can fulfill the annual
electricity consumption of 3,021,000 households and
save the equivalent of standard coal of 1,450,000 tonnes,
reducing CO, emissions by 3,232,000 tonnes and preventing
the cutting of 471,000,000 trees. The Group has treated an
accumulated waste water of 2,653,109,000 m?® and leachate
of 1,720,000 m® from waste-to-energy power plants and
reduced COD emissions by 1,030,000 tonnes.

ERREREAE  AEBRBBEFEAND BE
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K BEREEYA429,000F - REFEE
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b %% $F 11,285,000 : Bz 32 )5 7K 508,822,000
S OR R B B A2 B R 757,0003 F5 K ¢
CODR HE192,000MF - B —ZEZT A F EH{HRRIE
BiEITLAR » BEH5 Al B IR A& b 3] N B B BE
= ) 11,445,0008 & 176,000 3. 75 K © B EEE
£ ¥)516,00018 - 32 H 4% 8 E 17 3,625,280,000
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Environmental Energy
IRTREEIR

A total of 20 waste-to-energy projects, 4 industrial solid waste and
hazardous waste landfill projects with a total investment of approximately
RMB9.961 billion. The projects are designed with annual household waste
processing capacity of approximately 6,807,000 tonnes which can in turn
produce on-grid electricity of approximately 1,989,000,000 kWh annually.
The annual industrial solid waste and hazardous waste landfill capacity is
approximately 115,000 ms3.

HE20MENRBEEEE M4BT XEEEYMERYIERIER @+ BIKRELHA
R¥Q99.611ETT - BRETRERAFRIE A )G 46,807,000 « F FEES
#31,989,000,000 F FLBF « F T XEBEREY M EREEEYIEIE S 4)115,0003Z
kK o
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 20 waste-to-
energy projects and 4 industrial solid waste and hazardous
waste landfill projects that commanded a total investment
of approximately RMB9.961 billion. The projects are
designed with annual household waste processing
capacity of approximately 6,807,000 tonnes which can
generate on-grid electricity of approximately 1.989 billion
kWh annually. The annual capacity of the industrial solid
waste and hazardous waste landfill is approximately
115,000 m?.

The Group constantly learns from experiences, equips
itself adequately, has an insight into the market,
concentrates resources and makes every effort to develop
the environmental energy sector. In January 2012, the
Group had successfully secured the waste-to-energy
project in Nanjing of Jiangsu Province, which was our
first new waste-to-energy project since promulgation of
the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, and laid a good foundation
for fruitful market expansion during the year. The Group
implemented the strategic plan successfully and secured
further new waste-to-energy projects in Ningbo of Zhejiang
Province, Wujiang and Pizhou of Jiangsu Province,
Sanya of Hainan Province, Weifang and Shouguang of
Shandong Province and Boluo of Guangdong Province,
and a hazardous waste landfill project in Guanyun County
of Jiangsu Province during the year under review. The 8
new waste-to-energy projects add a total designed daily
household waste processing capacity of 8,100 tonnes
(10,950 tonnes if including phase Il projects which have
not been activated yet), enhancing greatly the scale of
our waste-to-energy business which facilitate the Group
becoming the largest investor, contractor and operation
service provider in the waste-to-energy industry in China.
Acquisitions of new projects further consolidate the
Group’s strategic advantage in Jiangsu Province and
Shandong Province, and extend our coverage to Zhejiang
and Hainan markets.

Our success in market expansion is attributable
substantially to stable running of the operating
projects which meets the emissions standards. During
the year under review, operational efficiency of the
environmental energy sector was enhanced through
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optimisation in the accountability system in production
technology, operational management, environmental
protection, resources planning, leachate treatment and
implementation of the “chief” system. Also, exterior
landscaping of the operating projects enable them to
look more harmonious with the surrounding environment.
During the year under review, the Group completed
upgrading its operating projects in accordance with
the Euro 2000 Standard (currently the most stringent
standard in the world) and has become the first enterprise
in China with gas emission of all operating waste-to-
energy projects complying with the Euro 2000 Standard,
ensuring and consolidating its leadership role in China. The
Group’s waste-to-energy projects in Zhenjiang and Sugian
have received special environmental subsidies totaling
RMB10 million and RMB4 million respectively for the year
of 2012 as approved by the NDRC.

In March 2012, the NDRC issued a “Notice in relation to
the optimisation of Waste-to-energy Power Tariff Policy”,
which set the benchmark power tariff for waste-to-energy
projects across the country at RMBO0.65/kWh, effective as
of 1 April 2012. All of the Group’s waste-to-energy projects
have benefited from this policy in that the new tariff is
RMBO0.02/kWh to RMBO0.15/kWh higher than what the
Group’s waste-to-energy projects received previously. The
increase in electricity tariff will have a favourable impact on
the Group’s long term development in the waste-to-energy
industry in China.

During the year under review, the Group’s environmental
energy projects processed a total household waste of
3,711,000 tonnes, solid waste of 45,000 m® and generated
a total on-grid electricity of 825,490,000 kWh, an increase
of 52%, a decrease of 2% and an increase of 49%
respectively as compared with 2011. The environmental
energy projects brought an EBITDA of HK$996,743,000,
an increase of 21% from last year. The growth in profit
was mainly attributable to the recognition of construction
service revenue and cost saving during the year as well
as the continual increase in total processing volume of the
operating projects which enhanced the operation service
revenue.
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Major operating and financial data of the environmental
energy sector in 2012 is summarised below:
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RBAMRAT) » —T— _FFR

T FERAREREB T EE L RN
BERMT

to the maintenance expenditure incurred during the year under

review.

H
HETIREMAX

Waste processing volume On-grid electricity EBITDA
(tonng) (HK$'000)
(18) ‘

Project 2012 2011 2012
JBH “2-C “2—C
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project EMuREEEE

(*Suzhou Project’) Phase |, | ([&MEE )4

and [l “ER=E 950000 950000  234794|  240713| 396895 186,525
Yixing Waste-to-energy Project EENREEER

("¥ixing Project’) @ ([B&ER ) 232000( 231,000 52,204 52,480 28,243 29,711
Jiangyin Waste-to-energy Project TRNFEEER

(“Jiangyin Project’) Phase | (NTRBA])-8

and [I® Jra:id 509,000 489,000 121,398 117,234 84,437 141,846
Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project ~ #MSTREEIER

(‘Changzhou Project’) ¥ ESEAD 383,000 372,000 84,858 81,599 47561 60,564
Jinan Waste-to-energy Project BEAREEER

(“Jinan Project’) ¥ (THRER ) 913,000 269,000 183,007 0,126 281413 193,074
Zhenjiang Project ETERS 462,000 131,000 106,640 20,885 110,374 74,045
Sugian Project® BEERE 253,000 - 36,569 - 2,111 91,838
Nanjing, Ningbo and Pizhou AR ERREN

Waste-to-energy Projects ™ WREEER - - - - 3,992 -
Other waste-to-energy projects in EERNTEE

preparatory stage B - - - - (1,709) (1,869)

3,711,000 2,442,000 825,490 558,037 933,983 775,734

Suzhou Solid Waste Landfil Project &M EEESEE —#R =

Phase | and Il, Sugjan Hazardous 5 EREEREEAR

Waste Landfll Project and Guanyun ~ EEEEESEE

Solid Waste Landfil Project (478 [EIBER 1)®

(collectively “Solid Waste (HX)

Projects’) () 45,000 46,000 - - 62,760 44,639

996,743 820,373
(1) The increase in profit of the Suzhou Project was mainly attributable (1) #INIEEBA A - FERARBIEEE AN
to the construction service revenue generated by the construction BEZHTRRER  SHEEERBUE -
of Suzhou Project Phase lll during the year under review.
(2) The drop in profit of the Yixing Project was mainly attributable 2 BB RFTHR  FERARBBEFERNET



(3) The decrease in profit of the Jiangyin Project was mainly
attributable to the recognition of construction service revenue
and construction cost saving on Phase Il project in 2011. During
the year under review, this project only recognised operation
service revenue.

(4) The drop in profit of the Changzhou Project was mainly
attributable to the maintenance expenditure incurred during the
year under review plus the provision of the development fund.

(5) The Jinan Project and Zhenjiang Project commenced commercial
operation in October 2011 and August 2011 respectively. During
the year under review, the projects contributed operation service
revenue and recognised construction cost saving.

(6) The Sugian Project completed construction in December 2011.
In the first half of 2012, the project has completed trial run
and commenced commercial operation. The waste processing
volume and operation efficiency is gradually increasing.

(7) The Nanjing Project, Ningbo Project and Pizhou Project
commenced construction in October 2012, November 2012 and
January 2013 respectively.

(8) The increase in profit of the Solid Waste Projects was mainly
attributable to the construction service revenue contributed
by the construction of the Sugian Hazardous Waste Landfill
Project during the year under review. This project has completed
construction in January 2013.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
INDUSTRIAL PARKS

The Group continues striving to promote environmental
protection. While designing and building an environmental
protection industrial park, the Group works closely
with the responsible local government authorities to
comprehensively plan the full utilisation of local resources
within the park, the sharing of infrastructure and optimising
available land resources. The objective of this exercise is to
achieve integration of the use of solid waste and enhanced
efficiency of energy conservation, to ultimately achieve
“nil discharge”. The Group currently has 7 environmental
protection industrial parks, including the industrial parks
in Suzhou, Changzhou, Sugian, Zhenjiang, Yixing and
Nanjing cities of Jiangsu Province and Weifang city of
Shandong Province.
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Environmental \Water
IRIRIK TS

A total of 18 waste water treatment projects and 4 reusable water
projects with a total investment of RMB3.139 billion. The projects are
designed with an annual capacity to treat waste water of approximately
657,000,000 m®, as well as to provide reusable water of 22,334,000
m?® annually. There are 2 water BT projects completed construction,
commanding a total investment of RMB447 million.

HE18E)5/KEIEIER M4EFKIER @ BIRELHARES1.39ETT - FI57K
B2 I € 49657,000,00037 ;5 K « FHLAK22,334,00032 5K o B ERTHK2E
IKFEBTIEE @ BIREARB44718TT -




China Everbright International Limited * Annual Report 2012

Chief Executive Officer’s Report « 178 A8 3k iz 5

3. ENVIRONMENTAL WATER

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s environmental
water sector had a total of 18 waste water treatment
projects and 4 reusable water projects, commanding a
total investment of RMB3.139 billion. The projects are
designed with an annual treatment capacity to treat waste
water of approximately 657,000,000 m® and provide
reusable water of 22,334,000 m® annually. Meanwhile,
there are 2 water BT projects completed construction,
commanding a total investment of RMB447 million.

The Group continued to further consolidate its
environmental water sector, stabilise operations and
strictly comply with discharge standards. The Group
conducted a series of adjustments and implemented
controls on water volume and water quality through
carefully evaluating project agreements, sewage
piping network deployment, factory arrangements and
complementary water charges, effectively lowering
operating costs and enhancing efficiency. During the year
under review, environmental water projects treated waste
water of 508,822,000 m?, an increase of 2% as compared
with last year. These operations brought an EBITDA of
HK$442,860,000, 1% more than in the previous year.

PRI RKERERAR « T ——FFR
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The Jiangyin Reusable Water Project Phase | is the
Group’s third reusable water project following projects
in Zibo and Jinan. It currently supplies reusable water
of 10,000 m® per day. The project underwent system
commissioning and trial operations starting in November
2012 and commenced commercial operation in January
2013. The commencement of the project’s commercial
operation signifies a successful extension of the Group’s
industry chain in the field of waste water treatment in
Jiangyin. It also marks the beginning of reusable water
utilisation in the development of municipal infrastructure
for the Jiangyin National Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, and is another great example of water recycling and
reutilisation by the Group.

During the year under review, the Group has established
cooperation between its environmental energy and
environmental water sectors, identifying a new method of
power generation in Jiangyin through the incineration of
dehydrated sludge. At present, the sludge generated from
Jiangyin waste water treatment plant is dehydrated and
transported to the Jiangyin waste-to-energy power plant
for incineration, thereby addressing not only the issue of
sludge disposal, but also generating green electricity.
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Major operating and financial data in the environmental

water sector in 2012 is summarised below:

Project
J5H

Qingdao Waste Water Treatment HEEKREIRAR

RBAMRAT) » —T— _FFR

Waste water
treatment volume

)
KREER
(THK)

2012
—E-—&

“E-CFERRABRBzETRELRN
BEART -

EBITDA

(HK$

(%

2012

'000)

RS BB TEREHAEN

i)

Project (*Qingdao Project’) (2D 43680000 | 70,358,000 34,429 44,616
Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project &85k 2118 B (B,
(Southern and Northern Plants EBNEHER)
and Hightech Zone Plant) (DERIER ))e
(“Zibo Projects”) @ 119,546,000 113,583,000 74,743 56,195
Jinan Waste Water Treatment Project B /5/K EHEIE B
(Plant 1,2, 3and 4) @ (- & =Bk
e 241,096,000 227,068,000 156,191 169,120
Boxing, Zhoucun and Ling County 188 « Bt RIE& 5K
Waste Water Treatment Projects © REERE 48,930,000 38,900,000 22,729 39,108
Jiangyin Waste Water IeskERER
Treatment Project (NIRBEKIEER])E
(“Jiangyin Waste Water Project”) @ 55,570,000 51,063,000 84,524 106,888
Xinyi BT Project and Xinyi Surface  #137BTIE B R &K
Water BT Project BTEA ([377BTHEE )Y
(*Xinyi BT Projects’) - . 34,160 20,144
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste BN EEN S kERER
Water Treatment Project ([E@mER])e
(“Nanyunhe Project’) - = 29,516 -
Jinan, Zibo and Jiangyin Reusable B - SEBRITEHK
Water Projects © EEERO - = 6,568 2,383
508,822,000 500,972,000 442,860 440,454




The decrease in profit of the Qingdao Project was mainly
attributable to the expansion of Haibohe Plant which affected
the waste water treatment volume as well as the increase in
operation and maintenance fee during the year under review.

The increase in profit of the Zibo Projects was mainly attributable
to the increase in the waste water treatment fee approved in
2011 and rise in waste water treatment volume which enhanced
overall operating efficiency.

The decrease in profits of the waste water projects was mainly
attributable to the recognition of construction cost saving on
the completion of final construction accounts in 2011. During
the year under review, the projects only recognised operation
Services revenue.

The increase in profit of the Xinyi BT Projects was mainly due
to the recognition of construction service revenue of the Xinyi
Surface Water BT Project during the year under review.

The Nanyunhe Project commenced construction in June 2012
and has met Grade 2 water discharge milestone in January 2013.

The Jinan and Zibo Reusable Water Projects commenced
operation in September 2011. During the year under review,
these projects generated operation service revenue. Jiangyin
Reusable Water Project also commenced commercial operation

in January 2013.
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Alternative Energy
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A total of 18 alternative energy projects, including 8 photovoltaic energy
projects, 6 biomass power generation projects, 2 methane-to-energy
projects and 2 waste water source heat pump projects with a total
investment of approximately RMB2.855 billion.

The total designed annual processing capacity of agricultural waste
is approximately 1,643,000 tonnes, generating on-grid electricity of
1,167,000,000 kWh annually.

HE18EFELRIER - BIESENKEEIRE - 6ELEWER ’V‘ﬁlﬁﬁ 2 {
BREEBIER R2ENSKRARIAR @ BIRENHARK28.55(8T
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4. ALTERNATIVE ENERGY

In recent years, energy consumption has been growing
with the continued development of the global economy and
the consumption of fossil fuels such as coal, oil and natural
gas etc. have increased as a result. To better position itself
to succeed in the next round of international competition,
the Group has focused strategically on environmental
protection and alternative energy businesses.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 18 alternative
energy projects, including 8 photovoltaic energy
projects, 6 biomass power generation projects, 2
methane-to-energy projects and 2 waste water source
heat pump projects. These projects commanded a total
investment of approximately RMB2.855 billion, were
designed with a total annual agricultural waste processing
capacity of approximately 1,643,000 tonnes, and have the
annual capacity to generate 1,167,000,000 kWh of on-grid
electricity.

During the year under review, the Group continued to
pay close attention to the national policies related to the
alternative energy industry. It was able to make timely
adjustments on a number of biomass power generation
projects under development which were affected by the
local economic situation and uncertain policies in the
first half of 2012, while reallocating the original project’s
funding to the biomass power generation projects for the
Group’s newly secured waste-to-energy projects. For the
Dangshan Project which is already in operation, the Group
has strengthened its management standard and enhanced
its biomass collection and storage system. The project’s
current operations are stable, at optimum efficiency
levels, and leading in various technical indicators among
comparable projects.
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In January 2013, the Group reactivated the Hanshan
Biomass Power Generation Project (“Hanshan Project”)
in Anhui after receiving the approval from the National
Energy Administration. The Hanshan Project will be
classified as part of a nationally approved plan and is able
to benefit from the unified national biomass feed-in tariff at
RMBO.75/kWh. This is the first green light for the biomass
power generation industry since the government tightened
management on biomass power generation project
construction in 2010. The total investment of phase | of
the project was RMB320 million and the designed annual
processing capacity is approximately 300,000 tonnes of
various types of agricultural waste. The Hanshan Project
is carrying out preliminary procedures and will commence
construction in 2013. The Group will enhance the facilities
of the Hanshan Project based on foundations established
through the Dangshan Project, constructing the Hanshan
Project as an industry benchmark.

During the year under review, the Group’s alternative
energy projects have provided a total on-grid electricity
of 269,363,000 kWh, and brought in an EBITDA of
HK$205,157,000, an increase of 108% as compared
with last year. The increase in profit was mainly due to
the completion of construction of 3 photovoltaic energy
projects which began operating at the end of 2011
which contributed to the increase in operation service
revenue for the year. In addition, the completion of the
final construction account of the Dangshan Project also
resulted in the recognition of construction cost saving.
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Major operating and financial data of the alternative energy TR CHEEHNEREB 2 EREL MK
sector in 2012 is summarised below: AR ¢
On-grid electricity EBITDA
(HK$000)
BRAIS -~ BE - EREHEAEF
(EBTIT)

Project
BHE
Dangshan Project BIBERN 221,940 42,738 113,073 72,603
Sugjian Photovoltaic Energy BBAREEES

Project ([BBIRER )R 7,256 2,221 17,716 4,428
Zhenjiang Photovoltaic Energy BIRREERR

Project @ (TEIHRRER )P 11,986 3,553 25,369 3,878
Changzhou Photovoltaic Energy EMKREEER

Project (TEMHRIEE )R 4,006 = 9,335 (603)
Suzhou Methane-to-energy BMNBREEER

Projects © ([BMARIER ) 17,251 23,634 5,951 9,538
Shenzhen and Huaining Photovoltaic &3 R EE X REEEE

Energy Projects (TRYIREERIAER ) 3,370 2,848 4,526 2,179
German Photovoltaic Energy EEXREEEE

Project (TEBIRRIER |)O 3,554 1,454 5,618 2,852
Zibo Waste Water Source MEARIER

Heat Pump Project — Rt

Phase | and I © (TEBazER])

(“Zibo Heat Pump Project”) - - 23,569 3,877

269,363 76,448 205,157 98,752




The Dangshan Project has started power generation in
September 2011. The increase in profit was mainly attributable to
the recognition of construction cost saving upon the completion
of final construction account during the year under review.

The Sugian Photovoltaic Energy Project Phase I, Zhenjiang
Photovoltaic Energy Project (Rooftop) and Changzhou
Photovoltaic Energy Project commenced operation in January
2012. These contributed to an increase in operation service
revenue during the year under review.

The decline in profit of the Suzhou Methane-to-energy Projects
was mainly attributable to the impact on the decrease in on-grid
electricity and revenue, which offset the recognition of VER
revenue.

The growth in profit of Shenzhen and Huaining Photovoltaic
Energy Projects was attributable to the increase in on-grid
electricity during the year under review.

The German Photovoltaic Energy Project started operation in
June 2011, and continued to bring a profit contribution to the
Group during the year under review.

The Zibo Heat Pump Project Phase Il completed construction in
December 2012. The increase in profit was mainly attributable to
the recognition of construction service revenue on Phase Il during
the year under review.
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Environmental
Protection Engineering

BRRIIE

During the year under review, 24 projects with a total investment of
RMB8.707 billion were under construction or in preparatory stage. During
the year, the construction of Sugian Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill
Project, Jiangyin Reusable Water Project, Zibo Heat Pump Project
Phase I, Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il and Equipment Centre
were completed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING
The Group has remained committed to its philosophy of
“Producing quality projects and building a brand” from its
method of management down to its execution of construction
work. In 2012, 24 projects with a total investment of RMB8.707
billion were under construction or in preparatory stage. During
the year, the construction of Sugian Hazardous Solid Waste
Landfill Project, Jiangyin Reusable Water Project, Zibo Heat
Pump Project Phase I, Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase
[l and Equipment Centre were completed. The Nanyunhe
Project Phase | had finished the Grade 2 water discharge
milestone. The Xinyi Surface Water Project had also completed
the construction of purification plant and pipeline and had
been partly transferred in January 2013. The total daily waste
processing capacity of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase
[, I'and lll has reached 3,550 tonnes after the commencement
of operation of Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase lll,
making it the largest waste-to-energy project in China. In
addition, the Group has secured a number of new projects,
of which 3 waste-to-energy projects in Nanjing, Ningbo and
Pizhou had begun construction in October 2012, November
2012 and January 2013 respectively. The other projects were
under schedule with the overall design, site preparation, key
equipment procurement, etc completed. With the continuous
development of new projects, the Group will experience an
important year for project construction in 2013. It is anticipated
that construction service revenue will continue to be the
Group’s main revenue source and growth driver.
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During the year under review, the Group utilised the
management experience accumulated through the
construction and management of environmental protection
engineering projects to establish a standardised engineering
management system. This system encompasses construction
standards, implementation rules and operations manuals. The
Group aims to standardise the management of engineering
projects to provide top engineering construction services and
enhance the overall efficiency of construction.
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Environmental
Protection Technology

IRAREHX

Everbright Environmental Protection Technological Development (Beijing)
Limited is the platform of technology transformation and technological
research and development of the Group for its development into a new
environmental protection enterprise.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION TECHNOLOGY
Science and technology is an advanced production force.
Development of science and technology is the driving power
and protective force behind the long-term development of an
enterprise. By upholding an operating philosophy of scientific
planning, meticulous organization, bold innovation and actively
executing plans in carrying out scientific work, the Group has
consistently increased its R&D investment and capability.
The Group has currently established a set of R&D systems
conducive to the healthy scientific development.

In the beginning of 2012, the Group established a priority in 8
fields for R&D, with budget more than RMB20 million in total.
On top of the subsidies of RMB10 million and RMB4 million for
the Zhenjiang Project and Sugian Project from the NDRC, the
Group’s Equipment Centre also secured a special subsidy of
RMB9.7 million from the PRC Central Government.

Furthermore, the Group’s self-developed hydraulic grate
furnace passed the environmental protection technology
assessment by the Chinese Society for Environmental
Sciences in May 2012. These self-developed furnace
combustion system and combustion control system have been
applied to the waste-to-energy projects in Jiangyin, Zhenjiang
and Sugian. The operating results have shown that the ignition
loss rate of slag was under 3%, attaining a very high burning
efficiency of 96% and a stable operating duration exceeding
8,000 hours per year. This accomplishment demonstrates that
the new grate furnace technology developed by the Group is
suitable for processing household waste in the PRC, and that
their production, installation, operation and investment have
reached international standards for similar technologies.
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In 2012, the Group restructured the organisation and
management of the R&D department. Specialised teams were
set up to focus on specific development. Incentive schemes
were also established for successful patent applications and
commercialisation of R&D. These initiatives are expected to
facilitate the development and the implementation of R&D
activities by the Group. In addition, the Group has revised a
series of policies including R&D Project Management Policy,
R&D Funds Management Policy, Technological Transformation
Project Management Policy, R&D Equipment Management
Policy, R&D Incentives Policy and Intellectual Property
Management Policy in order to enhance its management
standard in R&D.

During the year under review, 30 patents were filed by the
Group, of which 13 were invention patents and 17 were new
utility invention patents. The Group will continue to strengthen
its efforts in advancing R&D and expand investment in
specified technologies. The Group will continue to expand its
business scope and set a direction for continuing development
through the innovations of its strong R&D team.
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With the establishment of clear target and organisation structure, the
Group has established 5 key departments of Research and Development,
Production Management, Technology Management, Sale & Marketing and
Human Resources Management with high standard.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING

Environmental protection equipment manufacturing is a
new business sector for the Group. The Group’s production
base for environmental protection equipment is located in
Changzhou City of Jiangsu Province and has already started
production in July 2012. With the establishment of clear
target and organisation structure, the Group has established
5 key departments of Research and Development, Production
Management, Technology Management, Sale & Marketing
and Human Resources Management with high standard.
These will further facilitate the Group to extend its value
chain and increase its competitive advantage. Currently,
it mainly manufactures grate furnaces, sludge treatment
equipment and emission purification equipment for its waste-
to-energy projects. The grate furnaces and automatic control
systems for the new projects secured in 2012 were included
in its production plan. In addition, the development of
core waste-to-energy equipment is under planning, marking
a new milestone in the development of the Group’s mid and
upstream environmental protection markets.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

Toll Bridge

The Group’s only non-core project, the Fuzhou Qingzhou
Bridge, has generated valuable returns for the Group over
the past few years. However, to further optimise resource
allocation and focus capital on strengthening its core strength in
environmental protection businesses, the Group has disposed
of its 80% equity interest in the Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge and
the shareholder’s loan in May 2012 for a consideration of
approximately HK$657,629,000. The disposal was completed in
June 2012. During the year under review, the Fuzhou Qingzhou
Bridge brought the Group a net profit of HK$250,096,000,
which included a net gain on disposal of HK$209,768,000,
and a net operating profit of HK$40,328,000. This disposal
has strengthened the Group’s cash position and facilitated the
Group to expand and develop its core environmental protection
projects. Subsequent to the completion of the disposal, the
Group has become an integrated environmental protection
enterprise exclusively engaged in the environmental protection
and alternative energy businesses.

POST-RESULT EVENTS

The Group entered into a framework agreement with Rizhao City
of Shandong Province for a household waste-to-energy project
in January 2013, and has entered into a service concession
agreement for the Ninghai Waste-to-energy Project (“Ninghai
Project”) of Zhejiang Province. The Ninghai Project has a service
concession period (including the construction period) of 30
years. Its Phase | Project will have a daily waste processing
capacity of 700 tonnes and command a total investment of
RMB360 million. It is expected to process 256,000 tonnes of
waste annually, generating 90,000,000 kWh of electricity each
year.
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In January 2013, the Group has also signed an agreement
for the introduction of grate furnace technology from the
German-based Martin company (MARTIN GmbH fur Umwelt
— und Energietechnik). MARTIN GmbH is a European industry
leader in waste incineration technology. Its waste combustion
systems, widely used all over the world, feature complete
burnout of fly ash, bottom ash and flue gas, which can
improve combustion efficiency and reduce the manufacturing,
operating and maintenance costs. This technology from
MARTIN GmbH equips the Group with both self-developed
and imported grate furnace technology, effectively lowering
construction and operating costs of waste-to-energy projects
through the joint strength of both effective technologies.

The Group’s waste-to-energy project in Jinan City, the Jinan
Project, was awarded the nation’s highest honour for National
High Quality Projects in 2012-2013, the Luban Award. This
is the first waste-to-energy project recognised by the most
prominent construction and engineering award in the nation.
Besides, the Suzhou Project Phase | & Il were evaluated as the
national class AAA waste-to-energy plant in China by the State
Industrial and Information Bureau. The Group will continue to
complete every project according to the highest standards.
Furthermore, the Group will strive to construct each project as
a pioneer project in the industry regardless of the project scale
and investment size in order to strengthen the Group’s leading
position in the environmental protection industry.

Following the Zhenjiang Project, the Sugian Project was
also successfully registered in the United Nations as a Clean
Development Mechanism (CDM) project, and the CDM project
of Suzhou Project will be completed and publicly announced
on 1 March 2018.

PRI RKERERAR « T ——FFR

AEBE_ZT—=F5—-—AHEZESFT A7
(MARTIN GmbH fiir Umwelt — und Energietechnik)
BRETHRREBEERMSE R - BEFT A
Al RBUMRENSIR R E R M ER - ERiMA
BRAMERIK - ERMRERIZEREERER
BoemiRE T RERE - WHEET RE BT
THEZORA - EBR FSREZEMA - E51#
BESF T ARARME - AEBE&RKES B T
S EN BB - BIBREHE - KE—
FRBEENFEEHE TREBNESHR -

AEBEEERMEERRNNREEIEE —EE
HEAE T T —FETFHEERTE
BENGmE AHPEERIR[BHE] - ER-
Blb R EIRE R E I TIRER AL - A&
EEMREE— - —HITE B MEF B T
B ERBAAANRBEER ] - REEGEERS
THEBEEANN BEZD  HeBE—EEER
KEZENRETE  UEEAEEERRTE
HSEE AL o

HIFOTIRB R - BBEB N KINER S BEEM
BRERKYIEE  MEMEBEER _-ZT—=%F
ZA-BARKBEREREBIHEENAR




BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Starting from scratch after the Group’s transformation to
environmental protection business in 2003, the Group has
developed into a comprehensive and innovative enterprise in
environmental protection and alternative energy businesses
through a decade of exploration and campaigning.

Entering 2013, further changes in the industry are expected,
as the new blueprint formulated by the 18th CPC Congress
emphasized sustainable development and the reform and
innovation of development models with the goal of boosting
China’s economic development. Improving the environment,
reducing pollution and developing the environmental protection
industry will become a new focal point for growth, which will
bring new ideas, new direction and a new driving force for
green enterprises.

According to the “National Plan for Establishing Facilities for
Treatment of Urban Household Waste in a Non-Hazardous
Way under the 12th Five-Year Plan” issued in May 2012, the
daily waste processing capacity of waste-to-energy shall be
substantially increased from 89,625 tonnes at the end of 2010
to approximately 307,155 tonnes by the end of 2015 at an
annual compound growth rate of 28%. In expectation of the
great market potential underscored by favourable national
policies, the Group will endeavour to seize opportunities in the
environmental protection and alternative energy industries to
deliver stronger results for its shareholders.

Looking ahead, with stronger supporting policies from
the State, inspiration from the 18th CPC Congress, and
the continued comprehensive support from our parent
company, China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, we
are confident that we can realise the full potential of all the
exciting opportunities for future development. As an industry
leading player, the Group will act as a responsible enterprise
in advancing its business through unremitting efforts and
opportunities grasp.

While focusing on developing its core businesses of
environmental energy and environmental water, the Group
will continue to expand its alternative energy projects. It
will also capitalise on its strong innovation capabilities and
core competencies to develop its environmental protection
equipment manufacturing business. As such, the Group can
extend its reach across the industry chain, develop markets in
all economic regions and continue expanding its market share
through R&D and innovations.
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In addition, the Group will continue to develop its
environmental protection and alternative energy businesses
both domestically and overseas. On top of enhancing its
leading market presence and investment position in Yangtze
River Delta and Pearl River Delta, the Group will expand the
environmental protection and alternative energy businesses
at home and abroad, capitalising on its abundant experience
in domestic project operation and the successful photovoltaic
energy project in Germany, with the aim of contributing to a
solution for global environmental issues as well as laying a
foundation for sustainable development of the Group.

The Group believes that 2013 is a year of opportunities and
crises. While we embrace these opportunities, the Group
will respond to crises in a prompt and timely manner. Facing
continued turmoil in external economic environment and
a slowdown in China’s economy, the Group will closely
monitor changes in the global economic environment
and develop its business with a prudent and risk adverse
approach. Towards this end, the Group established the
invaluable corporate objectives of “Unify understanding,
Clarify objectives, Improve overall efficiency in all operations
and Develop steadily”, in addition to the operative values of
“Preparing for crisis in good times, Staying calm when faced
with challenges, Initiating timely and appropriate actions,
and Preparing for the next boom”. Through achieving these
objectives and fulfilling these values, the Group seeks
to enhance its internal risk management and corporate
governance, respond effectively to global economic crisis and
continue to maximize shareholder value.

Social responsibility is the main focus of the Group, and in
early 2012, the Group made 4 solemn pledges to society,
including no lay-offs, no salary cuts, increase in investment
in R&D and training and to solidify our foundation for stable
growth by improving our manpower and upgrading technology;
to create job opportunities for construction and operation of
projects; to adhere to our commitment to sharing the fruit of
our success with our shareholders; and finally, to continue
to develop environmental protection and alternative energy
businesses through carrying out our social responsibility, in an
effort to make greater contributions to economic growth and
environmental restoration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Position

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total assets
amounting to HK$16,583,114,000, with HK$8,349,759,000
worth of net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company, amounting to HK$2.068 per share, an increase of
23% as compared with HK$1.684 per share for the year 2011.
As at 31 December 2012, gearing ratio (total liabilities over
total assets) of the Group was 48%, 4 percentage points less
than the 52% as at the end of 2011.

Financial Resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and low costs
of funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally
generated cash flow and loan facilities from banks. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$2,796,509,000, representing an increase of
HK$896,540,000 as compared to HK$1,899,969,000 at the
end of 2011. The increase was mainly due to the placement of
shares of the Company and the disposal of the Group’s equity
interest in the Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge during the year under
review. Currently, most of the Group’s cash, approximately
HK$2,576,501,000, is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi.

Borrowings

The Group strives to increase its banking facilities to reserve
sufficient funds for the development of its environmental
protection business. During the year under review, the
Group has strengthened its co-operation with ADB and
has successfully obtained new loan facilities, which include
the loan facility signed in January 2012 with ADB and
6 commercial banks for the US$100 million B loan, and 2 loan
facilities signed with ADB in November for the US$100 million
A loan and US$100 million B loan. In addition, the Group has
also obtained multiple loan facilities from commercial banks,
which have comprehensively enhanced the Group’s financial
strength.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$6,004,351,000, representing an increase
of HK$733,970,000 as compared to HK$5,270,381,000 at
the end of 2011. The borrowings comprised secured bank
loans of HK$3,708,310,000 and unsecured bank loans of
HK$2,296,041,000. The borrowings are mainly denominated
in Renminbi, a portion of about 63%, and the remaining are
denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. All the
borrowings are at floating rates.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi. The Group mainly settles
business expenses in China with Hong Kong dollar remittance
and income in Renminbi. It has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against bank borrowings in Renminbi,
which are used mainly to meet capital requirements of its
business in China. The Group closely manages and monitors
foreign currency risks given the increased loan balances in
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, certain banking facilities of the
Group were secured by certain revenue and receivables
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages on fixed assets
and equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests
in subsidiaries pledged amounted to approximately
HK$7,684,579,000.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$470,034,000 outstanding in connection
with construction contracts.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had issued financial
guarantees to 7 wholly-owned subsidiaries and a non-wholly
owned subsidiary. The directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company as at year
end under the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn down
by the subsidiaries of HK$2,179,485,000.

Share Placement

On 28 August 2012, the Company’s substantial shareholder,
Guildford Limited (“Guildford”) entered into a placing and
subscription agreement with the placing agent, J.P. Morgan
Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited. Pursuant to which, the
Company placed 350,000,000 shares to the independent
investors at a placing price of HK$3.58 per share, and
Guildford subscribed to 350,000,000 shares of the Company
at the same price of HK$3.58 per share. On the day of the
agreement, the Company’s market value per share was
HK$3.89, and the net proceeds from the share placement
were approximately HK$1,237,100,000. The Group has been
using the net proceeds as its general working capital for the
development of its environmental protection business.
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Internal Management

The Group adheres diligently to the management principle
that focuses on “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management” and is committed to building
a comprehensive risk management culture. Strengthening
management and risk control have always been important
duties of a corporation during its operations and development.
With the efforts of the Risk Management Advisory Committee,
the Engineering Technical Management Committee and the
Budget Approval and Management Committee, the Group
formulated strict regulations on investment in, and construction
and operating of environmental protection projects. The
Group also held the Management Committee meeting on a
monthly basis to review all projects under construction and
operation. During the year under review, the Group continued
to conscientiously implement various management systems
and completed the “Contract Management Procedures”,
“Computerisation of Financial Management System”, “Internal
Audit and Rectification Management Procedures”, “Internal
Report Measures” to improve internal management. It also
conducted internal audits on 26 projects and completed
rectification on audit findings. The internal taxation research
team has updated the notice of preferential taxation,
summary of regulations and policies, and reiterated tax-
related workflows to enhance the understanding of preferential
taxation policies. The Group has also prepared the “Guide on
Application for Investment and Special Subsidy in the Central
Government Budget” to unify the reporting requirements and
processes so as to secure special subsidies from Central
Government.
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Human Resources

The Group highly values its human resources. It believes that
realising the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long
term growth, thus it puts great emphasis on staff training.
The Group has arranged a variety of training courses during
the year under review, highlighted by the Master Program |l
of Environmental Engineering of Tsinghua University and the
International CEO Course Il of Tsinghua University specifically
designed for enhancing the capabilities of the management
and specialized technical staff. To assist newcomers to
familiarise with and adapt to the corporate culture, the Group
has also organised a military outward bound training session
in Shenzhen, which was joined by a total of 147 staff. During
the year, the Group has arranged a variety of training courses,
including financial training, performance assessment, labour
law and corporate promotion courses in Beijing and Zhenjiang,
to enhance the professional knowledge of staff in finance,
human resources and corporate promotion departments of
the whole Group. The Group has also invited external lecturers
to conduct 4 video training sessions for the entire staff to
broaden their exposure to business. To enhance management,
technological standard and market expansion capabilities, the
Group has also arranged various delegations to visit overseas
countries. The Group has arranged a delegation comprising its
management and specialised technical staff to visit overseas
countries in order to conduct technical investigation and study
of the environmental protection industry, thus helping in the
design optimisation of its environmental protection projects
located in China.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately
1,650 employees in Hong Kong and China. Employees of
the Group are remunerated according to their qualifications,
experience, job nature, performance and with reference to
market conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance
bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such as medical
insurance and provident fund scheme to employees in Hong
Kong. According to the share option scheme approved by the
Company’s extraordinary general meeting on 26 May 2003,
at the discretion of the Board, share options may be granted
as performance incentives to any employees (including the
directors). During the year under review, no share option was
granted to any employee (including the directors).

FEXARBEEBRERAR « —F—

—EFFR

ANER

AEEREERANERER  RMeHESER
BEMENHEEREXHREZREREE - A
SE—[FTEETHE - REBEFER - A5H
BOSEUEY - HHEERBLRRMEHOE
Tt Bl IBERBIRBELMHER _—HIKIE
EAZERCEORHII=H | - /INRFE TH
BABMARRXE  RARINBITERAITHA
RIBFN - HK147A2 00 - BEFHE - ASER
REXEEETRAABNEEMDE - £ENIER

FEBTEM T 2R EMBE - ERER RS
ERBIIEEEE - REFEETRE - BF
SMNERERRMAETT IR 2 BRIALE I - RiBFTERE
BRUMIKEARTSMEED - ARIALASEEERE

KB 2SN RRE XM E RFH - A
EFTRETEL -

BHEANRFERE

R-T——%F
+=—A=+—8 -

AEBERERTPBHEEXEBAL1,66028T °

BEZHEMIREERF K8 THEHE X1
AEMISERNAEETE © B TERBIEALIN $’§
ETREEMENTEEREES - BREREERR

SREEETE o SN REBARBN-F 7_¢£
HZ T RNBETNBRRERIAS LHEE B E
e EXESERBEARLBERETEMAES
(BREFIERER NEBRFER - REEM
BE(BRES)VEXTRERE -



Corporate Governance

The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting the confidence of the shareholders of the Company.
It is crucial for the development of the Group’s business and
protection of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group upholds
the management principle of “People-oriented, pragmatism,
creativity and systematic management”, and through a set
of rules and regulations, has continuously strengthened
internal controls and risk management. Furthermore, by full
and timely public disclosure of information, the Group has
maintained transparency, accountability which also enhanced
its corporate values. The Board meets regularly and has
set up Board committees, namely Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Disclosure Committee and Management
Committee. For risk management, the Group has set up a
Risk Management Advisory Committee to monitor and assess
risk regularly, boost related management standards and
evaluate investment projects. Regarding technological risk
management, the Group has in place an Engineering Technical
Management Committee responsible for assessing the
technologies used in different investment projects. For financial
control, the Group insists on stringent budget management,
and has set up a Budget Approval Management Committee
that focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In addition,
the Group has also set up an Internal Audit Department to
perform internal audits to bolster the Group’s management
standard.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
has been duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provisions and most
of the recommended best practices of the Code (effective until
31 March 2012) and the CG Code (effective from 1 April 2012)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2012 except the following deviation.
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Two Independent Non-executive Directors had not attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 April
2012 due to oversea or other commitment. This constitutes
a deviation from the code provision of A.6.7 of the CG Code
which requires, inter alia, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors to attend general meetings.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5 executive
directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Xiaoping,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond and Mr.
Cai Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the duties
assigned by the Board as well as exercising the authority
and rights authorised by the Board. The general mandate in
relation to the Executive Committee in written form has been
established.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Selwyn
Mar (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing,
Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily responsible for
reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as discussing and reviewing the internal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the
website of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
KPMG, the Company’s auditors, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s
internal control and financial reporting matters, including
review of the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai
Haitao (Chairman), the independent non-executive director,
Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar and Mr. Li Kwok Sing,
Aubrey. It is primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on appointment of directors regarding the
qualification and competency of the candidates, so as to
ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the
website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held
a meeting and discussed and reviewed the re-designation
of Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip as an independent non-executive
director of the Company (Mr. Fan had abstained from
discussion and voting in this agenda) and the re-election of all
the retiring Directors at the forthcoming 2013 annual general
meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li
Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), the independent non-executive
director, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the Vice-chairman of the Board,
and 2 other independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Selwyn Mar and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, which are
disclosed on the website of the Company, set out the duties
of the Remuneration Committee, including to determine, with
delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages of the
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed performance
of executive directors and approved the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management.
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Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee was established on 13 December
2012 and currently comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman),
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Wang
Tianyi, the General Manager of the Company, Mr. Wong Kam
Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
the Chief Legal Officer and the Company Secretary of the
Company. The Board has delegated the day to day execution
of its continuous disclosure obligations to the Disclosure
Committee to ensure the compliance of the Company with its
disclosure obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure
Committee has been established in writing.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping
(Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
Mr. Wang Tianyi (Vice-chairman), the General Manager
of the Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
Mr. Hu Yanguo, Mr. Chen Tao, three Deputy General
Managers of the Company as well as the General Managers
of the Investment Development Department and Investment
Management Department and the responsible person
of the Legal Compliance Department. The Management
Committee is responsible for the daily business operation
management work, formulates and implements annual work
task and medium-term development plan of the Group. The
Management Committee is the decision-making body for
day-to-day business activities and makes collective decisions
on major matters relating to the Group’s daily business
operation, management and personnel etc. The general
mandate in relation to the Management Committee has been
established in writing.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Group has adopted the model code (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions of directors. Specific
enquiry has been made with all the directors, who confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Final Dividend

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HKS3.0
cents per share (2011: HK2.5 cents per share) to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, 9 May 2013. Subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the final dividend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, dividend warrants will
be dispatched to shareholders on or about Tuesday, 28 May
2013.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 23
April 2013 to Friday, 26 April 2013, both days inclusive, on
which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for attendance of annual general meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22 April
2013.

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 May
2013 to Thursday, 9 May 2013, both days inclusive, on which
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 May 2013.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the listed
securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CHEN XIAOPING
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2013

THRBE RS 57

H b & #

RHEA IR S
EZeF2RRERAKREFRIOBILN(ZE——
F:BR25BI) - BTFR=ZT—=FRANA
(2EM) BHIEARAIREEMZIRE  FFRE
EARAEEERFBTERS EHERBIRE - I
BEERN _ZT—=FFA-_+N\B(EH)EAH
i o

BLBFAH
RAABER_ZTE—=FOA=+=H(EH)
BE_Z—=ZFMA-_+~B(EHRH)(EEM
BEEEN)EEHIERBELFE - RItEE
N TERERDBEETLTFE - AFALERRE
BFERE2ER BREMER-ZT—=FWNA
“+-B(EH—) NFEE=1+558 - SFAS
PERE  ERAEEREXEARAZRNHBF &
CEEEEEEERAR MU ARBSETER
RBR-ZTN\FEEEPLZTNE -

ARABR-_E—Z=ZFRAtRH(EH I EE=
T——FRANA(EHM)(5aEMABEENRN)
TIERERRELFE - R B AT HERG
BEERLFE - BFAREREEREN ZRBIKRE
ZER  BRENER-_ZE—=FHANB(EH
—) TFNEE=1+58  BEBFEXRE @ EH
EERERERARBZBRNBPELREEEERE
BARAR Wit AEBETEFAER 1/
SRS GEER N N8 o

BEERBEAQF 2 LHES

REER  ARBIZEEFAMEITDRERED -
HESXBEEERARFZ EHESR

TN

TTIECABEL

BB E—=F-"A=-+N\H



I .ove
G REEN e e o | .0ve the Earth

I.ove the Planet
we live in
sk BE 2 W ER
RN R A




Sustainability Report
A EFEERHRE

With strong sense of social responsibility and mission, the Group has
been enthusiastically participating in social charitable activities, such as
energy conservation and emission reduction, environmental protection
education, donation and environmental greening during the process of
rapid development of its environmental protection business.
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The Group commenced its environmental protection business
in 2003, and has been taking advantage of the opportunities
arising from the PRC’s comprehensive implementation of
scientific development and emphasis on energy conservation
and emissions reduction, environmental protection as well
as building a community with ecological balance, from which
the Group will take the responsibility to create a beautiful
environment and benefit the general public while at the same
time commit to the eco-mission and pay back the society.
Under the strong support from our parent company, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited, the Group, after
years of “Exploration, Deployment and Development” and
with its quality professional management team working with
the philosophy of “Integrity, Efficiency, Pragmatism and
Innovation”, created a series of outstanding environmental
protection projects which are of first class quality, advanced
technology, high standard and outstanding efficiency,
therefore setting itself as a renowned brand that is highly
regarded by the peers.

While environmental protection is the key for creating a
balance ecosystem, it is also crucial for the sustainable
development of the state. The Group will continue to actively
look for new development opportunities, enhance its effort
in research and development of environmental protection
technology, encourage innovation and make more significant
advancements with its environmental protection business so
as to serve for the environmental protection of people and
the health of community, to which it is fulfilling the social
responsibility of an environmental protection guard.

We strive for maintaining a good relationship with our
stakeholders through open communication in various formal
and informal occasions. A genuine stakeholder engagement
can enhance stakeholder receptiveness and credibility of the
sustainability report, and also strengthen trust between the
Company and our stakeholders.

We identified five key stakeholder groups, namely employees,
government, business partners, investors, and suppliers for
stakeholder interviews in November and December 2012. All
participants were requested to answer a few questions relating
to the sustainability performance of the Company and their
expectations for our first sustainability report.
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INTEGRATING SUSTAINABILITY INTO

THE COMPANY’S OPERATION

As a listed company, we are not only pursuing the
maximization of the shareholders’ interest, but also committed
to protecting the environment and caring the community,
which adheres to our principle that “an enterprise is not only
the creator of wealth, but also the safeguard of environmental
& social responsibility”. Our daily operations face the following
key risks and challenges:

e  Keen competition in the markets

e Climate change

e  Global financial crisis

e  Stringent environmental laws and regulations

e Higher expectations from our stakeholders for our
sustainability performance

To tackle the above-mentioned risks and challenges, we have
adhered to sustainable practices in our daily operations.
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EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE

The air emission performance of our 7 waste-to-energy plants
in the past three years:

Emissions from Waste-to-energy Plants

Tonnes
T8
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500.00

-

2010

-l

2011

Total particulate matter (PM10) emissions of waste-to-energy
plants in 2012 were 79.48 tonnes in 2012, which is equivalent
to an increase of 6.78% as compared to 2011.

Total SO, emissions of waste-to-energy plants were 529.15
tonnes in 2012, which is equivalent to an increase of 111.8%
as compared to 2011.

Total NO, emissions of waste-to-energy plants were 2,096.67
tonnes in 2012, which is equivalent to an increase of 113.3%
as compared to 2011.

The increase of PM10, SO, and NO, emissions were mainly
related to the significant increase of electricity generation as
3 new Waste-to-energy plants in Jinan, Zhenjiang and Sugian
began their operation at the end of 2011.
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EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Emissions from Biomass Power Generation Plant

Tonnes
U
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Dangshan Biomass Power Generation Project commenced
its operation in September 2011. In 2012, the emissions of
PM10, SO, and NO, were 1,597.79 tonnes, 852.21 tonnes,
and 2,750.96 tonnes respectively.

As an environmental protection enterprise, reducing air
emissions is one of our key missions. We strive to adopt
high emission standard on our environmental protection
projects. Biomass power generation project meets the flue gas
emission limits as set under “Integrated Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants” (GB16297-1996) and “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants” (GB13223-2003 &
GB13223-2011). For the waste-to-energy projects, they meet
the flue gas emissions limits more stringent than “Standard for
Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration”
(GB18485-2001) and comparable to the performance
standards for emission established by the European Union
(Directive 2000/76/EC and relevant Annexes/Amendments)
except that the darkness of flue gas shall follow the national
requirement (GB18485-2001). To further improve our air
emission performance, an upgraded gas treatment system was
installed at Zhenjiang and Sugian waste-to-energy plants in
October and November in 2012 respectively.
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Government officials can monitor the air emissions data as our
gas emissions monitoring systems installed at each waste-
to-energy plant have been connected to the network of the
government’s environmental protection departments. In
order to improve our corporate image and build up the public
confidence in our operation, LED display screens have been
installed outside the plants to provide instant air emissions
data to the nearby public.

HEALTH & SAFETY

We place safety as one of our highest priorities. It is one of
our core values and encompasses all aspects of our business,
from generating safe and green energy, to ensuring the highest
safety standards in our workplace. We foster a culture that
promotes employees’ wellness and raises health and safety
awareness. Our operations are fully guided by internationally
recognized OHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-2001) Occupational
Health and Safety Management System.

Under our Safety Management Plan, each project company
compromises a senior management team member, who is
usually the general manager, overseeing all health and safety
issues to ensure strong commitment among our employees.
Supplement to meeting the requirements of OHSAS 18001
(GB/T28001-2001), our facilities adopted ADB’s Environmental
and Social Safeguards to guarantee safety is closely monitored
across all our operations.

We place equal importance on ensuring that all our business
partners operate under the same safety principles. We
continually assess our health and safety procedures and
have made the provision necessary for planning, organizing,
monitoring and reviewing health & safety precautions that
are required by national legislations to ensure high safety
performance of all parties.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

We encourage our staff to participate in various community
endeavors. We strive to develop friendly, long-term
relationships with the community by supporting and
facilitating in various initiatives while providing the platforms
for our employees to get involved. We encourage our
employees to give back to the society by volunteering their
time in the community.

A way to give back to the community is through quality
education and knowledge transfer. On a regularly basis,
our company invites members of the general public such
as students, government officials, investors, media, etc to
visit our project sites to educate them the process of waste
treatment and the importance of environmental protection.
The visits to our project sites allow the visitors to have a
hands-on experience in visualizing sustainability concept
in real life examples. A total of 30,682 people visited our
operating plants in 2012.

We strive to ensure a harmonious relationship with the
communities in which our facilities operate in. We believe that
the continuous engagement with our partnering communities
is an integral part of our business develop and growth.
Thus, we put great efforts to engage with the communities
through various events and activities. Various environmental
education campaigns were organized throughout the year
with the aim to raise awareness of the younger generation in
regards of environmental protection. In 2012, we successfully
implemented various initiatives and events such as writing
and speech competitions, and also helped raising public
awareness on environmental protection and promoting the
advanced environmental protection technology in various
events such as “Science and Technology Week”, “National
Science Day”, and “World Water Day”.

A full version of this report, both in English and Chinese
versions, will be available to download from the website of the
Company at http://www.ebchinaintl.com by April 2013.
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Corporate
Governance Report

GEEREE

Upholds the management principle of “People-oriented, pragmatism,
creativity and systematic management” and strives to enhance the
corporate governance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

e SRR

The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting the confidence of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). It is crucial for the development of
the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’
interests. The Group upholds the management principle of
“People-oriented, pragmatism, creativity and systematic
management”, and through a set of rules and regulations,
has continuously strengthened internal controls and risk
management. Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure
of information, the Group has maintained transparency,
accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The
Board meets regularly and has set up Board committees,
namely Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Disclosure Committee
and Management Committee. For risk management, the
Group has set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to
monitor and assess risk regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding
technological risk management, the Group has in place an
Engineering Technical Management Committee responsible
for assessing the technologies used in different investment
projects. For financial control, the Group insists on stringent
budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval
Management Committee that focuses on monitoring
construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an
Internal Audit Department to perform internal audits to bolster
the Group’s management standard.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
has been duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provisions and most
of the recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
CG Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2012
except the following deviation.

Two Independent Non-executive Directors had not attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 April
2012 due to oversea or other commitment. This constitutes
a deviation from the code provision of A.6.7 of the CG Code
which requires, inter alia, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors to attend general meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE IN RELATION BT EERNAS
TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55w
Composition and function AR RBE
The Board currently comprises 6 executive directors and 4 EES@HEBNUNTES MBI NTES
independent non-executive directors. #RK ©
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of RAMBEEAREBEABREZ ANEETSKE
the report are set out on page 112 of the annual report and E&HJIAERANE112H  MEBHNEESKE
currently are follows: R
Name of Directors Title ES4R Bz
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang Shuangning Chairman BEELLE E7:3
Mr. Zang Qiutao Vice-chairman OB £ I
Mr. Chen Xiaoping Chief Executive Officer PR/ T AR E
Mr. Wang Tianyi General Manager TRERE S
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond  Chief Financial Officer HiREa S A i sa Bs
Mr. Cai Shuguang Deputy General Manager EEE R E Bl
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHBTESF
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip* Independent Non-executive BBEAL BN IERITES
Director
Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive BRELE BYIERNTES
Director
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive TRESLE BYIERNTES
Director
Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent Non-executive BEELE BYIERTES
Director
Note: Bt

*  Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip has been re-designated as an independent * H®Z-ZZT——F+-H+=Hi Bl BEEERT
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 13 BARRNRZ BN IFRITES
December 2012.




THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Group’s affairs. The directors have disclosed to the Company
annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments. The Board believes that the balance between
executive directors and independent non-executive directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that
protect the interests of the Shareholders and the Group.

Non-executive directors provide the Group with diversified
experience and professionalism. Their advices and views as
well as participation in the Board and committee meetings
bring independent view, advice and judgment on issues
relating to the strategy and development, business operation
and performance, risk control, conflict of interest etc, to ensure
the Shareholders’ interests are taken into consideration.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of directors
as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and
notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which any
director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by separate individuals, with a view to maintain an
effective segregation of duties between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business and operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the
lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for approving
and supervising the overall strategy and policies of the Group,
approving annual budget and business plans, assessing
the Group’s performance and supervising the work of the
management. All directors have access to board papers and
related materials, and are provided with adequate information
on a timely manner. The directors of the Company may, if
necessary, seek legal or other independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)

In respect of regular board meetings and audit committee
meetings, the agenda is sent out to the directors at least
fourteen days before the meeting and the accompanying
papers are sent at least three days before the meeting for
information.

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties:

1.

2.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5 executive
directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Xiaoping,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond and
Mr. Cai Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the
duties assigned by the Board as well as exercising the
authority and rights authorized by the Board. The general
mandate in relation to the Executive Committee in written
form has been established.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee did
not convene any meetings.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. Selwyn Mar (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao,
is primarily responsible for reviewing the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial
reporting matters of the Group. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the
Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
has reviewed with the management and KPMG, the
Company’s auditors, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
Group’s internal control and financial reporting matters,
including review of the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2011 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2012.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)
3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai
Haitao (Chairman), the independent non-executive
director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer,
and 3 other independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar
and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. It is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on appointment
of directors regarding the qualification and competency of
the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair
and transparent. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and discussed and reviewed, inter alia,
the re-designation of Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip as an
independent non-executive director of the Company (Mr.
Fan had abstained from discussion and voting in this
agenda) and the re-election of all the retiring Directors at
the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), the independent
non-executive director, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the Vice-
chairman of the Board, and 2 other independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Selwyn
Mar and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which are disclosed on
the website of the Company, set out the duties of the
Remuneration Committee, including to determine, with
delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages of
the individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) Bx2(4E)
Composition and function (continued) HARBEE)

FHER = (&)

4. Remuneration Committee (continued) 4,

The remuneration of all the directors and their respective
interest in share options are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements and under the “share option scheme”
paragraph in the report of the directors of this Annual
Report.

BEFENHM M EREEDS D B TIERAF
BUBEHRRMFOREETERE [ BARER
gl l—BA-

Disclosure Committee 5 WEZAZ

The Disclosure Committee was established on ?ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ RZE—ZF+-A+=8
13 December 2012 and currently comprises Mr. Chen R BTRAER DT E(EEE
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the fﬁ?) CHRIBERFE A 97}7}%@ ﬁ*ﬁ*{ﬁ%%@
Company, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the T ARAREBRBERATWMEAN -
Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief EECeERERBEZECAERERBACT
Financial Officer of the Company, the Chief Legal Officer BB BT TIEARBRAA TL—H&E?E
and the Company Secretary of the Company. The Board F-HREESHREEENRERE

has delegated the day to day execution of its continuous

disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to

ensure the compliance of the Company with its disclosure

obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure

Committee has been established in writing.

During the year under review, the Disclosure Committee REBEERN  REZEGREEREE

did not convene any meetings.

Management Committee 6. EEZSE

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen ERLZEENKEBRBITHAR R/ N L
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the (BEER)  BEBITRELE KR
Company, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the EEMELLE  SURBIAKEEENREYE

Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Chen Tao, 3 Deputy General
Managers of the Company as well as the General
Managers of the Investment Development Department
and Investment Management Department and the
responsible person of the Legal Compliance Department.
The Management Committee is responsible for the
daily business operation management work, formulates
and implements annual work task and medium-term
development plan of the Group. The Management
Committee is the decision-making body for day-to-day
business activities and makes collective decisions on major
matters relating to the Group’s daily business operation,
management and personnel etc. The general mandate
in relation to the Management Committee has been
established in writing.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Role of the Board

The Board directs and approved the overall strategies of the
Group. It is the ultimate decision making body of the Company
except for matters requiring the Shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has delegated day-to-day business of the Group to
the management. All committees established under the Board
have their specific terms of reference clearly defining their
powers and responsibilities.

Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Training for directors

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation of
a director of a listed company. The Company continuously
updates directors the latest developments and changes to
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
and provides training to develop and refresh the directors’
knowledge and skills. With effect from 1 April 2012, the
Company provides directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.
Moreover, the Company provides directors with monthly
analysis report on the Company’s stock price performance and
monthly journal of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training that
have undertaken.

A seminar was organised for directors in December 2012
to update the requirements under the Securities and Future
Ordinance on disclosure of inside information and the
requirements under the Listing Rules on connected parties and
connected transactions. Individual director had also attended
seminars and/or conferences or workshops or forums
relevant to his profession and duties as directors. Moreover,
the Company had conducted a site visit for non-executive
directors on some of the projects of the Company in October
2012 so as to allow them to have a better understanding of the
Group’s business.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) Bx=2(4E)

Training for directors (continued) EEEZIE)

Below is a summary of the training the directors had received REFEEER @+ EEEIHNEIBELT ¢
during the year under review:

Type of trainings

Name of Directors % =k kit
Mr. Tang Shuangning BEELE B, C
Mr. Zang Qiutao B LA A, C,D
Mr. Li Xueming* FERS A N/A i@ A
Mr. Chen Xiaoping BR/NF S A B, C
Mr. Wang Tianyi FTRESSE A B,C
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =AML A A B,C
Mr. Cai Shuguang ERE A A B,C
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB AE A, C,D
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRELEE A, C,D
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEHELE A, C,D
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEELE A C

A: attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums A BEERE gF TIES W

B: giving talks at seminars/conferences B: RE#KE & &S

C: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the C: F‘ﬁ BEBALE RREBIESTHBEZ W

economy, environmental protection business or director’s - T R E AR
duties and responsibilities etc

D: attending site visits arranged by the Company D: 2EARNALTHNEISER

Notes: B 5E -

*  Mr. Li Xueming resigned as an executive director and Vice-chairman * RZZ——FMA-+HH  TERLEEBFHTR
of the Company on 25 April 2012. KRR ZHITESFRIERF -

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management %%&T—]*&‘“EE%@H
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by (Z T —_Ft+A=+—BLEFEaRER
band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below: &2 EHMARmT :

Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A & 4R Bl (B ¥ IT)

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000

1,000,0017c%1,500,0007T
1,500,0017c%£2,000,0007T
2,000,0017C%£2,500,0007T

— N W

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and *ET)%L%%EE'JW@“U6,,\5%%%%%%&35%

the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed #rf&E 8 #5E 2 — 515 %'J%b%ﬂﬁ”liﬁﬁw
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in  #9X&10 °

notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND EFEeNETECeRNENEEEN
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE RS

RATE OF DIRECTORS

The following shows the number of regular board meetings and TXRBEREDBEFEAARARAMBTHNEHREES
committee meetings held during the year under review as well RZEEe@e#H A NEEFERINLFE LY -

as the attendance rate of each director.

Attendance rate R E
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Management

Name of Directors Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
EENE BEEg TRLEY REEEE® FWEEg EREZEe
Mr. Tang Shuangning 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BEEEE TiE A NiE A iE A TEA
Mr. Zang Qiutao 5/5 N/A N/A 3/3 N/A
IR E TiEA TiE A T E A
Mr. Li Xueming' 2/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A
FERLEA e A e A iE A TiEm
Mr. Chen Xiaoping 5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A 10/12
PR/ S A4 TiEA TiEM
Mr. Wang Tianyi 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 12/12
FTRERE TiEA NiE A TiEmM
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 12/12
=i LA TiEHA TiE A TEA
Mr. Cai Shuguang 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11/12
EENEL TiEHA TiEA TiEM
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip? 5/5 0/3 1/1 N/A N/A
SBRS S A2 T @A TEA
Mr. Selwyn Mar 5/5 3/3 11 3/3 N/A
Haakkt TiEm
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 4/5 3/3 11 3/3 N/A
THELE T E A
Mr. Zhai Haitao 5/5 3/3 11 3/3 N/A
BEBLE TiEm

Notes: BfEEE -

1. Mr. Li Xueming resigned as an executive director and Vice-chairman 1. R

—E-—FWNA=-THA  TERTERTA
of the Company on 25 April 2012. RATZHTESHRAER °

2. Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip has been re-designated as an independent 2. HA-Z——F+_A+=Hi BLBLEEH
non-executive director and become a member of the Audit Committee FAEARRRZBILIERTESRKAERRARER
of the Company with effect from 13 December 2012. ZEEMKE °



THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
BETWEEN THE CHAIRMAN AND

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership
for and overseeing the functioning of the Board; formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring
that all directors of the Board are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and giving each director an
opportunity to express his view at board meetings; ensuring
that directors receive adequate information, which must be
complete and reliable, in a timely manner; ensuring that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities;
ensuring that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner; drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting taking into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the other directors
for inclusion in the agenda; taking responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established; encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company; ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole; and
facilitating the effective contribution of directors and ensuring
constructive relations between executive directors and non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking
responsibility for the Group’s operation and management;
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board;
making day-to-day operational and managerial decision;

and coordinating overall business operations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip has been re-designated as
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 13 December 2012.

The current 4 independent non-executive directors of the
Company hold office for a term until 31 December 2013. They
are subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors are independent (except
that for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Independent non-executive directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing names of the
directors of the Board. An updated list of the directors of the
Board identifying the independent non-executive directors and
the roles and functions of the directors is maintained on the
websites of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the
Company and reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer. She is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters. For the year under review,
the Company Secretary has obtained the practitioner’s
endorsement certificate for 2012/13 issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and confirmed she has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year under review, there is no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on their audit, on the Company’s financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the Company, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of the independent auditor’s report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditors, also carried out interim review of
the Group’s results and provided other financial services in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and
the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, KPMG, the external
auditors received the following remuneration from the Group in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services
to the Group:
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RIS T AEE M RE TSI S

HK$’000
BT IT
Annual audit services and interim review services FEEZ AR LR T B S 45 IR TS 3,650
Other services H 4t PR 7S 6
3,656
INTERNAL CONTROL A 2P EL 12
The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal EFE22REBEAEENANIEZRG - 2

control system, which includes the establishment of a
defined management structure with specified limits of
authority. The system is designed to help the achievement of
business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

AIEERBRAENERAGHAREZHEH
BR REBEUDASREEAKLE - #RF
FRIEREREAREATENMHEERHAR
Bk ESNE DL - WHERETHRIADIERA -
FPREZEZRGRAI SR (BEYERBE)RETSHER
BERKEFRRSEEX -
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
The key procedures that the Board established to provide
effective internal controls are as follows:

Organisational Structure

An appropriate organisational structure is in place with
defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and lines of authority.

Authority and Control

The executive directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies and policies and the related
matters formulated by the Board.

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

The Group implements budget management, and financial
budget is executed upon approval by the Board. Relevant
procedures have been established to assess, review and
approve major capital and recurrent expenditures, and
regular review and comparison between operating results
and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure the keeping of accurate and
complete accounting and management records on a timely
basis. Examination and review are carried out regularly to
ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared
in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

Internal Auditing

The Group has its Internal Audit Department and has
regularly conducted internal audit to review whether the
internal control procedures are implemented appropriately.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system. This review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and
also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. Any internal control weaknesses detected
by the Internal Audit Department of the Company will
be reported to the Audit Committee members and
the management of the Company. Accordingly, the
management will take remedial actions and the Internal
Audit Department will subsequently follow up and review
whether the remedial actions are in place. The Company
has established a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors confirm that they are responsible for the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

The Finance Management Department of the Company is
taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer. With the assistance
of the Finance Management Department, the directors
ensure that the Group’s financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting principles.

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 123 to 124.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognizes the importance of good
communications with the Shareholders and the investment
community and also recognizes the value of providing current
and relevant information to Shareholders and the investors.
The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation
to the Shareholders’ communication, with the objective
of ensuring the Shareholders and investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant
information about the Company.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation
through annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered Shareholders are notified by post for the
Shareholders’ meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda,
proposed resolutions and postal voting form.

All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to Shareholders and
the annual general meeting of the Company provides a forum
for Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board,
which together help enhance and facilitate communication
with Shareholders. Shareholders who are unable to attend a
general meeting may complete and return to the Company’s
Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting
to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
chairman of the meetings.
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING ON REQUISITION

BY SHAREHOLDERS

In accordance with Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, may require the Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”). The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Room 2703, 27th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary. The requisition may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more Shareholders concerned.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening an EGM is given, the shareholder(s) concerned
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM,
provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from such date.

The EGM convened by Shareholders shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general
meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the following
shareholders namely:

(@) any number of members representing not less than 2.5%
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b) not less than 50 members holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up on average sum, per
member, of not less than HK$2,000;
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (continued)

are entitled to submit a requisition in writing requesting the
Company:

(@) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and/or

(b) to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

A requisition signed by the shareholders concerned (or 2 or
more copies which between them containing signatures of
all the shareholders concerned) must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Room 2703, 27th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before an annual general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week before
an annual general meeting in case of any other requisition. In
addition, the concerned shareholders must deposit with the
requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in
giving effect the above.

However, if, after a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an
annual general meeting is called for a date 6 weeks or less after
the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not
deposited within the time required as referred to above shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION

AS A DIRECTOR

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website at www.ebchinaintl.com.
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012 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company held on
18 April 2012, a separate resolution was proposed by the
Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of each retiring directors. All resolutions were duly
passed by Shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
meeting. The Chairman of the Board and certain members
of committees attended the meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders. The Company announced the results of the poll
in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. No other
general meeting was held during 2012. The attendance record
of the directors at the general meeting is set out below:

FEXARBEEBRERAR « —F—

—EFFR

- —FREBAFKE

RZE——FMA+N\BHRETHN_E——FRE
BAFEAE  FERESEBYMNSEERREE L

REBR HTEBREESEEES - MAERER
EERRUARERRASTABE EFSIFE - UK
MOEZEENKNELFERLAERERMER -
ARAREBE ETHRARENTARBRERRE
R -NR-B-_FFERWRBRTEMBIRA
G BEEHERRRGZLEHENT

1§

General meeting attended/held

Directors HERE RS, 2B RE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Tang Shuangning EEEL A 1/1
Mr. Zang Qiutao RN 1/1
Mr. Li Xueming* B 0/1
Mr. Chen Xiaoping PR /N S A 1/1
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond HIREASL A 1/1
Mr. Cai Shuguang BEEN ST A 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIHITEE

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip** SBER A 1/1
Mr. Selwyn Mar BREEE 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEHERE 0/1
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEELAE 01

Notes: P5E

#

##

Mr. Li Xueming resigned as an executive director and Vice-chairman

of the Company on 25 April 2012.

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip has been re-designated as an independent

non-executive director and become a member of the Audit Committee

of the Company with effect from 13 December 2012.

t R ZE—_FNA-+HHE FERALELEEITE
ARBZHITESRIERF ©

# AT —FT_A+=HE BLBELEESH
ERARBZBUIEATEERKBARREX



INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
The Company recognizes the importance of efficient and
effective communications with the investor community.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors are
conducted regularly to provide them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information about the Group’s development.
Besides, the Company facilitates the initiation and coverage
of the Company published by research analysts of well-
received investment banks which are instrumental in providing
investors with independent and professional evaluations of
the Company. Moreover, the Group participates in different
international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows
to elaborate on the Group’s business development plans
to global investors. Furthermore, the Company arranges
site visits for investors and media to our key projects in
China. Last but not least, the Company has established a
function dedicated to investor relations and engaged an
external public relations company to take care of investor
relations matters. The Company also maintains a website
(http://www.ebchinaintl.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the
information of the Company on a timely basis.

In order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow them to engage actively with
the Company, a shareholders communication policy of the
Company has been established. Shareholders may at any time
send their enquiries and concerns to the Company via the
Company’s website at www.ebchinaintl.com. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS RIRAEIRIE B
Operating projects E%IEE
DETYY Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BreE operation HRERE FRES
A REER (AR¥T) WE¥EER (W) (TRH®)
Suzhou Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 489,443,000 July 2006 1,050 >100,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 28% ZEERFA
HMAREEIRE —H
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Same as Suzhou Waste-to- 450,000,000 June 2009 1,000 >100,000,000
Project Phase Il energy Project Phase | “EENERA
HMNAREEERR -5 BFMAREE
R -8R
Yixing Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 238,300,000 June 2007 500 >45,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 284 “Z2ZHERA

EESFHEEA 1

P 1,1
g I TI1 171 .a

Project Phase |, Il and I
BMAIREEIRE
—Hi . —HR =5




China Everbright International Limited * Annual Report 2012

Project Highlights « JH H %

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Operating projects (continued)

Project
ER

Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |
IRNRESIRE — 5

Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |l

s REEEE —H

Changzhou Waste-to-energy
Project
EMAREERE

Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy
Project
BTN REERE

Jinan Waste-to-energy
Project
EENREEEA

Sugian Waste-to-energy
Project
BRIREEIER

Type of investment

REEH

BOT for 30 years
BOT 30%

BOT for 27 years
BOT 274

BOT for 25.5 years
BOT 25.5%

BOT for 30 years
BOT 30%F

BOT for 25 years
BOT 25%

BOT for 30 years
BOT 30%F

Total
investment

(RMB)
BReE
(AE¥%T)

388,740,000

205,000,000

412,560,000

413,338,000

900,920,000

324,152,000

PRI RKERERAR « T ——FFR

Date of
commercial
operation

BXEEH
May 2008
“ZT\F1A

March 2011
—T—%=AH

November 2008
“2Z\F+-A

August 2011
—T——%\A

October 2011
“2——F1A

December 2011
“F—%+-H

RIREERIAR (&)
E#EE ()

DETY
processing
capacity
(tonne)
HERERE
()

800

400

800

1,000

2,000

600

Annual power
generation
capacity
(kWh)
FRES
(FRE)

>77,000,000

>37,000,000

>77,000,000

>91,000,000

>188,000,000

>64,000,000

Changzhou
Waste-to-energy
Project

wINAREEIRA
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)  3RIREEIRIE B (&)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage EEGEEEETIER

DETNY Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BRE operation HEERE £RES
15H REER (AER®T) (W) (FRE)
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Same as Suzhou 750,000,000 January 2013 1,500 >158,000,000
Project Phase Il Waste-to-energy Project —“T-=%—R
FMAREEIEE =4 Phase | & Phase Il (awaiting government
BN REE approval)
BB —RZHER (FFTTRLE)
Huidong Waste-to-energy BOT for 29 years 334,405,000 2014 (expected) 600 >104,000,000
Project BOT 294 “T-mE(EH)
BRANEEER
Yixing Waste-to-energy Same as Yixing 150,843,000 2014 (expected) 300 >31,000,000
Project Phase Il Waste-to-energy “E-F(EH)
HENREEERE -4 Project Phase |
RERNRETER
—Him
Nanjing Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 1,030,218,000 2014 (expected) 2,000 >220,000,000
Project BOT 30%F —T-ME(RY)
MRUREEER
Ningbo Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 560,000,000 2014 (expected) 1,000 >112,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 30 “ET-F(EH)
ERNRESER B
Pizhou Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 329,800,000 2014 (expected) 600 >71,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 30F “T-ME(EH)

B REERR

Project
FARAIREEIHA
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage

RIREERAE (&)
RN EEREFER (F)

(continued)
DETINY Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment b operation HRERE £REE
15H REEH (AR%7) B¥EER (W) (FRE)
Wujiang Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 890,000,000 2014 (expected) 1,500 >146,000,000
Project BOO 30%F “E-mE(ES)
RIINFEERE
Sanya Waste-to-energy BOT for 27 years 425,646,000 2014 (expected) 700 >75,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 274 “T-FE(EH)
N RETEA -
Boluo Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 416,959,000 2014 (expected) 700 >91,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 30% “T-WE(EH)
BENRESER B
Shouguang Waste-to-energy BOT for 26 years 338,531,000 2014 (expected) 600 >80,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 264 “E-F(EH)
SHNREEEA
Weifang Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 585,600,000 2014 (expected) 1,000 >122,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “T-WE(EH)

B REERE 1

Waste-to-energy
Project

=S IREEIRR
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)  3RIREEIRIE B (&)

Operating projects E%IEE
Total Designed storage
investment DEICK § capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment b operation REERTAE
HE REER (AR®T) HXEER (ZLAK)
Suzhou Industrial Solid Waste BOT for 30 years 78,100,000 July 2007 142,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOT 304 ZTT+E+A
BN T¥EREEYESEER -5
Suzhou Industrial Solid Waste Same as Suzhou Industrial Solid 40,000,000 November 2011 370,000
Landfill Project Phase |l Waste Landfill Project Phase | —E—F+—R8

FNTXEREMREER "N  EHNIXEEEYRE
HR—H1AR

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage EERERESEETER

Total Designed storage
investment DEICK § capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment BinE operation REERRE
5H REER (Ak#r) BREER (X FK)
Sugian Hazardous Solid Waste BOO for 25 years 99,090,000 January 2013 340,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOO 25%F —T-=5-R
EELEEREER -1
Guanyun Hazardous Solid Waste ~ BOT for 25 years 109,150,000 2014 (expected) 300,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOT 254 “T-MFE(EH)

EEBRRIEER

A

: ,.;IIHIIEII it
-;‘n nmis £ X E

'-_..-.--3: nmmnn

Industrial Solid Waste
Landfill Project Phase |

RN TEEREREY
HIBIEE — )
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS

Operating projects

RIRIKHSIAE
EEIHE

Total Daily waste water
investment

Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)

Project Type of investment K& operation BEkEER

1EH REER (AE¥T) BXELH (ZAK)

Qingdao Waste Water Treatment BOT/TOT for 25 years 356,000,000 January 2005 220,000
Project (Haibohe & Maidao Plants) BOT/TOT 254 “ZTHF—R (Maidao Extension Project
EBAKERER completed in July 2007)
(BT REER) (EBERER
RZZZLFELATR)
Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project  TOT for 25 years 354,276,000 November 2005 250,000
(Southern and Northern Plants) ~ TOT 254 (Including investment of ZZZRE+T—HR  (Upgrading work
SEEKEIEIER RMB130,221,000 for completed in May 2008)
(FIRPRR B AL IR) upgrading work) (FHRsE IR
(BEARSEIRRER RZZEZNFRATHK)
AK#130,221,0007)
Zibo High-tech Zone Waste Water ~ BOT for 25 years 150,000,000 September 2007 100,000
Treatment Project BOT 25 “ZZHFNR
MEREAKERER
Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water BOT for 25 years 70,000,000 November 2009 40,000
Treatment Project BOT 25%F “2ENE+-R
B AR SKERER

o

Zibo Waste Water
Treatment Project

HE5/KEIEIE B




ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IRIR/KIEIEE (&)

Operating projects (continued) EgEE (&)
Total Daily waste water
R ET Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment ~ #iR%E operation AEkEEER
] REEH (AR#®T) BXEER (LHX)
Binzhou Boxing Waste Water TOT/BOT for 25 years 85,000,000 Phase I - April 2008 60,000
Treatment Project TOT/BOT 25% (Including investment of —H-ZFF\FEA  (ncreased from
EMNEESKEEEE RMB65,500,000 for Upgrading work - 30,000 m? to 60,000 m?
upgrading work of Phase | December 2008 upon completion of
and construction of Phase Il) FHMETRE - Phase Il'in June 2009)

(AE-—BRGMER SRR  —TEN\ET-R  (CETASSACHRH
TiE AR H65,500,0007T) Phase Il - June 2009 BIETHRME + H30,0001
“H-—FFAERA HAKEME60,00035K)

Jinan Waste Water Treatment TOT for 30 years 707,000,000 November 2006 500,000
Project (Plant 1 and Plant 2) TOT 30%F (Including investment of —EENF+-R (Increased from
BRTKERER (—BRZK) RMB287,000,000 for 420,000 tonnes to
upgrading and extension work 500,000 tonnes upon
for Plant 1 and Plant 2) completion of extension
(BE-BR-BARSERER work in May 2009)
TRE AR287,000,0007) (ZEENFRATHRER
T4 + F3420,0008
# Z500,00018)
Jinan Licheng Waste Water BOT for 28 years 138,000,000 October 2009 100,000
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |~ BOT 284 ZETNETA

BERERTKRERR (ZK) -5

Jinan Waste Water
Treatment Project

BrESKEIEIRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued)

Operating projects (continued)

Project
EH

Jinan Xike Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 4)
BEEATKEEER (HF)

Ling County Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 2)
BHkEEEE (ZH)

Ling County Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 1)

RESKEERE ()

Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment
Project (Acquisition and upgrade)
IRAKRERE
(M e Pt i)

Zibo Reusable Water Project
Phase |

A ERKEE

Jinan Licheng Reusable
Water Project

BRERTKER

Type of investment

REEA

BOT for 26 years
BOT 264

BOT for 30 years
BOT 304

TOT for 30 years
TOT 304

TOT for 30 years
TOT 30%F

BOO for 20 years
BOO 20%F

BOO for 24 years
BOO 24%F

Total
investment

GI:)
BRE
(AR¥T1)

72,680,000

58,000,000

33,720,000

530,266,000

44,000,000

31,061,000

RBAMRAT) » —T— _FFR

RIRKBBIRE (&)
E&EE (&)

Date of
commercial
operation

BREEH

June 2010
“E-TEAR

June 2010
“E-FFXA

June 2010
“2-ZFXA

January 2008
—TT\F-A

September 2011
—2——%NA

September 2011
—Z——%NA

Daily waste water
treatment/water supply
capacity

(m°)
AAKER/f#KE
(LH*)

30,000

30,000

30,000

190,000

4,800

42,000

Jiangyin
WESCRUECT
Treatment Project

TE57KERIEIA R
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IRIR/KIEIEE (&)

Transferred project E2BREH

Total Daily waste water
investment treatment capacity
(RMB) Date of (m?)

Project Type of investment aRaE transfer ASkEER

HA REER (AR¥71) BXAH (LHXK)

Xinyi BT Waste Water BT for 4 years 62,150,000 October 2010 10,000

Treatment Project Phase | BT 4% “T-241A

ATBT/AKERIZER —H

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage EEREESEEPER

DETVAVECRUE G

Total treatment/water supply
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (md)
Project Type of investment HwRE operation/transfer ASKRE/H#KE
A REEH (AR%T) BEEE /BRAH  (LFK)
Jiangyin Reusable Water Project BOO for 25 years 73,067,000 July 2012 10,000
IRHKIER BOO 255 —T-ZF+A
Jinan Licheng Waste Water Same as Jinan Licheng 195,000,000 2014 (expected) 100,000
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |l Waste Water Treatment —T-ME(EH)
ERERKEEER (=K -8 Project (Plant 3) Phase |
SR 5K R
ER(=F)—H8R
Zibo Reusable Water Project Phase Il Same as Zibo Reusable 11,000,000 progress will be 4,800
EEHKIEE Z 8 Water Project Phase | depended on situation
s8R A — 1R RERER S
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water BOT for 25 years 150,270,000 first quarter of 2013 75,000
Treatment Project Phase | BOT 254 (expected)
EMEmEkERER —H —T-=5%-F
(8)
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water BOT for 25 years 79,977,000 2014 (expected) 75,000
Treatment Project Phase |l BOT 25% “T-ME(ES)
EINrEEN S KEREE — 8
Xinyi Surface Water BT Project BT for 8 years 385,110,000 January 2013 100,000

HTHRKBTHE BT 8% “Z-=F—f
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS

Operating projects

Project
HE

Suzhou Methane-to-energy
Project Phase |
#HMBRESBERE —H

Suzhou Methane-to-energy
Project Phase |l
EHMNBREEEL -

Shenzhen Rooftop
Photovoltaic Energy Project
MIETERREEIER

Zhenjiang Ground Photovoltaic
Energy Project
BIHENREEER

Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project Phase |
BREEAREEEL —H

Type of investment

REREH

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%

Same as Suzhou
Methane-to-energy
Project Phase |

EEMNAREEER
—HitER

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%

BOO for 25 years
BOO 254

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%

Total
investment
(RMB)
BRE
(AER¥T)

27,940,000

12,750,000

27,917,000

73,490,000

52,720,000

HEEIRIA R
EEEHE

Date of
commercial
operation

BXELH
August 2006
—ZTRFNA

September 2008
—ZZ\FNA

November 2010
“E-FEF+—8

December 2010
—E-TE+H

December 2010
—E-ZF+R

PRI RKERERAR « T ——FFR

Annual power
generation capacity
(kWh)

FRER
(FRE)

>18,000,000

>9,000,000

>1,480,000

>4,059,000

>2,205,000

Ground Photovoltaic
Energy Project
SEVT A SR IR
ZEIRA
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Operating projects (continued)

$LFIAR ()
EEEE ()

Annual power
generation capacity
(kWh)

FRER

Total investment
(RMB)

Date of commercial
operation

Project Type of investment #&KRE

HHE

German Ground Photovoltaic
Energy Project
BRI R EEEA

Changzhou Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project
BMETERREEEE

Zhenjiang Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project
BIRBANREERE

Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project Phase |l
BRERANEEEL _H

Zibo Heat Pump Project Phase |
HIEERIEE —H

Huaining Ground Photovoltaic
*Energy Project
BEHEX R EER

Dangshan Biomass Power
Generation Project
BEMEREEIER

REREH

BOO for 20 years
BOO 204

BOO for 25 years
BOO 254

BOO for 25 years
BOO 254

BOO for 25 years
BOO 254

BOO for 30 years
BOO 304

BOO for 26 years
BOO 264

BOO for 30 years
BOO 304

(AR¥7)

68,360,000

79,213,000

236,095,000

142,109,000

57,887,000

50,470,000

312,468,000

BXEER

September 2011
—F——%NA

December 2011
—E——%+4+=A

December 2011
—F-—%t-A

December 2011
—F——%tZA

December 2011
—Z——%+=A

May 2011
“Z——%AHA

September 2011
—E——%NA

(FTRE)

>3,611,000

>4,112,500

>11,680,000

>6,198,000

N/A
NEH

>2,170,000

>184,000,000

Energy Project

REMBE A
HEIHA
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage

Project
HE

Hanshan Biomass Power
Generation Project
SLEMERREER

Xinyi Biomass Power
Generation Project
TEMEREEER

Shuyang Biomass
Cogeneration Project
MY E e BB IR B

Linyi Biomass Power
Generation Project
REAMERETEER

Laiyang Biomass Power
Generation Project
REEMEREERER

Zibo Ceramic Technology
Development Park
Heat Pump Project

B ERERRIAR

Type of investment

REEH

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%F

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%F

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%F

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%F

BOO for 25 years
BOO 25%F

BOO for 30 years
BOO 304

Total investment

(RMB)
(AR¥T)

320,000,000

321,040,000

339,610,000

320,000,000

320,000,000

93,110,000

PRI RKERERAR « T ——FFR

#eeIRIER (&)
HEREEBETEE

Annual power
generation capacity
Date of commercial (kWh)
operation EREE
HXEZAR (FRE)

2014 (expected)
T -F(EH)

>184,000,000

(construction temporarily >184,000,000

postponed)
(BEER)
(construction temporarily Power £

postponed) >172,250,000 KWh F ELB§
(BEE®) Heat 218

> 390,000 tonnes M

(construction temporarily >184,000,000
postponed)
(BEER)

(construction temporarily >184,000,000
postponed)
(BEER)

December 2012 N/A
(construction T@Em
completed)

“T-ZE+ZA
(B L)



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
INDUSTRIAL PARKS

Environmental Protection Industrial Parks

RREXE

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII%!!Q%III101

RIREXE

Investment Amount

R&EH

Expected number

of projects

BrERHE

Suzhou Everbright National Demonstrative Veinous Industrial Park
FMTHARERFREZXTHE

Zhenjiang Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park
BIMARRREXE

Sugian Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park
EEMAARREXE

Changzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park
EMNTARRRERE

Weifang Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park
IR ARRRERE

Yixing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park
HEDAARRHRKEXE

Nanjing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park

ERMAARRBRERE

RMB3.3 billion
ANREESSETT

RMB1.5 billion
AREA5(ET
RMB1.6 billion
ARK16fET
RMB1 billion
ARK10ET
RMBS3.7 billion
ARBITET
HK$2 billion to HK$3 billion
BH20Z30ETT
RMB4.2 billion
ARE42ET

>10

6-8

6-8

>10

>10

>10

Suzhou Everbright
National Demonstrative
Veinous Industrial Park

ERM T A B ZRERAR
EFRHE
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Directors and Senior Management

HRARAEHEANE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TANG SHUANGNING — CHAIRMAN

aged 58, is the Chairman of the Company. He is a member of
the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is also the Chairman of China
Everbright Group Limited, China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited and China Everbright Bank Company Limited. Mr. Tang
is also the Director of Everbright Securities Company Limited,
Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Company Limited and the
Chairman of China Everbright Limited. He also serves as the
Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking and
the Consultant of China Society for Investment. Prior to joining
the China Everbright Group, he was the Vice Chairman of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission, the Director-General
of the Banking Supervision Department |, the Director-General
of the Currency, Gold and Silver Bureau and the Director-
General of the Credit Management Division of the People’s
Bank of China. He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from
China Northeast University of Finance & Economics. Mr. Tang
has extensive knowledge and experience in banking and
finance management. Mr. Tang joined the Board in July 2007.

ZANG QIUTAO - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 60, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. He is also
the Vice-chairman of China Everbright Group Limited and
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Zang is
the Chairman of China Everbright Industry Group Limited
and China Everbright Investment Management Corporation.
He is also the Deputy Chairman of China Everbright Limited.
Mr. Zang graduated from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. He was formerly the Division
Chief of the State Economic Commission and Deputy Division
Director of the State Planning Commission. He joined the
Board in September 2004.

5=

BITES

EEE(L/E)

BEGR ' ARREF  BEERFE T —ESP
BARBAHEEZEEEREEXRE  WIAA/T
BYCR(RE)BAR  REXAKEEBRAF R
PEERRITRNDBRARESK - 1IN BEE
ENMBRREZBRDERARRIARKBATR
RERRAES  ARPEAXAERARARE
B BRETHERFSRERLTREEESRS
B o WAEMARBESEREEA - BEFBRTT
XEERERBEGRER  PRARRTRITE
E-AlRk ERSRBEARIREEEREAAR
FR o FRATERILMERBEESRLE
- BEEERNRTLREREETERBIFTREZ
MABER T EENRLR BLEENR_ZTTLF
TtAMAESS -

O CTE D)

BRE605L  ARREILEE - TATEXKN(EE)
BARIRPEAASEERAFABESRE ° It
S BEERTEXREE(EE)EREEAF
MABAARREEERFANESER - BRI ATE
KRAEBRBERARBIER - BAERTELEHR
BRMELERER - FETEREEZECRER
kERTEIZEGRIARABE - BAEER-T
ZMOFEAAMAEES -




DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

CHEN XIAOPING - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is
also a director of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
and a Standing Director of China Environmental Culture
Promotion Association. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen
had been a department head in the Bureau of Investigation
& Supervision of The People’s Bank of China, the Assistant
Governor of China Everbright Bank Company Limited and the
President of the Bank’s Guangzhou Branch. He graduated
from the Department of Finance of the Southwest University
in Finance and Economics, the PRC, finished the MBA class
of the Research Institute of Business Management of Sichuan
University, the PRC and holds a Master’s Degree with a
major in Money & Banking from the Department of Finance
and Trade of the China Research Institute of Social Science.
He holds the title of Senior Economist and Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC. He was also engaged as a researcher
at the China International Economic Development Research
Centre. He has rich experience and extensive knowledge in
banking, capital market and management. Mr. Chen joined
the Board in August 2001.

WANG TIANY! — GENERAL MANAGER

aged 50, is the General Manager of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the President of Shandong Academy
of Science. He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City
of Shandong Province. He had been the Vice President, Dean
and Professor of Economic Management Faculty of Yantai
University of Shandong Province. He is currently also a part-
time professor and doctoral tutor of Shandong University.
He is also a member of HKTDC Mainland Business Advisory
Committee. He holds a Doctorate’s degree in Economics,
a Master’s degree in Management and a Bachelor’'s degree
in Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued
advanced studies at Harvard University and University of
California in the United States. Mr. Wang joined the Board in
February 2010.

BEERaMERBAER

BEx5(#)
HITEE(E)
BN F(TTB A8 E)
WESIR * ARRITHAE - TATYBEAAE
EERAREERTEREXLRESEHE
E o REENMARNERF - TEBRFPBRARRST
EREERERRPE N RNBTITRENIEREM
WRITADTIR - HEERPEABRNEARZ S
Z 01K B T 7 s TR A 55 BT MBAR 35 4 3 &2
RAEPBHSRIERRRT EMEBRITEXE
T AERRKEMBEBANTREME
1’ N A B BB OB B R A IR R L 3R
B HRIRTT - BEAMBRECEEBFEHEE
ERBRETNG BREAEER_ZT—F )\ AN
AEEE o

FRE (K )

WEFL05% * ARFIEKIR - EIMAREER - &
IWRAEMBRERR - RAGEILREBEEHEID
K- -UBELUREZESRBERE - KBSk
REHE - BNMEIURKRERBHREMNE L £
Bl ARBBBERAMEEAANLZESEE -
BRABEASKESEL  BEEBHELRETF
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BRE - FRENR T ZF_AMAEZESTE -
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree, a
Master of Management Degree in Information Technology
Management from Macquarie University, Australia, and a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and a Certified General
Accountant in Canada. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the
Board in December 2002.

CAl SHUGUANG - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 57, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company.
He is also the General Manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Limited. Prior to joining the Group, he
was formerly Deputy General Manager of Shenzhen Kingway
Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of
Computer Science from Shanghai Fudan University and holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University
of Ballarat in Australia. He holds the title of senior engineer.
Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge in
corporate management and project planning. Mr. Cai joined
the Board in August 2010.

Ex(&)

HITES(E)

B (I HRE)

HEAm  ARAMBRE - EREFABRIMNE
REASTHERBRLIE  BEERLA(EE
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RELTHR > NABBIBEIE - WITAIARRRE
(PED)BRAFIMBLE - BELETEMAREER
Al BEBRRINEEEEAR DB AEE - &
EXRNLBEBARBERMER - X RHFRAF
TENRFABIHERRLEM - RESRT
TRADETE o FCAAMEEIEEIAR RIS HE
BEERRRBEZNE BEENR_T—FTF)N
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

aged 63, is the Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is an independent non-executive director
of HKC (Holdings) Limited, Hysan Development Company
Limited and First Pacific Company Limited. Mr. Fan is also
an independent director of Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co.,
Ltd., a Shenzhen listed company, and Goodman Group,
an Australia listed company. He is also a member of the
Asian Advisory Board of AustralianSuper, a pension fund
established in Australia. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Industrial Engineering, a Master’'s Degree in Operations
Research from Stanford University and a Master’'s Degree
in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan had been
an executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited in charge of
industrial projects in China. He joined the Board in November
1997. He was re-designated as the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
January 2010 and December 2012 respectively.

MAR SELWYN

aged 77, is the Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Mar graduated from the London School of
Economics, University of London. He is a fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is a partner of Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. He is an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the
board audit committee of Standard Bank Asia Limited. He
is also an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Minmetals Land Limited and Man
Yue International Holdings Limited. He was the President
of Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1991.
Mr. Mar is an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University and
appointed member of the Court of Lingnan University by
the Chief Executive of the HKSAR. He joined the Board in
September 2004.

BEERaMERBAER

BEx5(#)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

aged 63, is the Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the Chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a
Hong Kong based financial advisory and investment firm,
and has over 30 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is also a non-executive director of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited and an independent non-
executive director of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Kunlun
Energy Company Limited, Kowloon Development Company
Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping
Carpets International Limited. Mr. Li has a Master of Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering from Brown University. He joined
the Board in November 1998.

ZHAI HAITAO

aged 44, is the Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the President and Partner of Primavera Capital
Group. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman Sachs
Asia LLC and Chief Representative of Goldman Sachs Beijing
Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at
the International Department of the People’s Bank of China in
Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the People’s Bank
of China Representative Office for the Americas based in New
York. He holds a Master’s Degree in International Relations
from Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration
Degree from New York University and a Bachelor of Arts
Degree in Economics from Peking University. He has extensive
experience and knowledge in banking, capital market and
management. Mr. Zhai joined the Board in January 2011.

Ex(&)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HU YANGUO

aged 46, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He
is also the Deputy General Manager and General Manager
of Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Ltd. and
Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Ltd. respectively. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly
the lecturer of mathematics of Northeast Forestry University,
the General Manger of Accounting Department of Guangzhou
Branch of the China Everbright Bank and the Deputy
General Manager of Sunshiny Group. He graduated from the
Department of Infrastructure of Northeast Forestry University
and holds a Master of Agricultural Degree from Economic
Management Faculty of the Northeast Forestry University.
Mr. Hu holds the title of Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC. He has comprehensive experience in accounting
and settlement, administration management, construction
management. Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 20086.

CHEN TAO

aged 49, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company.
He is also the Deputy General Manager and General
Manager of Everbright Environmental Protection (China)
Ltd. and Everbright Environmental Protection Technological
Development (Beijing) Ltd. respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, he was formerly the lecturer and laboratory supervisor
of automation of Sichuan Light Chemistry Institute (presently
known as East China University of Science and Technology),
the Automation Department Manager and the Assistant
General Manager of Shenzhen Catic Intelligent System
Co., Ltd. He graduated from the Department of Chemical
Instrument and Industrial Automation of East China Chemistry
Institute (presently known as East China University of Science
and Technology) and holds a Master of Automation Degree
from East China University of Science and Technology. Mr.
Chen holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer in the PRC. He
has comprehensive experience in construction management,
technology development and administration management.
Mr. Chen joined the Group in April 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

QIAN XIAODONG

aged 40, is the Assistant General Manager and the General
Manager of Investment Development Department of the
Company. He is also the General Manager of the Everbright
Environmental Protection Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd. He
graduated from the Department of Heat Energy Engineering
of Dalian University of Technology and holds a Master of
Environment Engineering Degree of Southeast University.
He has comprehensive experience and knowledge in market
development of environmental protection industry, national
environmental policies and industrial trend. Mr. Qian joined the
Group in July 20083.

AN XUESONG

aged 42, is the Assistant General Manager and the General
Manager of Investment Management Department of the
Company. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree of Jinan University. Mr. An holds the title of Certified
Public Accountant in the PRC and International Internal
Auditor. He has comprehensive experience and knowledge
in project management, accounting management and risk
management. Mr. An joined the Group in May 2002.

YANG ZHIQIANG

aged 52, is the Chief Legal Officer of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group, he was formerly the Legal Assistant
and PRC legal consultant of Livasiri & Co., the lawyer of
Beijing Xinghe Legal Firm and Jiade Legal Firm, Shenzhen
branch. He was graduated in Medical Science Department
from Beijing Medical University. He obtained the Professional
Certificate of Law recognized by Law Society of England and
Wales and holds the title of Lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in December 2003.

POON YUEN LING

aged 45, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She joined the Group in April 1994, with
over 15 years of experience in company secretarial and
administration areas.
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Report of the Directors
HEHFHN

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Room 27083,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 3 to
the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and
suppliers of the Group respectively during the financial year is
as follows:

The largest customer BARP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFA
The largest supplier &AM ERE
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAEEEAE

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH
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ARRRENBRAR ([ AEE)RATRFEER
2 E B RIZHIE B D 2 0T SR B R R T
3 o

FTERPRHER
REERAVBRFE2EERF REEFER
T

Percentage of the
Group’s total

EEREETIREZBEDIL

Turnover Purchases
28%
57%

7%

19%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

REREMER BETAES REZBHE
ATHEAARBRR(BESAAEERNR A
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao EB-VW?”, a subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an operation and maintenance agreement
with Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company Limited
(“Qingdao Veolia”, an associate of the Group). Pursuant
to the agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will subcontract
to Qingdao Veolia the provision of the operation and
maintenance services in respect of the waste-water
treatment plants (the “Plants”) in Qingdao, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). During the year ended 31
December 2012, service fee for the operation and
maintenance of the Plants paid/payable to Qingdao Veolia
amounted to HK$53,303,000 (2011: HK$44,783,000).

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a waste-water
treatment agreement with Qingdao Municipal Drainage
Company (“Qingdao Drainage”, a non-controlling
shareholder of Qingdao EB-VW). Pursuant to the
agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will provide waste-water
treatment services and other related services to Qingdao
Drainage on an exclusive basis. During the year ended
31 December 2012, waste-water treatment revenue
received/receivable from Qingdao Drainage amounted to
HK$110,893,000 (2011: HK$109,949,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report to the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter of Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions as disclosed by the Group in the
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 125
to 257.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$1,154,104,000 (2011: HK$845,264,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2011: HK2.0
cents per share) was paid on 18 October 2012. The directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per share (2011: HK2.5 cents per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2012.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$6,701,000 (2011: HK$175,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on placing of
new shares of the Company to broaden the capital base and
exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Tang Shuangning, Chairman

Zang Qiutao, Vice-chairman

Li Xueming, Vice-chairman (resigned on 25 April 2012)
Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Wang Tianyi, General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer

Cai Shuguang, Deputy General Manager

Independent non-executive directors

Fan Yan Hok, Philip (re-designated on 13 December 2012)
Mar Selwyn

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Zhai Haitao

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Xiaoping,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Cai Shuguang, Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip and Mr. Zhai Haitao will retire from the board at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip has been re-designated as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 13 December 2012.
The current 4 independent non-executive directors of the
Company hold office for a term until 31 December 2013. They
are all subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association as indicated above.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2012 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

() Long position in shares of the Company

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH
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Nature of Number of
interest shares Percentage
Name of director ERtE REE Botk
(ordinary shares)
(B#ER)
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond il Personal {E A 2,000,000 0.05%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB Personal f& A 8,500,000 0.21%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey R E Personal & A 1,000,000 0.02%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EENTETHRAERAEZRG - HEA

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, Bfh MESERMAR (£)

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(i) Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of (i) RARBIHEROASTETI A2 A
the Company

Number of
equity
derivatives Number of
Nature of held underlying
interest BEERA shares Percentage
Name of director EiREME TETEEHE HBERGHAE BoK
(share options) (ordinary shares)
(BiR#E) (ZBK)
Zang Qiutao EHE Personal fELA 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.05%
Chen Xiaoping PR /)N S Personal {iil A 9,000,000 9,000,000 0.22%
Wong Kam Chung, =i Ea
Raymond Personal & A 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.04%
All the above shares and underlying shares of equity R RARBERORASTETAE(GEE™
derivatives (being unlisted and physically settled) were LEYHEE )R EBESERRFAS - £X
beneficially owned by the directors concerned. The FIBRZBEDLRARAINR=ZE—ZF+=
percentage shown was calculated based on the number of R=+—HEBETROBEFE -

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Further details relating to the options granted to the directors BEAARMESREE2THA B % HERESN
and chief executive of the Company are set out in the section i —#EFEHA T [FERESTE] | —4 ©
“Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief & EXXFrut& 4D - IRARQ BIREE S & H S 150
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children ZFE352{§RFEE THFE 2 &M ArE st @R
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in ~ AR B FEE KR EZTHA BB E 2 (ERIF S
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, s+ \EUA T2 FRBEERDT - HEAHER
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other 2@ - fiBARSHMBERT ZKH - HEK
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to P EiESFFHEAERTARXBE LT AR ES
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified #1752 5 Z1ZEFRIBHE A AT 2 R
to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities %2 °

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity for
employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation
in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years ending on 25 May 2013, after which no further
options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of grant and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The options are exercisable six
months (or a later date as determined by the directors of the
Company) after the date on which the options are granted for
a period up to ten years or 25 May 2013, whichever is earlier.

The total number of securities available for issue under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2012 was
254,831,170 shares (including options for 15,300,000 shares
that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised)
which represented approximately 6.3% of the issued share
capital of the Company at 31 December 2012. In respect of
the maximum entitlement of each participant under the share
option scheme, the number of securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
when the letter comprising acceptance of the option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1 is
received within 28 days from the date of offer. The share option
scheme will expire on 25 May 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share at
31 December 2012 was HK$3.92) granted at nominal
consideration under the share option scheme of the Company.
The options are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the
Company.

No. of

No. of shares
options acquired No. of
outstanding  on exercise options
atthe of options outstanding

beginning during atthe
of the year the year year end
£ Enfil ER Date
WATE.  BRERA  HAGEZ granted
Directors Bz BREEE  <RBHE  EREHE RHAS

Zang Qiutao Bl 2,000,000 2,000,000 3 August
2006
e

NA=H

UXeeming® 28 6O (6,000,000 - 29 September
2003
-28-

—ITT—

RA=ThA

2,000,000 (2,000,000} = 3 August
2006
“BRNE

TR

NA=H

2000000 (2,000,000 - Shugst
2006

235F

NA=H

BT E (&)
RIE——F+-A=+—R8 ARAEEKE
SEARBEARARD <BIRETES No#R
(RZBE—ZF+A=T—BZE8RMTERE
%3.9270) - ARABBEDRIEA R BB ES
RRBAREBEERN - BRABRELE LT -
BB R THAARE - RARBBREELS
0T BB Z R o

* Market
value per * Market
share at value per
Period date of share on
during which grantof exercise of
options are Exercise options options
exercisable price per RERE by
EhE share  RLA#z fifeR2
20f8  SROREE Skt Skt

3 August 2008 to HKS$0.85 HKS$0.85 -
BMay2013  BH0s T  A%08T
“ES)\E
NA=HE
“E-ZF
RA-t1A

29 September 2004 to HK$0.296 HK$0.296 HK$398

BMay 2013  AE¥020m  AK026T  AE3IMT
“EENE
AAZTHBR
“E-ZF
RA-t%A

3 August 2007 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$3.98

25 May 2013 0,857 B0.857T B%3.087T
EStE
NA=HE
“F-k
TA-TTA

3 August 2008 to HKS$0.85 HKS$0.85 HK$3.98
BMay 2013  E¥0ssr  AK0ssT  AEIMT
“EF)\E
NA=HE
“E-=F
FA-11A




SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of
options
outstanding
atthe
beginning
of the year
2
AfTE
BRegR

Directors £z

Chen Xiaoping BT 4,000,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

Wong Kam Chung, #3588 1,500,000

Raymond

1,600,000

No. of
shares
acquired
on exercise
of options
during

the year
Enfif
BRERA
ZBH#A

(1,500,000

No. of
options
outstanding
atthe
year end
ER Date
HAGEZ  granted
BRESR ok
4,000,000 29 September
2003
it
AA=HAR

2,500,000 3 August 2006
ZZ35E
N\R=H

2,500,000 3 August 2006
-y

NA=H

~ 3 August 2006
-y
N\A=H

1,500,000 3 August 2006
SEENE
NAZR

AN ABIEERAR « —F

BRERTE(#)

* Market
value per
share at
Period date of
during which grant of
options are Exercise options
exercisable price per ‘RERE
g share  REAHZ
20f8  SROEE Sk
29 September 2004 to HK$0.296 HK$0.296
BMay2013  E¥0206m  E%0.2067
CTERE
AAZTARZ
ZF-cF
RA-tEA
3 August 2007 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85
BMay 2013 E¥ossr  EK08ST
TTELE
NAZRZE
Z5-cF
RA-tER
3 August 2008 to HK$0.85 HK$0.86
BMay2013  E%0.857 BE085T
“EE)\E
NA=RZ
ZF-cF
RA-11E
3 August 2007 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85
BMy2013  EEsT  AE085T
IR
NA=RZ%
ZF-cF
i) ils
3 August 2008 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85
BMay2013  B¥ossr  EM08T
R
NA=RZ%
ZE-cF

TA=tAA
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* Market
value per
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exercise of
options
BhE
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LG

HK$3.90
%3907
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BT E(#8)

No. of
No. of shares * Market
options acquired No. of value per * Market
outstanding  on exercise options share at value per
atthe of options outstanding Period date of share on
beginning during atthe during which grantof exercise of
of the year the year year end options are Exercise options options
1) ERfE 34 Date exercisable price per ‘RERE BhRE
HATEZ  BRERL  HAOEZ granted BhE share  RHAHZ iRz
Employees 2 BREHE  <BHEE  KRERA RiRH k8 SRR gkt gkt
Employees E8 1,700,000 (300,000) 1,400,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2007 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$3.90
ZEENE BMay2013  EH0sw  A%0sST  EBIOOT
NA=R i
NA=RZ%
IF-cF
BA-tEA
2,550,000 (1,150,000} 1,400,000 3 August 2006 3 August 2008 to HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$3.88
“EENE BMay2013  EH08w  AM08T  EBIST
NA=R ZEEN\E
NA=RZ%
E-cF
BA-tEA
*  Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary — * BN N &) @A e R BB AR AE R B e 1T (AR & @

F3) B E3R0 2 g U (E -

shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
granted or exercised, as applicable.

** Mr. Li Xueming resigned as Executive Director and Vice-chairman of  **
the Company with effect from 25 April 2012.
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The options granted to the directors are registered under the
names of the directors who are also the beneficial owners.
During the year, no options was granted, cancelled or lapsed
under the share option scheme. Information on the accounting
policy for share options granted and the weighted average
value per option is provided in note 1(s)(ii) and note 30 to the
financial statements respectively.

B E XA E SN - EAEERETRE AR
7 REMERAF  WBATAXARHEAT
YWEEEARE  REAANZEFTHBE
AR T RAEMEMEABEZ BB R ESTREG
Rk -

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2012 amounting to
5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue:

Capacity
g4

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

T ERR REAM A TERD MAEER D
hEB SRR

AKAPIERR - ZE——F+_A=+—HEERK
DA BTN 2R ED BT ERR5% A
FZREEWT

Nature of
interest

ERiME

Long position
in ordinary
shares held
Fiis
EERzHER

Percentage
of total
issued shares
HEBERT
ROB2 L

China Everbright Holdings  # Bt AEE AR A A Interest of Corporate interest ~ 1,853,951,910 Approximately
Company Limited (ThKREE]) controlled NGIL 45.91%
(“CEH") (note (1)) (B=E(1)) corporation #445.91%

R R R MR
Allianz SE (note (2)) Allianz SE(Kf35(2))  Interest of Corporate interest 282,803,000  Approximately
controlled UNGILE 7.00%
corporation #17.00%
B VNG [Eo -
Notes: P5E -

(1) Out of the 1,853,951,910 ordinary shares, 1,758,215,910 ordinary
shares are held by Guildford Limited (“Guildford”). Guildford is owned
as to 55% by Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”) and the remaining
45% by CEH. Datten is wholly-owned by CEH. The remaining
95,736,000 ordinary shares are held by Everbright Investment &
Management Limited (“EIM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEH.
Accordingly, CEH is deemed to be interested in the 1,758,215,910
ordinary shares held by Guildford and the 95,736,000 ordinary shares
held by EIM.

According to the register kept under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31
December 2012, CEH and its associates had interests in aggregate of
1,843,951,910 ordinary shares (approximately 45.66% of the issued
shares of the Company).

(2) The corporate interest of Allianz SE was attributable on account
through a number of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests by prescribed notices which had been
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2012.

(1

@)

B & 3Pt & S
C ARBWEEETHRNBM - KRB EAE

H

1£1,853,951,910fk T @ARH - HF1,758,215,910
B 2 3@ A% T3 i Guildford Limited ([ Guildford |)#%5 °
Guildford J5 1 Datten Investments Limited([ Datten )
HBEE5% M HE - Hr45%H AL B A - Datten
THAERNEEE2EHRE - HE895,736,000 0% & AR
AN AEEZ2EMB AR A RNIREEEER AR
([RABEER A - Bt - AAREEWRAES
GuildfordFT# %A 2 1,758,215,9108% & i@ AR &t K%
B EE#A 295,736,000 T @A °

RADAIMRIRE 7 &G EAI 2336 1&FE 2 F M
iR R-TB——F+-A=+—0 XAEERH
e A4 H43E1,843,951,9108 L@ (5 A2 A
B EITRR1D 4045.66%) °

Allianz SEZ AR D RIBEBETEZRE2EWB A
AR °

RZZFE——F+-_A=+—

fl # B RE SR K PR A8 75 M A B 15 0 52 336 R 17
BEZELMA -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at the date of this annual report, as far as the
directors are aware, Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip is an
independent non-executive director of HKC (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
its business activities include property development and
investments, alternative energy investment, infrastructure, and
in particular, waste-to-energy and wind power, are considered
to compete or likely to compete with the business of the
Group. Although, Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip is an independent
non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited, he does
not engage in the daily operation of HKC (Holdings) Limited
and thus the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently from HKC (Holdings) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report
and as far as the directors are aware, none of the directors
or their respective associates had any interests in a business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interests with the Group.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set out
in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 258 to
259 of the annual report.
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PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on
page 260 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved defined
contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO
Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees and employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used to
reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
Employee can choose to contribute with a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the income statement during the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to HK$18,548,000.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent
and satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.13 (except that
for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By order of the board

TANG SHUANGNING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
383 7 A BBl e o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to
257, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 February 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

fos A R 6 ,
»a IR ﬁll For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) B2 —Z——F+ - A=+—H It FE (BB E)

2011
—T——%F
$°000
T+
(restated-
see note 8)
(EHR—
RHIzES)
Continuing operations RERLEER
Turnover = 3 3,409,938 3,486,697
Direct costs and operating expenses BEERAREEER (1,726,266) (2,048,378)
1,683,672 1,438,319
Other revenue E Y s 4 106,929 58,727
Other loss H b E5E 4 (10,022) (943)
Administrative expenses THER (297,377) (235,823)
Profit from operations e BH 1,483,202 1,260,280
Finance costs BBEA 5(a) (312,640) (240,778)
1,170,562 1,019,502
Share of result of associate FTib B & A Rl 248 6 - -
Profit before taxation % F54 AT 2 K| 5 1,170,562 1,019,502
Income tax Frisi 7(a) (266,554) (254,713)
Profit from continuing FELEER 2B
operations 904,008 764,789
Discontinued operation BRI A TS
Profit from discontinued operation RIS 2 BT
(net of tax) (BREi%) 8(a) 250,096 80,475
Profit for the year NEE ZF 1,154,104 845,264
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»a iR it For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) E{%E —E— —F+ = A =+—H IFFE (LABSEE)

(restated-
see note 8)
(BEHR—
FHIzES)
Attributable to: JE(REB 1D
Equity shareholders of the Company PN/ 11
— Continuing operations —BBEEEY 881,239 737,061
- Discontinued operation — BRI T 242,030 64,380
1,123,269 |
Non-controlling interests FEE AR =
— Continuing operations —BBEEEY 22,769 27,728
- Discontinued operation — R R T 8,066 16,095
30835 . Loszs
Profit for the year RFEEEA 1,154,104 845,264
Earnings per share sTER 12
Basic BN
— Continuing operations —BBEEER 23.26 cents 1li | 20.10 cents fil
— Discontinued operation — RS 6.39 cents fill | 1.76 cents fll
29.65 cents fll | 21.86 cents Ll
Diluted i
— Continuing operations —BEBEEEY 23.14 cents 1li | 19.94 cents Il
- Discontinued operation — R R T 6.35 cents fill | 1.74 cents fli
29.49 cents fli | 21.68 cents fll

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these #HNE136EZEFE257H 2MizE /It ZEH BT
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity 2 &b ° G REFD B IR+ T AN QR
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the .2 BREFFBERRHTES(0) °

year are set out in note 31(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AN N
l%/]; ﬁ *E ﬁll il% For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) £ %= —F— — 4+ = B =+— B I FE (LUBEEE)

_Profit fortheyear AFER&M 1,154,104 [l
Other comprehensive income AREGHEMEE
for the year: U NE
Exchange differences on translation of — ¥ZE i &N R & ®&
financial statements of subsidiaries FEZEP@%%E 82,527 242,019
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale F& &4 N 7 EEE)
securities 10,396 (69,011)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts BEEZIEH KR 2 &5
transferred to profit or loss: 2B BRAE
— upon disposal of available-for-sale —REEFEESFR
securities - 1,030
— impairment loss on available-for-sale ~ — & & A5 FEEHE
securities 9,994 -
Tax effect relating to changes in fair value FEESF QAL EEE
of available-for-sale securities Z 18 Eﬁk%% (2,528) 15,739
Exchange reserves realised on disposal  HEN B A AR &R
of subsidiaries 2 B 5 A 8(d) (96,560) -
e 3829 e ary
Total comprehensive income REE2EK AR
for the year 1,157,933 1,035,041
Attributable to: JEAR &R 17 :
Equity shareholders of the Company PiN/NET | 1,127,677 972,367
Non-controlling interests JEFERL A S 30,256 62,674
Total comprehensive income REEZ2HEIW AR
for the year 1,157,933 1,035,041

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial FHNF136BE EE2578 2 M3 At E B KR
statements. RZ2—8Mm -
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22 IV a7
l%/j-; [ | ﬁ %:3 ﬁ 1E il% At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ¥ = Z— =4+ = A =+—H (LB #1E)

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

- Interest in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating leases

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interest in associate

Other financial assets

Other receivables and
deposits

Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work

Finance lease receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work

Tax recoverable

Finance lease receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Deposits with bank

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans
- Secured
- Unsecured

Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses
Current taxation

Net current assets

FRBEE

EEEE

—REMF

—Ex - BER
B

—RELLHE
FEARZ
HE TR

WRAE
BE

T
bR A

R BRUE RS

FBURP AN IREFEA
ok
REHEEUFA

EIEHIAEE

MBPEE

3
FEMCRAR ~ HAtEUR -
R MENTR
FEUEPAHTIIEE
M
A AR
BEHEERIFA
EEIHRITE
RITER
RERREFED

mBARE

RITERK
-G8
—

FERTER - EAREH 3R
Tefest 8
KRR

MBEEFE

13(a)

21
19
20
29(a)
22
28

24

25

26
29(a)

37,801

27,508

65,317
1,207,000

643,800
26,118
463
46,289
943,352
1,806,868

4,739,207

604,162
1,031,224

1,635,386

1,190,736
58,179

2,884,301

1,854,906

10,731

1,422,515

1,471,047
613,564
20,793
196,692
2,603,369

6,889,550
21,384

11,843,907

10,509

845,611

31,577

887,597
1,069,730
46,133
184,284
2,181,165

5,963,047
21,608

12,836

43,475
1,016,164
563,177

432
215,670

1,684,299
3,613,217

507,152
556,928

1,064,080

1,423,306
52,101

2,639,486

10,366,400

973,731



Consolidated Balance Sheet

22 N1 £
l%’j-; [ | ﬁ % ﬁ 1E il% At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A = Z— =4+ = A =+—B (JUB#1E)

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans
- Secured
- Unsecured

Other loans

Loan from ultimate holding
company

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND
RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders

of the Company

Non-controlling
interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 February 2013.

Chen Xiaoping
BUINE
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial

statements.

BEERRDAR

il

FRBAE
RITER

—AHR
—EHA

HMER
BEBRATER

ELHAAR

BEFHE

B R

[VUN
E3

AR B BRREHED

a3

JFER

25

27

28
29(b)

31(c)

13,698,813 11,340,131
3,104,148 3,012,588
1,264,817 1,016,341
4,368,965 4,028,929
- 55,350
- 122,022
659,439 472,266

5,028,404 4,678,567

8,670,409 6,661,564

403,841 367,546

7,945,918 5,822,478

8,349,759 6,190,024

320,650 471,540

8,670,409 6,661,564

BN T =F_A-+ N\BRMERFAE

NN
(S]]

Wang Tianyi
ERE
Director

EF
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v & =N
ﬁ % ﬁ {E i% At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A = ZF——%F+ = A=+—H (B K:1E)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Interest in subsidiaries
Other financial assets

Current assets
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Deposits with bank
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Bank loans

- Secured
- Unsecured

Other payables and accrued
expenses

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

- Secured
- Unsecured

Amounts due to subsidiaries

NET ASSETS
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13(b)
16
18

24

25

25

64,038
680,000
352,742

1,096,780

27,500
317,100

344,600

20,024

364,624

20,000
626,250

646,250
1,816,163

732,156

2,747
6,317,849
3,899

6,324,495

7,056,651

2,462,413

4,594,238

52,420

252,063

304,483

40,000

90,000

109,871

47,500

97,500

1,229
4,143,361
3,899

4,148,489

50,000

19,871

194,612

4,343,101

50,000

1,149,436

1,246,936

3,096,165



Balance Sheet

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

v & =N
ﬁ E:i ﬁ {E i% At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A = ZF— %+~ A=+—H(ABE1E)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES A X f# &

Share capital &
Reserves G
TOTAL EQUITY ERBRE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 February 2013.

Chen Xiaoping
BT
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial

statements.

403,841 367,546
4,190,397 2,728,619
4,594,238 3,096,165

EEEN T =F -+ \ARARSAE

T o

=\

Wang Tianyi
ERHE
Director

EFE

HNFEIBEEF27A ZMERUILEM B MK
Z—&kn o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

7 RE g A ) R
l%/]; = ﬁll ‘& For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) # & — & —

ZHEF A=+ -HEFEUANEBHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AR EREELNG
Capital
redemption
Share Special reserve Capital
capital reserve BN _reserve
BRA I BARE
$'000 $000 $ OOO
T T
Balance at 1 January 2011 A_T——
“A-Bz& 365,246 2,153,349 - 70 6,444
Changes in equity for 2011: *f**EZ
Profit for the year A@E%ﬂ - - - - -
Other comprehensive income  H2EKA = - - - -
Total comprehensive income ZERAERE = - - -
Dividend approved in respect of E3tELFEE
the previous year BE 31(b)(ii) - - - - -
Shares issued under share R IE BB 2
option scheme BIT2RH 31(c)(ii) 2,300 6,731 = = (1,115)
Transfer to reserve fund BREHES = = = - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling 23 T 38 %
shareholder H&‘%ZHQ g = - - - -
Dividend declared in respect of AEK@V Z
the current year ng 31(b)(i) - - - -
Balance at 31 December AT ——1F
2011 T-A=t+-H
i3 367,546 2,160,080 - 70 5,329
Balance at 1 January 2012 AZE—C
—B—HBz&8% 367,546 2,160,080 - 70 5,329
Changes in equity for —E - EER
2012: 29
Profit for the year REFEF - - - - -
Other comprehensive income  H2EKA = = - - -
Total comprehensive income ZERAESE = - - - s
Dividend approved in respect of EHtELEE Y
the previous year RE 31(o)i) - - - - -
Shares issued under share BEERETE
option scheme BT 2RH 31(c)(ii) 1,295 8,418 - - (2,029)
Issue of ordinary shares BITE R 31(c)(ii) 35,000 1,202,100 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund EESREES = = - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HE W%’/}ﬂ = = = - -
Capital contributions received by 3F1§WE
non-wholly owned subsidiaries ~ #£JE#% Hxﬂxi
from non-controlling H&HXFW%Z
shareholder HE® = - - - -
Capital refunded to JEERARFRE
non-controlling shareholder - - - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling EEZH%?H@H&
shareholders Hx%ZH = - - - -
Dividend declared in respectof BE= Af&ﬁﬁrz
the current year [dss 31(b)() - - - T T
Balance at 31 December RZZE——%+_A
2012 _+ A2 &8k 403,841 3,370,598 - 70 3,300

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial

statements.

HNFEI1BEEF27AE Z M AR ER B MK
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADAIRE RN
Goodwill
arising on Non-
consolidation Exchange Fair value Reserve Retained controlling
B erve reserve fur\d profits interests
#E DAERE #Ee REZA R ER
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
(1,800) 479,276 30,236 94,781 2,210,456 5,338,062 410,597 5,748,649
- - - - 801,441 801,441 43,823 845,264
= 223,168 (62,242) = = 170,926 18,851 189,777
- 223,168 (52,242) - 801,441 972,367 62,674 1,035,041
= = = = (64,802) (54,802) = (64,802)
= = = = = 7,916 = 7,916
- - - 32,801 (32,801) - - -
_ - - = - - (1,731) (1,731)
= = = = (73,509 (73,509) = (73,509
(1,800) 702,444 (22,0006) 127,582 2,850,785 6,190,024 471,540 6,661,564
(1,806) 702,444 (22,006) 127,582 2,850,785 6,190,024 471,540 6,661,564
- - - - 1,123,269 1,123,269 30,835 1,154,104
- (13,454) 17,862 - - 4,408 (579) 3,829
- (13,454) 17,862 - 1,123,269 1,127,677 30,256 1,157,933
- - - - (91,892) (91,892) - (91,892)
- - - - - 7,684 - 7,684
- - - - - 1,237,100 - 1,237,100
- - - 54,553 (54,553) - - -
820 - - - (820) - (82,713) (82,713)
- - - - - - 8,620 8,620
- - - - - - (73,908) (73,908)
_ - - = - - (33,145) (33,145)
- - - - (120,834) (120,834) - (120,834)

(986) 688,990 (4,144) 182,135 3,705,955 8,349,759 320,650 8,670,409
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

22 I Nrli =R
l%,j-; [ | ﬁ % {ﬁ H i% For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 2= —Z— —F+ - A =+—H I FE (BB E)

Operating activities EEEE)
Profit before taxation from BREEAI B A
- Continuing operations —RBRELEER 1,170,562 1,019,502
- Discontinued operation — IR PR 288,694 115,712
1,459,256 1,135,214
Adjustments for: e R
Depreciation e 5(c)&8(b) 52,521 27,221
Amortisation of intangible assets ‘A ESH 5(c)&8(b) 28,905 30,291
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land held ~ RELEHERFEERY
for own use under operating leases TS £ es i 3 5(c) 972 223
Finance costs HBER 5(a)&8(b) 314,942 246,622
Dividend income from listed securities EmEHFRSWMA 4 (8,804) (6,316)
Bank interest income RITRI B YA 488(b) (24,742) (13,783)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale FEBHFEEBE
securities 4 9,994 -
Net loss on sale of other property, plantand ~ HEEMYE  BEK
equipment Rl FER 4 28 943
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 Wi 8(d) (234,768) -
Loss on disposal of listed securities HE FTER B8 5(c) - 1,030
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes Ex@e o w2 (4,064) 10,558
Changes in working capital: BEEGES:
Increase in inventories FEEm (21,361) (21,146)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEUBR R  EthEUFIE -
deposits and prepayments e RIB[HE i*jJD (561,492) (6,103)
Increase in gross amounts due from ElhEEANTIIESBEE
customers for contract work A0 (945,077) (1,341,912)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, other FERTBREFR « EfbENFUE R
payables and accrued expenses FEEFZ2 AR D)2 (238,312) 537,196
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &&f(EH) /E4E RS (172,002) 600,038
Interest received [RE GRS 24,742 13,783
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERAEBHER (7,908) -
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) income tax 2 I/ A R FE
paid ([HEL)) PSR (134,756) (86,011)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RESTERT (EE)
operating activities EE7RE %8 (289,924) 527,810
Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of other property, plant Eﬁaﬁ{ﬁ%¥ [
and equipment RE A (621,395) (518,354)
Payment for additions of interest in leasehold iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ«‘ SHEREBRZ
land held for own use under operating leases & gz 2 I8 (6,786) =
Proceeds from government grant B s sUE - 10,963
Payment for additions of intangible assets 1B BB E 7 SIE (1083,320) (428,013)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (net of & B RA AFT152IE
cash disposed) (EHBRMEE2RE) 8(d) 648,570 -
Proceeds from sale of other property, plant and & &Y% - BE MR ERN
equipment EEOr] 196 122
Proceeds from disposal of listed securities HE EMBEHMERE - 217
Increase in loan receivable FEME LM (49,172) -
Dividend received from listed securities Bl ETEARE 8,804 6,316
(Increase)/decrease in deposits with bank BT EZROEM), B> (940,324) 54,120
Repayment from finance lease receivables BMERSRRFRER 437 399
Net cash used in investing activities B EBMEHE 2R EF (1,062,990) (874,230)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AR
m/]; | ) { [ H For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &% —

B ABERERAR » —F—

—EFFR

T F T A=t BUEFEOAESE)

Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans R ITE RS 0R 2,772,617 2,609,159
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER (1,814,727 (1,422,969)
Repayment of loan from ultimate holding ERREERARER

company (73,908) -
Repayment of other loans BREEMER (55,318) -
Capital contributions received by non-wholly ~ 3F2 BB A

owned subsidiary from non-controlling e FETE AR R R MR P A5

shareholder LA 8,620 =
Capital refunded to non-controlling shareholder JE3% % % 52 5 & X (73,908) -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT RS Z,TAIE 1,237,100 -
Proceeds from shares issued under share REBARETEIZTRD

option scheme F{3 7R 7,684 7,916
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 FMEETEZRL /(32 10) 11,066 (175,302)
Interest paid BRI (314,942) (246,622)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of BRAARARMRERE

the Company (212,726) (128,311)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B 1+ E3E AR AR SR A &, (33,145) (1,731)
Net cash generated from financing @& EEEL

_ activites ZBeF® 1 1458418 | 642,140

Net increase in cash and cash RekFeEEM

equivalents i1 e 105,499 295,720
Cash and cash equivalents at —A—HzHzk

1 January BEZEBY 1,684,299 1,341,485
Effect of foreign exchange rates ExZy o8

changes 17,070 47,094
Cash and cash equivalents W+-A=+—H

at 31 December HReRREEBY 24 1,806,868 1,684,299

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial HHRFE136E = Bz KA KSR BHRE

statements.

25 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej ?% %Ii il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies

set out below:

— investment property (see note 1(h)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale

securities (see note 1(g)).

1

¥
(a)

(b)

ZEETHOR

BTEH

HERBBRRELRB LSS HE
B ERC(EEMBRE L) » %
RHEEMEERNERSN(EEVR
EEAD  (FREHEADRRE BB
AR EF R RBECRFED) 2R E
MAmEL o Lo - WEMBHRERIFEBR
BEBMAXDABRARES MR
(TEMRADFERNORERE - A&
BT T2 BERREHIIMNT -

BB ARMEM T E T REE
Rl 2 KB BB EER) - BREER B
AEE RARA GG 5T B E R 6 £ 3
AR AT ERA - RABIM KBTS
HifE - AR YIRGER Ll AR K B 5 7
ZHE] RASERT KB B S E 2R ) M
BT HREES BB RN LS
W HmERA o BER SR EREKH
FZ1(C)A °

M mRmBUEE
HE_T——F+-_A=+—HILtFE
AV BRREBEARAREWE AR
A RN B 2 B N R RS o

AT BRERER A EELERESL

RAE - ETINEERBEHNARE
PR (FF R T X @5 R PR ) BR o)

— REWEGRMEIN) &

— DEAGERSZEMIA(RKE
1(g)) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %ﬁ il% szj‘ I—%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

—  Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

- Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes -
Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

I =E

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

ZEARRE)

(b) MBHRRBRELE(F)

(c)

B ETAKERBYBREER) 28
BHAFTREERBELHE - A5t ER
&’ MzFHE - A RBRREFER
RZEBEMBAHRZEE - BFE KA
ERAXEHRE - ZFhHt RBEBRRT
REBEERIEEEREERNZEFR/N
THEAEZERAMARMEL - A7
SRERBNEEBEERARER MR
BHEEREEZREERELHE 2
HE - ERBFHEBRINEETHF ©

AEBFERATEMET RAA B RKRIED
A - BRHEFZEBNEREESN
AFREEt A 2B RN E R - 10
ZEEH B EHTEE MR ARS
B - MBS At 2N E RN
& HARI FERR o

EEERERACEEMBEHRELER) KA
EHA B EBRRBERTEZHE -
AR EHHEERTEELEZIESR
B R EE2 o

BHBE 22D
EARHMARBEE T RACEBHHR
SRA) LT - R AEERARTY
BB ERER - B - U T A
AR AR BRENED

— (BRUBRELENDETIRZIER —

[T TR RE-NFEEEBE

— (BREEADE12RZ BT /A7
0 — BT - WEIEEEE
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Ej ?% %Ii il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain
disclosures to be included in the financial statements
in respect of transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised and for any continuing involvement
in transferred assets that are derecognised in their
entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity needs not
provide the disclosures for the comparative period
in the first year of adoption. The Group did not
have any significant transfers of financial assets in
previous periods or the current period which require
disclosure in the current accounting period under the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12, deferred tax is required to be
measured with reference to the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the entity
expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets in
question. In this regard, the amendments to HKAS 12
introduced a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of investment property carried at fair value
under HKAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered
through sale. This presumption is rebutted on a
property-by-property basis if the investment property
in question is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

1

TESFBRE)

(c) ERtBERZ28(#F)

LR B3 5 R P AE RIS AN & A HIRE R
R TR SRR -

(BBUMBRELERNFETRZEFT £
B LA - #%5E]
(BBUBREENS7HRZETHRE
BRMBHRET  RUAKRIEERZE
BEVKEE  URREESROEE
FRIEERZEEEEEZREELE
B U THhEBEEISHARELE - A
- REXRNEF - BERGAREL
BB EBEER - ZISEEIWB&HHF?
s N BARE O S TT R M IR IR B S R] A
Eémaatﬁﬁﬁaﬁ%w&ag,ZEﬂﬁ%éﬁ

(EBEERDFE125R ZMER] —[ A7
#/
WJF(%‘}%A%V@ ) B125R 2 RE -

EEVAR2RECEDRUOEFEE
FREEZTAMEEZHEERTIAG
c LT E - (BAEFHERDF125%
ZLHT%I)\T*IET%& B2 BRE : 1’
B(EEGTER) 405 —[KEYF ]
’Afﬁﬁ)\ﬁEZ&é(%%ZEEETEHﬁL
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %ﬁ i'% szj‘ I—%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EBE&:EE(£)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BtBR B8 (&)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are located in
the PRC. As a result of adopting the amendments to
HKAS 12, the Group determined that these properties
are held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time
and consequently the presumption in the amended
HKAS 12 is rebutted for these properties. As a result,
the Group continues to measure the deferred tax
relating to these properties using the tax rate that
would apply as a result of recovering their value
through use.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

(BEBGHERD B2 ERT -7
P(E)
FEBZREYELRTE - ERACE
BEFER) E125 2 EFT1E - AEH
HELLEWMETIA—EmEEARFE
A RN RREZRREO R REER
HREBBREMEME B AIMNE
B B MEFEYMEME - bt
RIEFICEB LD F125 2 REW
R Fit - ARESREALTME
TEBERAmEEEESEE - LIAMH
AR R EERERIA

(d) FfiE 2D AR IEERERS

MBARRASEEIZGHI2ER - EXE
BAEREERERBIUBREERE
NBEXBERAN SR - BIFEES -
REHEEGIER - @t MAKATEZ
BERRRE -

KRB AR ZIRE S BEHIFE R MR
BHARGEMBERRA - BEEEHS
REHAL -SEARABZAESRRER
ZUNEBARREZRGREE ZE
MARSERABNENERESMBERRE
ABUEEH - MY ELRFERYR - &E
NARBZRGMELEZ RERERR
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Ej ?% %Ii il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(p) or (q)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:tHKR(4Z)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) B AR RIFERER(E)

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled
entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

(e) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the associate’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

EARBEKRENB LA 2 EHIRER -
SEFHEEHMBLAR Z2MERA
R MAASEBESRBEERPER
B - MAREEHEE REZAM B AR
MARE 2 D KRR EERA
B MBS ERRMBEENRE KX
AR ZAAES(HER)REZE QT
HAREFEB 2 REREBREREZ
RAME ©

EARBIZEEREBRA  RHBRA
ZERERKAER S ERFERER (LM
FE1()) PR - B RARE B RIER
ERERIBRS

(e) B A E]

BERRRAKRELARRA A UHEE
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net

investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that associate, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former associate at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on

initial recognition of a financial asset.

(f) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition

date.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(f) Goodwill (continued)

EEEFTER
(nH BEGE)

R(E&)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1()).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

(g) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associate, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified

(9)
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as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs BE  FUEGEXZKRAIRELERTEE
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end mEPHER NEEREHR - 25H
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, STEAARE BZREREBmRT
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in R TlEnRTHER BB FHEIL

profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(v)(v)
and (vii).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in
the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(1)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(v)(vii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(l)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(v)(vi).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE&:tI% (#&)
(i) Other property, plant and equipment (i) Eb% - BMERRZE

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1()).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, from 20 to
50 years after the date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 10 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the

remaining term

of the lease,

if shorter
—  Furniture and fixtures 510 10 years
— Motor vehicles,

electronic equipment
and other fixed assets

3 to 12 years
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets represent operating rights of a
toll bridge, environmental water project and certain
alternative energy projects under Build-Operate—
Own (“BOO”) arrangements. The intangible assets
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 30 years. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

TEEFBERE)
(k) HEEEE)
() FEBBBZBEZHE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, except that land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely that the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(h)).

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

1

EEEFTEOR

R(E&)

(k) HEEE(E)
(if) AEEHE ]

MEASERBEEHEEERME
BEZBR  AIREHEEERZM
REeEHERMREZ ST HE
N AFEBRITAFTABRERT I
mﬁﬁ@%°%%%%m&%ﬁ%
BEMELZ W BARIBRIN o
WEz HE R IR s K AR
REENFOFEN 2D -

BIBRELEHEERFB 2 i 2 WK
AR EEHRNIZEGRE#
WMz Y EW D BRI EMERIBR I
(RMsE1(n)) °

() EERE

(1)

RAGEFSIRE R B b JEW A Z FER

KA B S S A AN P BR K E R D
BRFERSFZBRARBHFRENME
R B RIER B UK IRE RN & @

REBRETRN - NHABEST

EEEBFIEER FREZEREERE

BIEAEEETER AT —HEKZIE

18 = 1E 2 FAE BUR ¢

— BEBABERTHERE

— ERAY - Bl REEHERF
BaA% :

— [BEATREREESEITH
B4

81 5

— B W5 RESERRRY
REAREN B ERFABKTF
=% 2}

- BATAREZAAEBEAESE
H TR ENEKAE -



HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %Ii il% szj‘ —I%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries and associate,
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
1()(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(l)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

— For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
debtors included within debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets; and

— goodwill.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %Ii il% szj‘ —I%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories, mainly comprise biomass fuel, spare parts
and consumables used in the repairs and maintenance
of the waste-water treatment plants, waste-to-energy
power plants and solid waste landfill, are carried at
cost less provision for obsolescence (if any). Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost formula.
When inventories are consumed, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 1(v)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the balance sheet as the “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract work”
(as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet
paid by the customer are included under “Debtors,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %E( il% I}fj‘ I—%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1(u)(i), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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E\j ?% %ﬁ il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %Ii il% szj‘ —I%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

®

(i)

(ifi)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Ej ?% %Ii il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %ﬁ il% Igfj‘ —I%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:HEHEKR(E)
(t) Income tax (continued) (t) FrBRi(&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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Ej % %ﬁ il% szj‘ I—%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses in respect of that guarantee i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE &=t (&)

(v) Revenue recognition (v) WEHER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the Wz B Wk EIRREZ AR BERGE °
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is ERERRBHERAKREER - Bz
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the KB (feiE ) e Rl SETE 2B T -
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can et NI B ENE R R R R

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Revenue from construction contracts () EEELIWK
When the outcome of a construction contract BRI M AT RELR S K 2K
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue R AEHKEERATREREZF
and expenses are recognised in profit or loss A XTI E LA L R T AR o
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference TEREE T2 EE ETT 2R 2 KT
to surveyors of work performed. When the fily o AN BEF] SEMEET EE T RS
outcome of a construction contract cannot be R 2R - RAMERSFTE ST A a6
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised WEzEHRAEREE A= -
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that e zEERNKEERE K
are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a HREER ©

contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Revenue from service concession arrangement (i) RIEFTAE LR ZH W
Revenue relating to construction services under BERBETEEELHREZE
a service concession arrangement is recognised GG HEBREZEIETKEE
based on the stage of completion of the work R AAEEBERESES R
performed, consistent with the Group’s accounting SETEOR (R MIEE1(V)() — 5K < &
policy on recognising revenue from construction 2 ol AR 75 I 2R A 7N £ (B 4R it B R AR
contracts (see note 1(v)(i)). Operation or service %2 SRR - AR S B —I8 MR
revenue is recognised in the period in which BRIARERZ T REBLE 2
services are provided by the Group. When the BR# - BIWERFT G 2 RERERHE
Group provides more than one service in a RS 2 HEAREBEDE -

service concession arrangement the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair
values of the services delivered.

(iii) Toll bridge revenue (i) W EE W
Toll bridge revenue, net of business tax, is WERBRK S (MR EER) RE
recognised upon the passage of vehicles through ARz ERSELERR

the bridge.



Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %ﬁ il% szj‘ I—%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& G884 - FrE SR ELHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative energy
project operation services

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative energy
project operation services are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

Finance income
Finance income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(vii) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

1 FESHHER

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

R(#&)

(v) EBR(E)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

KERIREEIRIAEH ~ BRIRKFEIHH
RATEEIRIE B 2 8 & R W o>
RERFRERIER « REKKIER
L RIE R 28 & RIS Wi
HEHE R AR TS B R ©

BIEWA

MW ARBER R BRI B AR
R o

HEHEELZHET WA
RELEHERK ZEERARE
f%ﬁwuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%¢%
RoEMAER— FREARER
ﬁ%é?%?%Zﬂ &2 3 AIBR
She ERHZEERBNIBRERT
ER KT REZ BHEKRFRE
B —8#B17 e

(vii) %8

FEMHRE 2 BB WARBIRFEL
WO 3% R TR 2 R R R T 7R o
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vii) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Repairs and maintenance

(x)

Expenditures on major overhaul, repair and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is both the Company’s presentation currency and
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

1

(v)

FESEHBOR(Z)

WERER(E)

(vilf) XS 17 B %
fir AT & 32 HE E B %0 Y BR BK AT 7 B
© - BASEENEBBREBEA
MRS 2 164 - IR B804
FEEABERTER HEAEE
FEARI 2HPeRELERIZ
B —HiME RXAHRIERR P ER
Al  HEAEEEERA ZH
heRlEEMEEZREEY
B EESUAEHRITEER R
REEZAFRAFTFHTERRER
®R -

(w) BEREERE

(x)

Rfg
RS

CEEREBREZFAXRELR
SR A ©

HNEBRE
AEEETEB I BRERMAINIERY
RAEHEREEMEZERBERELZ
BREE([NEEYR FE - BHHRE
NEEIIR - BEBSARBZIIREE
T T AL K o

FRETZIINERFERFGERZEX
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE&=tEhs (&)

(x) Translation of foreign currencies (continued) (x) INEBRE(E)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before
1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

LR AFE ZIMNEFFEEHEEER
BENRIXZBZEXRFHE - U2 AR
FIRZINEFEHEEERBBENIAERE
NABEEMZEXRGRE

SRR 2 BTV HHZ B ER
mEREE  BEAERRARB(BERA
H_ETRF-A—BHZBEAZI
BERG KB MEE ZEE)IREREN
RZBHEZRREREE - EXZER
Htp 2 ERATHER  WEHRRE7
REZFZELFE REeH_TZThH
F-A-HAZABAZIIBEER KA
PELZHBAREBIBEEBERZ
ERERNE -

R ESNBEERBE - BRIERBEEH
Z RFTEXZBHR %ﬁ B
L El BN A



166

China Everbright International Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
E\j ?% %ﬁ il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(2)

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset are being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal. Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on the face
of the income statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
disposal of the assets or disposal groups
constituting the discontinued operation.

1

(v)

(2)

EEEFTER

BERA
HEA BEILEFTL - BRERFHE
BAAERERGEREEZEEERE
MZEERE  @ERIEREHREE
ZEMAA o HEERARELEZH
RSIER R

R(E&)

BEXRARTIREEZAXESL - tEEX
AEENEHEREEFEBER RN
HEMB O BEETR - BNERMER
EBREEZHBOAALN - EFMBEBBEERE
EREEFERERGILEMTZAE
BAB LB TR - BIE RS s
FIEEREBERAE -

#R _u:ﬁ«éé%z%
RIERERBERAEEETE 2 @A
- BEEBEERREREFHEAEH

HSREKBFERD - YRR —AZEHR
SRS D 2 BLERER -

EBRHEREOBER/RIEREE -
EEBROBERORIERER  F8HF
BaREE—HEE) BTk

_ zﬁzt%«é&%sz
B R

bR 7 18 & F) =k &S

- REEBKRLEERBZEES
6 48 T B B AR 2 R R 1R M 2R S S
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(aa) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

0)

(ii)
(i)

An

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

1

EEE
T2

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

TR

R(E&)

(aa) EAEEA L
(a) FATHHIHBREKE REAE

= A

T F & T ZAE ] R 1F

(7N

YR NS B 2 PR ek LR
E

HAEBERBEATESN K

BARERAEEFRRZIER
EEABR -

AIXERR

BN 55 B A RE R

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

ZERMAEESR KB ZK
BEREI(MNE]RA - HEAF
KA RWMEB R B REEEE)

e —EERAS— %wZ%W
REHAELE (A KB
ST 28 AT 2B A
AHABRE) -

Hbh—AEBASF=TERBZE
LR ME—BERB/ZXE=T
ERBERT -

ZERRREHEENTAKEREE
IAKERGERES CEERE

BigEAETE -

ZEBX (B AHERZ ALE
B EEH]

(vii) R (@)() Fr BB AL H EEAEE K
E’ﬁﬂZ}\i HEZEE (X
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build—Operate-Transfer
(“BOT”), Transfer—-Operate—Transfer (“TOT”) and BOO
arrangements in respect of its environmental energy
projects, environmental water projects, alternative
energy projects and toll bridge project.

1

2

TREABOR(E)

(ab)’ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ“:

BAMRMBREMEHRZ S HEE
Hi% TRERSEERTFAEES
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BRENMARER LR KB MR
B AR E 25 -
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(a) EEAAEEEHBREEZBR

B
BB AR AR B HRR - B
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2
(continued)
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

& B RIS ()

(a) EERAFEEET BERRBHEZ AR

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

The Group concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are
service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12,
because the local government controls and regulates
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry
of concession right agreement, the infrastructure
has to be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is
used in the service concession arrangements for its
entire or substantial useful life.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13(c), 15, 30 and 32 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of investment properties, goodwill
impairment, fair value of share options granted and
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1(n) and 1(v)(i),
revenue and profit recognition on an incompleted
project is dependent on estimating the final
outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached, the “Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work” as disclosed in note 20 will
not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet
date, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.

(b)

ST HE(E)

RIS AT SR ()
ANEBRABFEBOTRTOTRHENE T
BOOLHHY B BB (BB MRS 2E
ZES)RE)F125 THRISFIEE
B AASMKRFEGHTEESE M
AR7% - AN B NEETEE RS B R
EEER - IBOTRTOTLZHEM S @ &
SIS R HE  BEERER
BEEEEEWBRTME - tBOOZ B
ME @ ERGFFECERETHETER
2 ELE AR A B s K B E BB ] fE
FREHER -

EYHEHETREM ZE&H
Bf3E13(c) ~ 15 ~ 30 X328 B LK E Y
XZHE- - BERE BEROERERD
nEREMTAGE BRERERREZ
B BREELRBETEEM 2 M=
ZHEBAMT

() BEEA
40 = 5T B MY EE 1(n) B2 1 (v) (i) P
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2

(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
the customers to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the receivables, customer credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial
conditions of customers were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of investments in subsidiaries, associate, fixed
assets, intangible assets and other financial
assets may not be recoverable, these assets may
be considered impaired, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of
these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. It is difficult to estimate precisely fair values
because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.

SN REE ()

(b) EREEHRFIREM Z25GH(F)

(i)

(if)

RIFRRZ FEIRER
AEEEREFENEEMTRRA
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2 &t EE (&)
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) BEHHEHRIREME ZEHB(EZ)

(iv) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassess these estimates at each
balance sheet date. Additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Turnover

Continuing operations

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
environmental energy project operation (waste-to-
energy power plants, industrial solid waste landfill
and hazardous waste landfill), environmental water
project operation (waste-water treatment plants
and reusable water treatment plants), alternative
energy project operation (methane-to-energy power
plants, photovoltaic energy projects, biomass power
generation plant and waste water source heat pump
projects), environmental technology and construction
management, property investments and investment
holding.

(iv) ATz
EBIMSHRBEIRHEETRS 2
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38 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEBROBME(E)

(continued)

(a) Turnover (continued) (a) &% (Z)
Continuing operations (continued) FEASE R ()
Turnover represents the revenue from construction EHEEREREERE WS « REERRE
services, revenue from environmental energy projects, JRIBE ~ RIRKBIEE RFLIRIBE 2
environmental water projects and alternative energy BEBERBWE - BBRARBSWEA -
projects operation services, finance income and rental FAEELEXEFETRANZTEEZRA
income. The amount of each significant category of AR BN T
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as
follows:

Revenue from environmental energy project IR{RaE/RE B &iE R
construction services Wz 932,978 1,536,109
Revenue from environmental water project IR{R/KF5IE B i & IR
construction services Wz 530,231 128,876
Revenue from alternative energy project ¥EERTE B 2 RE
construction services W25 138,741 453,626
Revenue from environmental energy project IR{R&E/RE B B4 R
operation services U z5 453,654 347,148
Revenue from environmental water project IB{R/K1GIE B B4 RS
operation services Wz 502,789 431,275
Revenue from alternative energy project FEeIRIE B iEE R
operation services Wz 256,097 61,743
Finance income B 594,994 526,616
Gross rentals from investment properties 2 &Y% S 4E5E 454 1,304
3,409,938 3,486,697
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(a) Turnover (continued)

Continuing operations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has transactions with two PRC local government
authorities which individually exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues. The revenue from these two PRC
local government authorities during the year ended
31 December 2012 amounted to $979,723,000
(2011: $432,526,000) and $361,097,000 (2011:
$114,384,000) respectively.

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and
operation services, alternative energy project
construction and operation services and finance
income derived from local government authorities
in the PRC amounted to $3,028,499,000 (2011:
$3,432,212,000) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The revenues are included in “Environmental
energy project construction and operation”,
“Environmental water project construction and
operation” and “Alternative energy project construction
and operation” segments as disclosed in note 3(b) to
the financial statements. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in
note 32(a).

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following six reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

- Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of waste-to-energy
power plants, industrial solid waste landfill and
hazardous waste landfill to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

3

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

LEERBND RIS (&)

(a)

(b)

BEBEE)

FFAEAS S XS ()
HE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—B1I%E
& NS B R E R B E b I A R i
TR BRRSGZHAEE KGR
10% - BHE-_E——F+=-_A=+—
BIEFE  RE LA ME+SHE
T # B8 2 W= 2 Bl & 979,723,000
7T (=& — — 4 : 432,526,000 7T )
% 361,097,000 ot ( = & — — &
114,384,0007T) °

BHE—_Z——F+ZHA=+—HLHF
[ REFHE BT R 2 IRIREETR
HEREREERBYE « BERAKB
HEEAERELRBE WS « FeeRE
BRERELRBEKERMBIBAR
%4 £ 3,028,499,000 L ( = F — — 4
3,432,212,0007T ) - B W =T A [ IR
REERIEE 2EREE |DE - [FRIRK
MEERERESZ | DR [ FeeRE
BEEkiES | D3 (F R RRM T
3(b) - FAZERFERZEFREER
b 2 A B H R EE32(a)

D EEWE

AEE 2 EBREFEABD RS ES
BLIAER - HBAAABHERD
B RARFHETAEERS EE2ELE
ARz —EHR  ARERET TN
B8 F s 5 3 - AEBEIL WA GHE
BEAT - ER THATHRESH -

- RRERBEBRENREZ ' LEH
DEBBRESEL N RBEEMR
TXREREYEHESNEREREY
HIBS - ARBBZERE W - &
&R s U K AU -
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EHEBEDIHBE(E)
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEERE (E)

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction, upgrade and operation of
waste-water treatment plants, reusable water
treatment plants and surface water treatment plant
to generate revenue from construction services,
revenue from operation services as well as finance
income.

Alternative energy project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of methane-to-energy
power plants, photovoltaic energy projects,
biomass power generation plant and waste water
source heat pump projects to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

Environmental technology and construction
management: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection technology
research projects and the provision of construction
management services to generate management
and consultancy fee income.

Property investment: this segment engages in
the leasing of office premises to generate rental
income and to gain from the capital appreciation of
the properties’ values in the long term.

Infrastructure construction and operation: this
segment engages in the construction and
operation of a toll bridge to generate revenue from
construction service and toll fee revenue.

%%KFEE@L&L i
DEFEBEE  BCEREZISKE
B - KB R R EE R b 3R OK R
EE - UARIREERG KR B2
PR 755 W2 2 B AL o

MeeRABRENRESE : XKD

HEBRERELBREER - &

RBEEIRA - EWEREEERNT

Kﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ'uﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁw
B R W MR AU

BRMEEIREER kXKD E
BEBRETRANMRMBEIRR RIBH
THREBRY - ARIREREREM
ERWA -

WMERE - WEBHREEEER
REBAM - URBRESEA - AR
RYEEBEZ RETETRIUKE -

HE@ElEs  EBHIMESR
REREEKRERBR  URINEZEE
AR U as S W B BRI aR o
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 BEAELDHBMmE(E)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) D B3R (&
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () HEbRE BERBE

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, interest in associate, deferred
tax assets and current assets with the exception
of goodwill, investments in other financial assets,
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current taxation,
deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, with the
exception of intercompany payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment provision of
construction management services, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including
technical know-how, is not measured.

LD BRRAE LD BRERZERD
EmMs  AREZRSEEERT
JIREERZ[ATRED A ZE
B BENMAE:

DHBEBRMBRLEE B
BE BEnn#ns  BEEREAER
ERRBEE  MHEIEEHE RN
HPHBEEZRE  KEARA
Bz BURBAREMEEREE - 7
MEESESEERN D2 EHE
BELZARHRE  BELEHEE
&~ RN - BB RERE
AERMASESMERERZE
E HTEEREEAQRMZEN
TR e

WakRAXTI2ERTRE D BHA
Bz WaEREEZRXHERH
D EEMEE Z T EEHM
DEEEMOE - AT - BRBED
BREREHE cZEEERBEIN - K—
DEA S —DEREZ B (BEE
EHBRAATAEERA -
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter-segment revenue from construction
management services), interest expense from
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.

3

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Py
L
=

B EwE (&)

(b) &I E (&)

(1)

SEIRE  BEREBE(E)

ARBESHRBANZRTIARNA
[EBITDA] - BD [BR A B ~ BiIE
WERBHEMEN] - RTHE
EBITDA « ZN& B 2 Z 7 i 57 /= B 7
SEREMSH2EEB (flan: Z=E
- ZEEAMe REMBRQ RS
EITEAKA) 1B — HFHEE -

BrE R G BEBITDAZ & 2 & &
h - BERENEREBEBATIEE
ZOMER: KE(PREREEE
EBRE O BEKE) FHBE
BEERBEMNERIRE D HE
ERERACERDDBEE I
E HiERIEE -
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 BEBEDIME(Z
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 EBIRE ()

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () ZEbxE BEERAEEE
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HEZZ——FrR-_FT—F+=
segments as provided to the Group’s most A=1+—HLEEE  A&EEBEHRER
senior executive management for the purpose of SRR BRAETEMAREE R
resource allocation and assessment of segment RERERHEZATREDHER
performance for the years ended 31 December N

2012 and 2011 is set out below.

Discontinued
operation

Environmental Environmental Environmental
energy project water project e ec technology and Infrastructure
construction and { construction construction and

operat ] operation

$000
v

Reveniefomextemal  KESNFER
customers ey 1,741,898 12,160,866 (1,267,442 | 804,505 | 400,144 | 520,022 - - 454 | 1,304 3,409,938 13,486,697 | 73,564 | 176,866 |3,483,502 (3,663,563
nter-segment revene S EENE - - - - - - | 389,209 | 277,934 - - | 389,229 | 277,934 - - | 389,229 | 277,934

Reportable segment
Tevenue

1,741,898 |2,160,866 | 1,267,442 | 804,505 | 400,144 | 520022 | 389,229 | 277,934 454 1,304 |3,799,167 (3,764,631 [ 73,564 | 176,866 3,872,731 (3,941,497

Reporatle segment pioft - 285258
EBITDA) BFIEBITDA) | 996,743 | 820,373 | 442,860 | 440454 | 205,157 | 98752 | 255,529 | 196,607 436 I

=

1,900,725 11,056,947 | 69,012 | 149,164 (1,969,737 | 1,706,111

Interest income from bank {77548

deposts WA 3,051 3177 11,662 1,581 391 a0 234 1410 - S| 17498 6610 4 9| 17920 7981
Inferest expense et 136,452 | 111883 | 78721 | 103499 | 17852 | 4013 | 34651 | 4413 - - | 267676 | 223808 | 2302 5844 | 269,978 | 229,652
Depreciation and hERgH

amortisation 6493 526 9935 | 6491 | 43881| 12581 | 8251 | 4,966 1 -| 68561 | 20304 | 10889 | 25801 | 79450 | 55,105

Addtions to fixed assets ~ EEETAER
and intangble assets ElEE 11,08 | 8604| 89,648 | 50749 | 97,014 | 830,711 | 531,924 | 56,081 -

o
=

120,614 | 946,235 1

o
=

720,621 | 946,289

Additons to ron-curent ~ EEE W
porton of other BREERE
recelvables and deposits  WEFANT
and gross amounts
due from customers for 3¢5
contract work 1,288,244 1813718 | 743,765 | 394,177 | 60,313 | 28,966 - - -

2,092,322 2,236,861 -

2,092,322 2,236,861

Reportable segment

assets 7,929,219 16,134,093 (4,455,279 (4,170,449 |1,624,461 |1450,728 (1,077,356 | 745,437 | 110,087 | 25,1

=

115,196,402 12526717

700,016 [15,196,402 13226733

Reportable segment
liabilties

2,722,138 13,098,093 |1,492,508 (1,570,190 | 566,215 | 731,683 | 864870 465433 | 3,083 | 2468 (5,638,814 (5,868,367 200977 (5,638,814 16,089,344
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38 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 BEHELDHBMmE(E)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIE (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BTHED W - BF - EER
profit, assets and liabilities BEZHE
2012 2011
S —T——F
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation operations  operation
& &1k & &1k Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
v v aw Tr Tr
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment BT HRED Pz
revenue 3,799,167 73,564 3,872,731 | 3,764,631 176,866 3,941,497
Elimination of inter-segment 345 Efilzs
revenue (389,229) - (389,229) | (277,934) - (277,934)
Consolidated turnover IMAEEE 3,409,938 73,564 3,483,502 | 3,486,697 176,866 3,663,563
Profit AR

Reportable segment proft  EFBEAWER | 1,000725 69,012 1969737 | 1556047 149,164 1,706,111
Elimination of inter-segment  ##5 HE &7
orofit (315,967) - (315967) | (233782) S (233782

Reportable segment profit ~ REAEEHRE
derived from the Group’'s P2 BT %

external customers DEEFH 1,584,758 69,012 1,653,770 | 1,323,165 149,164 1,472,329
Depreciation and WEREH

amortisation (71,509)  (10,889)  (82,398) |  (31,934)  (25801)  (57,735)
Finance costs HBER (312,640) (2,302)  (314,942) | (240,778) (5,844)  (246,622)
Gain on disposal of HERENRZ

subsidiaries Wozs - 234,768 234,768 - - -
Unallocated head office and K72 #7147 K

corporate income PEHA 17,059 - 17,059 7.627 = 7,627
Unallocated head office and K72 #7147 K

corporate expenses TERY (47,106) (1,895) (49,001) (38,578) (1,807) (40,385)

Consolidated profit before ~ &FABRRATZFI
taxation 1,170,562 288,694 1,459,256 | 1,019,502 115,712 1,135,214
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38 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 HEBERHBHE(E)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) P& (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BTHED W -~ BF - EER
profit, assets and liabilities (continued) BlEZHEE)

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BATYTHREDHEE 15,196,402 13,226,733
Non-current other financial assets FERBHMMISEE 196,692 184,284
Goodwiill GES 20,793 46,133
Unallocated head office and corporate &% B 422 &) &z

assets rEREE 1,169,227 422,467
Consolidated total assets HEBEMRTE 16,583,114 13,879,617
Liabilities affE
Reportable segment liabilities ATHREDIEE 5,638,814 6,089,344
Unallocated head office and corporate R 422 a) &

liabilities TtEBE 2,273,891 1,128,709
Consolidated total liabilities EafEes 7,912,705 7,218,053
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Geographic information

3 ZEXRBMLOBWE(E)

(b) DEIE (&)
(i) 2 B

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers, (ii) the Group’s fixed
assets and intangible assets and (iii) the Group’s
non-current portion of other receivables and
deposits and non-current portion of gross amounts
due from customers for contract work. The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on the

TREIBRAE)AEERBINAEF
ZWzm - (AR EZ BEEEENRE
B B R (iii) AN 55 2 B ftb WO SR TR
Rz 2 FAHHOREREFE
W TRRFIABBELZIEB D 2P
EHE - BP AR R R IRE
WHE D  BEMEMRZEEER
RAAEE (LB EEEMS) @ A
Kty Bz % 2 PRt B (DA EL A 8
WHBEkEE  BYEEREEE

physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed PEHNIRFBRENS)ED -
assets, and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of other receivables
and deposits, intangible assets and gross amounts

due from customers for contract work.

Non-current portion of
other receivables and
deposits and gross
amounts due from
customers for
contract work
Fixed assets and EiENHER
intangible assets e REREPEH
ErEERENEE  IEFELEZENSHDH

Revenues from
external customers
RENREP W&

2012 2011 2012 2011 2011

T—-f % T—-f % T—F
$'000 $'000 ' $000 $000
T T T T

Continuing operations ¥ EZELHK

Hong Kong &

(place of domicile) (FfExnE) - 505 56,844 57,463 - =
Other parts of the PRC R E A b 3,402,041 | 3,483,296 | 1,961,090 | 1,273,198 | 9,492,919 | 8,144,212
Germany BB 7,897 2,896 66,677 76,917 - -

3,409,938 | 3,486,697 | 2,084,611 | 1,407,578 | 9,492,919 | 8,144,212

Discontinued operation &1 B& ¥k
Other parts of the PRC M E & 73,564 176,866 - 549,749 - -

3,483,502 | 3,663,563 | 2,084,611 | 1,957,327 | 9,492,919 | 8,144,212
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER LOSS
Continuing operations

4

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

H o es S E At &5 18
FEREXEL

Other revenue HAth U 2%

Bank interest income IRITH BULA 24,320 12,812

Dividend income from listed securities EMRBHEZRERA 8,804 6,316

Government grant* B e 1,057 1,144

Value-added tax refund** 18 (F Fi aR 56,660 32,381

Others Hih 16,088 6,074
106,929 58,727

*%

Government grant of $1,057,000 (2011: $1,144,000)
was granted during the year ended 31 December 2012
to subsidise certain environmental energy, environmental
water and alternative energy projects of the Group in the
PRC, of which the entitlement was unconditional and
under the discretion of the relevant authorities.

Value-added tax refund of $56,660,000 (2011:
$32,381,000) was received during the year ended 31
December 2012 in relation to environmental energy project
operations and alternative energy operations of the Group
in the PRC. The entitlement of the value-added tax refund
was unconditional and under the discretion of the relevant
authorities.

*%

REBEE=ZZT——F+=-A=+—HILHF
[ AEBEEE BT /HEI£1,057,000
TT(ZZF——4F : 1,144,0007T) * LA
BAEEE THERRER  BRAKE
MEEEIRIBE - BRAMBE T EGHE
B WA EEERIEREER

REBE-_T——F+-_A=+—81
FE ASEEFPEZRRERE
EHEEMFERELZEBERBIEE
i iR ¢ 56,660,000 70 ( = &F — — F
32,381,0007T) ° A BAIEER R &
IR - WA B BB EIBAEEN

Other loss

Net loss on sale of other property, plant and

equipment BB FEE
Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities 5% & A 1B &2
(note 18) (PffsE18)

H {8518

HEEMYE - BEK

28 943

9,994 =

10,022 943

181



182 China Everbright International Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
E\j % %& il% I}fj‘ %AEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBSN » i & BIAERHE)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BREAIZF
Continuing operations BERSEER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREATEMDIER(GTA) -

(a) Finance costs (a) HEEH
Interest on bank advances wholly repayable ARRFNEHEER
within five years ZRITERZFE 144,701 100,676
Interest on other bank advances and other EMIRITER R H AL
loans EBRZHE 167,939 140,102
312,640 240,778
(b) Staff costs (b) B TR A
Contributions to defined contribution IE%ET/ LRGRIRETE]
retirement plan R 18,503 16,498
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - TERHMETF 254,744 220,320
273,247 236,818
(c) Other items (c) EfMIEE
Amortisation g
— interest in leasehold land held for —IRBECEHERE
own use under operating leases = ﬁﬁZTﬁE tib
WE2E 972 203
— intangible assets —BREAE 18,107 4,726
Depreciation e 52,430 26,985
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss P (W) &8
YHER (10,601) 415
Auditors’ remuneration A G
— audit services —BZR% 3,650 3,250
— other services — H AR 6 6
Operating lease charges: minimum lease KEHEER -
payments =EEEEH
— hire of premises —MFEHEE 5,343 9,070
Loss on disposal of listed securities e EmESEE - 1,030
Research and development costs i 3t I A B A AR 11,793 5,078
Rentals receivable from investment FEWIR B M BIR
properties less direct outgoings H#EF H45,0007T
of $45,000 (2011: $535,000) (—Z——%
535,0007T) (409) (769)
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6 SHARE OF RESULT OF ASSOCIATE 6
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group’s share
of accumulated loss of associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued.

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax ZNEAF1E — B8 155

B BRAKEME

ikl /NETE
RZE——FR =T —ZZF+A=+—
&N E R EEBA
REBALEE AR 2w ASE 2 #Em

ERET

I BBHERE — T HEBAE -

7 RAEBmRIAEHR

(a) REBBRATHHREHRA

_Over-provision in respect of prior years = BEFEEEAN | ol ORI (612)
Current tax — PRC Income Tax RNEAREIE — P B AT 1S A
Provision for the year RNEEEBE 144,528 91,544
(Over)/under-provision in respect of WA FERE
prior years (BFE) TR (19,427) 23,425
125,101 114,969
Deferred tax EIER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary T ERES
_ diferences S 180,051 | 175,593
305,152 289,950
Representing: K
Income tax expense from continuing BEEEERZ
operations Frigfisz 266,554 254,713
Income tax expense from discontinued Sl S v
operation TSR X 38,598 35,237
305,152 289,950
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7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income

statement represents: (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong sustained a loss for Hong

Kong Profits Tax purpose.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard
tax rates or fully exempt from income tax under the

relevant tax rules and regulations.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

7 #E1E

(a) ZFEBEBERARNAEHRE :

N2
<
punnn

EHABIA -
BHLE R -

RZFISH(E)

(%)

HREE—T——FR-_T——F+=
A=+ —HLFEAEEZEBERR
B ULk AN 5 (B 30 4 5 A B T

o B S 75 2 B TR IR FE SR AV B R DA R B3R

ﬁ}‘iiﬁ%%%ﬁ“ FA - 7FE'<%FE§§
BMBERRER ETHEMBRRA
BIRER K 250%%&%$ﬁlﬁ‘k§¥ﬁﬁ i
HIAFA R °

(b) RERABRAE 2B A HESTR
Rz H R

Profit before taxation BREERT &I 1,459,256 1,135,214
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LRAAEH S e AER
calculated at the rates applicable to ZEAFGHRER
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned BRI BAFE 2B
% BIIE 333,004 273,654
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 B IR
e 25,342 15,266
Tax effect of non-taxable income IEREMWA 2T IB 2 (7,596) (2,754)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AIZERAHEMRIEREE
exemption in the PRC BB HIERE (88,874) (60,863)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KEAMERERZ
recognised A EIE 2 1B
A 10,336 6,388
Tax effect of withholding tax on i"’iﬁhﬁﬁ S BB
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries NaARDIRER] 2
BIgE e 52,367 35,446
(Over)/under-provision in respect of WA FEREE
prior years (BF),/ T2 (19,427) 22,813
Actual tax expense ERHIES H 305,152 289,950
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8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 25 May 2012, the Company entered into sale
and purchase agreements with an independent third
party to dispose of the Group’s 80% equity interest in
and shareholder’s loan to, Greenway Venture Limited
(“Greenway”) at a total consideration of approximately
$657,629,000. The subsidiaries of Greenway include
China Everbright Road & Bridge (Fujian) Investment Limited
and Fuzhou Guang Min Road and Bridge Construction &
Development Company Limited. The principal activities
of Greenway and its subsidiaries are construction and
operation of a toll bridge in the PRC. The disposal was
completed in June 2012.

Accordingly, the consolidated operating results of
Greenway and its subsidiaries for the period ended 31
May 2012 are presented as discontinued operation in the
financial statements. The presentation of comparative
information in respect of the year ended 31 December
2011 has been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentations.

(a) Results of the discontinued operation:

8

BRI TR
A—E——_FRAA-_+HH ARFIHEE
VE=ZFIVEEHE  HEAEER
Greenway Venture Limited([ Greenway |) &9
80% % #E N £ & F Greenway 2 R & 7K
@ KB & #)657,629,000 7T ° Greenway Z
MEBARBREFBEXAKRB(RE)KRES
BARREMNLEEEEEAZERAR -
Greenway X EffB R Al 2 EZ XK AR F
BlEEREE KK ERBR BHELESE
BN ——FXBEK -

At FEF B HREKA - Greenway K& E K B
NBEIZEBREBE-_"ZT——FAA=1+—~1
IR AR EEERT AR IEEEXE
B -BE_Z——F+_A=1T—RHILFE
ZHRERNEIEETHE  UAFAEEEF
BEZ23AR -

(a) RILAEERE 2 KA

1 January 1 January
2012 to 2011 to
31 May 31 December
2012 2011
—ET——F
—H—HB=®
—E——F Z
AA=+—8H +=—A=+—H
$’000 $’000
Tz Tt
Revenue & 73,986 177,885
Expenses A (20,060) (62,173)
Profit before taxation MRF R Z | 53,926 115,712
Income tax FriSt (13,598) (35,237)
Profit from operation REXRE 2 BN 40,328 80,475
Gain on sale of discontinued operation HERFKEEEK Y
(net of tax) Weas (Bri%12) 209,768 -
Profit for the period/year NERRS S EE AT 250,096 80,475
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8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 8 MR EER(E)
(b) Results of the discontinued operation is arrived (b) %iﬁéﬁ%%ﬁZ%ﬁE?ﬂ B (5t A) -

at after charging/(crediting):

1 January 1 January
2012 to 2011 to

31 May 31 December
2012 2011
—F——F —F——F

—A—BZ —A-BE
—F——F —F——F
FA=+—H8 +—A=+—H

$’000 $’000
T FIT
() Finance costs: () MBER:
Interest on bank advances wholly BARAFAZEEER
repayable within five years ZIRITERZFE 2,302 5,844
(i) Staff costs: (i) BIAA :
Contributions to defined contribution TE R TR K
retirement plan RTEIHEK 45 107
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fre - ITEREMEN 754 2,204
799 2,311
(i) Other items: (i) EMbIEE -
Bank interest income SRITH BUT A (422) (971)
Amortisation of intangible asset M E Y 10,798 25,565
Depreciation e 91 236
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8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 8
(c) Cash flows of the discontinued operation:

RIEEEXE(E)
(c) RIEEEXB RO E

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

1 January 1 January
2012 to 2011 to
31 May 31 December
2012 2011
—T—_F —T——F
—H—B= —H—HB=%
—T—_F —T——F
AA=+—H +t=ZH=+—H
$’000 $'000
Tt Tt
Net cash generated from KRB TEE 2
operating activities R FHE 32,124 139,518
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEEL,
investing activities (B 2B & F8E 648,563 (46)
Net cash used in financing activities mMEEEMER
4 F5m (46,838) (123,053)
Net cash flows for the period/year ANEARE S EE
ReFRE 633,849 16,419
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8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
(d) Effect of disposal on the financial position of

the Group:
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8 WRIREXRB(E)

(d) HESEHAEENBRR 2HE

$'000
Tt
Net assets disposed of: EHEBEFE
Fixed assets E T EE 1,515
Intangible assets mEEE 533,419
Goodwill s 25,340
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURBE TR ~ H b fE W FIE -
prepayments & RIERRIE 32,394
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITFER 158,709
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEY 9,059
Bank loans RITER (85,484)
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEMBRFR - EfbEMFRIA K
expenses et &R (4,305)
Current taxation ARERFRIE (4,456)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEG B (16,915)
Loan from non-controlling shareholder FEIEARIR B (47,142)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M (82,713)
Net identifiable assets ARl EE TR 519,421
Exchange reserve realised on disposal SR IR 2 [E N (96,560)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k= by YNGR 6y 234,768
657,629
Satisfied by: TR
Cash consideration HERE 657,629
Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect BB EHE L 712 H LA
of the disposal of subsidiaries JEEESNT
Cash consideration RENRE 657,629
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FTHERERIREEEY (9,059)
Net cash inflow RemAFEE 648,570
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 RIEBRB(ATUEN ) F£1611(15% 52 == B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ST :

Salaries,
allowances REEIENE
and benefits scheme
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions

fees  FHe o 2B bonuses RIKETE
550 REWVR WETEA X
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr T T

Executive directors  #178%

Tang Shuangning EEE - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao EE - 1,704 - - 1,704
Li Xueming (note (a)) 28 (M) - 524 = = 524
Chen Xiaoping BR/NE - 2,175 4,800 - 6,975
Wang Tianyi IXE - 1,585 1,600 = 3,185
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond & 352 - 1,325 1,500 140 2,965
Cai Shuguang RN - 1,312 1,000 21 28338
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive

directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip (note (b)) $B/=#8 (Pt (o)) 180 30 = = 210
Mar Selwyn SRk 200 55 - - 255
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 200 55 - - 255
Zhai Haitao 23 200 55 - - 255

780 8,845 8,900 161 18,686
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEM

(&)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions

fees  Fe 2 bonuses RIRGTE
BEEe  REDAR BB K
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T

Executive directors  #178%

Tang Shuangning FEE - 30 - - 30
Zang Qiutao EE - 1,704 - - 1,704
Li Xueming ZER - 1,699 - - 1,699
Chen Xiaoping RN - 2,175 4,450 - 6,625
Wang Tianyi IXE - 1,590 1,500 37 3,127
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond & 4582 - 1,330 1,400 135 2,865
Cai Shuguang = - 771 849 19 1,639
Non-executive FHTES
director
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B 180 30 - = 210
Independent BUFMTES
non-executive
directors
Mar Selwyn Bk 190 50 = = 240
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey THE 180 50 - - 230
Zhai Haitao 2o 180 50 - - 230
730 9,479 8,199 191 18,599
Notes: BiEE -
(@) Mr. Li Xueming resigned as executive director and Vice-Chairman (@ RZZ—=—FWA=+HH  FERLEHFIHN
on 25 April 2012. TESRENEFE -
(o) Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip was re-designated as independent b) R=FT—=—F+=-A+=8 ' ' BLBEEATHE

non-executive director on 13 December 2012. SIEMITES o
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10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four
(2011: five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other individual (2011: Nil) are as follows:

B = o BB B A £
ERE&SFMENA LS  HEhmi(=
T——F:AR)REFT UM FE
HRME BT —R(ZF——F : &)@
BIATZ S AEFIBTN T

Salaries and other emoluments e M EMINE 307 =
Discretionary bonuses NI TE4T 2,088 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 21 -

2,416 -

The emoluments of the individual (2011: Nil) with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

Emolument band B4R Bl

BERSSHFHENAL(ZT——F 82
LMEBRATEE :

2012 2011
—E-_F —E——F
Number of Number of

individual individual
AEK A

$2,000,000 - $2,500,000 2,000,0007T -
2,500,0007T
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11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11 RQ B IR A & A
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders RRARARREGEHFEEBNEBERF
of the Company includes a profit of $396,805,000 (2011: 396,805,000 5t ( — T — — & : {8
loss of $22,624,000) which has been dealt with in the 22,624,0007C) BEFIARRA B 2 IS HREA o
financial statements of the Company.
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s LS BERARAFENRA,(EE)Z

profit/(loss) for the year: HAR

Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) attributable 2 I AZARA 7 2 B 7

to equity shareholders dealt with in the WMERAZARREIRE
Company’s financial statements G iR E BRI, (BE) 396,805 (22,624)

Final dividends from a subsidiary attributable  Fh @7 B B E B T
to the profits of the previous financial years, SEE - W AR E
approved and paid during the year Wz B A A

REARR B 69,210 -

Company’s profit/(loss) for the year (note 31(a)) AR BRERNZ

BF(&18)
(Ff7E31(a)) 466,015 (22,624)
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity BN KA AR BRI SRS

shareholders of the Company are set out in note 31(b). 31(b) °
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 ZIR&F
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $1,123,269,000 (2011:
$801,441,000) and the weighted average number of
3,788,297,000 ordinary shares (2011: 3,666,560,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BRERRFTIRBAQREBEBRBRE
JE {5 & 7 1,123,269,000 7t ( = F — —
F : 801,441,0007T) M FAE BEITE B
% B A0 S 15 243,788,297, 000 4% £ 8 A%

- ——i 3,666,560,0008% & &A% )
FTE o EFtEAAMT ¢

BB g F1E

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—HE#TEBK 3,675,462 3,652,462
Effect of ordinary shares issued BERTEERCEE

(note 31(c)(ii)) (M EE31(C)(ii)) 109,973 —
Effect of share options exercised EITEERECTE

(note 31(c)(ii)) (B E31(c)(iii)) 2,862 14,098
Weighted average number of ordinary R+—A=+—H2

shares at 31 December T A INE S B 3,788,297 3,666,560
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BIREAF| (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ERBERF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is BRESERNTRARNE T BRKREE
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity i B F1,123,269,0007c( =T ——F :
shareholders of the Company of $1,123,269,000 801,441,000 7T ) M & i@ [ AN # F 39 81
(2011: $801,441,000) and the weighted average 3,809,145,000 E@R (=T ——4F :
number of 3,809,145,000 ordinary shares (2011: 3,696,713,000 K L@ )T & - EiFtHE
3,696,713,000 ordinary shares), calculated as follows: FRAT :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) BRI TG E (#F)

Weighted average number of W+—_A=+—HB2

ordinary shares at 31 December - 378 AR N RE 5 8 3,788,297 3,666,560
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the 18 AR5 A A 70 A&7

Company’s share option scheme for nil SPEIEERITIRGD 2

consideration (note 30) 2 (MIFE30) 20,848 30,153
Weighted average number of W+=—A=+—8Hz

ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December & @R INFEFEH &

(58) 3,809,145 3,696,713
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13 FIXED ASSETS
(a) The Group

Land and
bulalings
s

]

Plant and
machingry
=] o

]

7

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and
fixtures

13 EEBE
(a) &&EME

Motor Interest in
vehicles, Ieasehold
glectronic [and held for
equipment OWn Use under
and other operating
fived assets leases

Construction Investment

properties

Tota
fixed assets

Cost or valuation:  piAGEafE
At 1 January 2012 w5

-f-f 200,676 313,036 17,520 89,39 308,095 978,728 10,509 31800 1,021,032
Exchange adjustments (£330 7603 7376 173 1229 574 16,995 Y. 47 17,604
Adattions HE 484,799 160 5290 15,928 115,218 621,39 - 6,786 628,161
Disposals e
~through disposelof - FBHENEAR
subsiciaes (rote 8d) (P8 (1,096) - - @17 - (3,113 - - 6,119
- others -t - - o (1450 - (1.547) - - (1.547)
Reclassfficaton EiAE 49,31 (56,181) - 6,820 - - - - -
Adustment 2% 1,553 (1249 - - - 15,689 - - 15,689
Transferred from BRETEIR
construction in
progress 51,38 354,887 - - (406,272) - - - -
At31 December 2012 R=E-Z

t2A=1-H 794,281 612,036 22,386 109,906 67,615 1,606,724 10,731 39,018 1,656,468
Representing: f%:
Cost WAfE 794,281 612,036 22,386 109,906 67,615 1,606,724 - 39,018 1,645,737
Valuation - 2012 [fE--2-& = = = = - - 10,731 - 10,731

794,281 612,036 22,386 109,906 67,615 1,606,724 10,731 39,018 1,696,468

Accumulated ZiffERAH:
depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 W52k

-A-f 13,720 1,806 10,175 41,511 - 183,212 - 23 133,435
Bxchange adjustments B33 508 238 443 113 03 - 1397 - 17 1414
Chargefortheyer  AEEHE 0872 2574 278 1360 - By - M2 5349
Wiitten back on disposal  HiERZHE
-through disposalof -~ FBHENEAA
subsidaries [ote8d)  (Hzgld) (267) - - (133) - (1,599 - - (1,599
- others -E - - o 128 - (1329 - - (1329
At31 December 2012 R-E-—F
e TEVR W wes  wee S - - e e
Net book value:  BEZE:
At31 December 2012 R-E-Z

t2A=1-H 70218 578,041 9,912 56,729 67616 1422515 10,731 37,801 147,047
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

13 EEEE(E)
(a) A&m (&)

Motor Interest in
venicles, Ieasehold
Leasehold glectronic [and held for
improvements,  equipment OWN US8 Under
fumitureand ~ and other operating
fiures  fiked assets leases Total
Land and Plant and Construction Investment g fived assels
buloings ~ machinery in progress properties
THREF  § : EETE
$000
n
Cost or valuation:  RAEZfE
At 1 January 2011 R-E—-F
-F-H 166,440 33,924 15,755 73,981 201,170 491,870 28,856 - 520,126
Exchange adustments B 5% 2571 3,246 434 2,681 10929 19,861 28 474 20,563
Additions BE - 1,631 169 16,308 467,394 487,028 - 31,326 518,304
Disposals ik = = (364) (3,574) - (3,939) - - (3,938
Government grant UG E
received - (10,963) - - - (10,963) - - (10,963)
Transferred from EROERIE
construction in
progress 13,090 285,198 - - 298,268) - - = =
Transferred from VT
nvestment properties SHHRET
foland and buidings 18,575 - - - - 18,575 (18,575) - -
Translered tofinance. ~ EAZZERE
lease receivables JElizE - - - - (23710) 23,710) - - (23710)
At 31 December 2011 HZF——%
t2A=1-H 200,676 313,036 17520 89,396 358,005 978,723 10,509 31800 1,021,082
Representing: fx:
Cost WA 200,676 313,036 17520 89,396 358,09 978,723 - 31,800 1,010,523
Valuation - 2011 ffE--5—-% - - - - - - 10,509 - 10,509
200,676 313,036 17520 89,396 358,09 978,723 10,509 31800 1,021,082
Accumulated BHfTEREY
depreciation and
amortisation:
At1 January 2011 N-E-——%
—-f-8 67,187 - 8,251 3,411 - 106,849 - - 106,849
Exchange adjustments (£ 59 48 g 21 1,201 - 201 - - 2015
Chargefortheyer  HEEHE 6,047 7,709 2,053 11412 - 7.2 - 23 27 444
Writen back on disposel ~ HEBER = = (30) (2519 - (2873 - - (2873
A3t December 2011 R=F——F
t2A=1-H 13720 7,806 10,75 51 - 133212 - 23 133435
Net book value:  ERFE:
31 December 2011 R=E——
t2A=1-H 126,956 305,230 7,345 47885 358,09 845,511 10,509 3577 867,597
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEE(Z)
(b) The Company (b) &< F
Office Leasehold Furniture Motor Total
equipment improvements  and fixtures vehicles fi)ged assets
RLERE HEMERE HGRARRE AE BETEELR
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
Tr T T T Tr
Cost: ANE -

At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F
—A—H 1,465 2,409 459 2,223 6,556
Additions ®E 1,874 - 8 - 1,882
Disposal & (227) - - - (227)

At 31 December 2012 R=—Z—=

Accumulated ZEE
depreciation:

At 1 January 2012 RZF—Z—F

—H—H 1,055 2,399 214 1,659 5,327

Charge for the year ~ AFERE 188 10 47 104 349
Written back on HERRME

disposal (212) - - - (212)

At 31 December 2012 R-—ZT——£&

Net book value:  BEE%E :
At 31 December 2012 A=—ZT——%

+-A=1+—-H 2,081 - 206 460 2,747
Cost: BENEE
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——F

=JE=[g 1,387 2,409 459 2,180 6,435
Additions E 78 - - 43 121

At 31 December 2011 R=T——%&

Accumulated ZEE
depreciation:

At 1 January 2011 R-F—F

—A—H
Charge for the year ~ AFEIE 189 152 45 128 514

At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%F
+-A=+—-H 1,055 2,399 214 1,659 5,327

Net book value:  BEE%E :

At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%F
+-A=+—H 410 10 245 564 1,229
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEE(E)
(c) Revaluation of investment properties (c) REMEER
Investment properties of the Group were revalued as AEBZRENEER_E—Z—_F+=
at 31 December 2012 on an open market value basis A=+—BERAFAMEBEEEELETER -
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing mARMEDRET ARG S ER LR F
for reversionary income potential. The valuations HEWAGTEME - HEHBE SR
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, TEEFEERARET  ERETA
Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their staff ABANEMEees WH LASEEY
members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with R R YRR BT A ELR -

recent experience in the location and category of
property being revalued.

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is (d) MEREFEZ2IHAOT :
as follows:

The Group
REE
2012
—E——%F
$’000
T
In the PRC =s
Hong Kong: H5E
— medium-term leases —FREEE 51,677 53,713
Other parts of the PRC: A B ot &
— medium-term leases —HHE 707,073 114,918
- long leases —RHHEE - 411
758,750 169,042
Representing: (A
Land and buildings T REEF 710,218 126,956
Investment properties KBEYE 10,731 10,509
720,949 137,465
Interest in leasehold land held for own use BIEQELHASHIEEA Y
under operating leases FHE kg 37,801 31,577
758,750 169,042
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEE(Z)
(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) RELEHEHE ZEEEE

The Group leases out properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to two years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are disclosed as investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable
as follows:

Within 1 year —F R

AEERBRKEHELEYE - GAHE
E-RNIRA—EMF - WrEREE
% ERMAAGRIKEEENRE - Lt
HEATBRIAAEE -

PIERBEEHERAVRTAREY
EXEBZIMEERBER/REME -

AEEREBEMNIEEOELEHELEAR
RUHREHEEREBENT :

The Group
REE
2012 2011

—E——4F —E——4F
$’000 $°000
T Tt

- 426
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 B EE
The Group AEE

Alternative  Environmental
Toll bridge  energy project — water project

operating operating operating
right rights right
WEER eeREE  RRKKIEER
B B B
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Cost: N ER
At 1 January 2012 NZE——-F—F—H 783,054 526,417 - 1,309,471
Exchange adjustments PEE 5 (5,602) 6,780 243 1,421
Additions wE - 82,432 20,888 103,320
Disposal through disposal of ~ &EBHENB AR
subsidiaries (note 8(d)) & (BEE8(d)) (777,452) - - (777,452)
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F
+=—B=1+—8H - 615,629 21,131 636,760
Accumulated 25T -
amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—H—H 234,916 4,825 - 239,741
Exchange adjustments BE i, 35 B (1,681) 255 9 (1,417)
Charge for the year NEE Y 10,798 17,304 803 28,905
Written back on disposal BBRIENBRF
through disposal of HE R
subsidiaries (P95E8(a))
(note 8(d)) (244,033) - - (244,033)
At 31 December 2012 NZE——F
e tzREtE - w3 82 281%
Net book value: AR -
At 31 December 2012 NZE——F

+=—A=+—8~H = 593,245 20,319 613,564
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 B EE(E)
The Group (continued) TEBE(E)

Alternative  Environmental
Toll bridge  energy project  water project

operating operating operating
right rights right
RERBR HeeRER  RRKBIER
jEh-y i BERE EERE
$000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Cost: PANE
At 1 January 2011 —T——%—H—H 753,642 86,057 - 839,699
Exchange adjustments [R i 29,412 12,347 — 41,759
Additions #E = 428,013 - 428,013
At 31 December 2011 NZE——%F
e TZASYTTR [ T o D
Accumulated B
amortisation:
At 1 January 2011 —Z——%—HF—H 200,971 - - 200,971
Exchange adjustments EREH?% 8,380 99 - 8,479
Charge for the year REZHE 25,565 4,726 = 30,291
At 31 December 2011 RNZE——F
i XZASYTH 234916 . 8% - 2ol
Net book value: ARMEFE -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=+—H 548,138 521,592 - 1,069,730
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Direct REBEHETAGEERRZ [HERAR
costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated income IRAEER A | o

statement.
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15 GOODWILL 15 poEE
The Group
rEE

2012 2011

—2——5 —2—%

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

At 1 January R—H—H 46,133 46,133
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries BBLEMBARHME

(note 8(d)) (BFzE8(d)) (25,340) -

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 20,793 46,133

BERECRELEEUZHEBNA

AEESREED EEx*EB““T@J%ﬂ‘%n 2B
BB EESBN

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment as
follows:

The Group
REHE
2012 2011
—T—_F —T—F
$ 000 $’000
Tz Tt
Environmental energy project construction and IR{RsEJRIE B &t &
operation B 11,255 11,255
Environmental water project construction and Laﬁ'ﬂkﬁ%lﬁ BiEER
operation EE 9,538 9,538
Infrastructure construction and operation (toll ~ EiEiEiEREZE
bridge project) (WEBRIER ) - 25,340
20,793 46,133

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These E o
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial

budgets approved by management covering a five year
period. Discount rates of 10%-12% (2011: 10%-12%) have
been used for the value-in-use calculations. Management
determined the budgets based on independent
professional traffic studies and/or service agreements
governing the relevant operations. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

/\71-

No impairment is considered necessary at 31 December N
2012 and 2011. g -

ReLE
%E:%’:Zﬁ%/llb

T

Bz 2 A U Bl BB AR B B B E AT
STEHAIRRBREREBEREZ AFEUS
fhEt - ARFTEERAEBEZ
YRR A10% R 12% (B ——F
12%) - ERERBERIEXR A
&/iﬁéﬁ%%%Z%%W

o BT A 2 BhIR K A e R BB R 75 204
TE R 2 BRAZATAGER & o

C10% E
= i 7

ETEAE

—ER-F-—F+-A=t-
RN -
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B

16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 P2 Rl #E SR

The Company
PA/N]
2012 2011

—F——4F —E——4F
$’000 $’000
3T T

Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost 3 F %, HE%E -

DN E] 488,326 334,080

Amounts due from subsidiaries NG/ 7,274,995 5,249,638
7,763,321 5,583,718

Less: Impairment losses B FEEEE (1,445,472) (1,440,357)

6,317,849 4,143,361

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest U FEAHBARFIBAERE - 28K
free and not expected to be recovered within one year. BEHTER—FANEE -
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 B ARz (&)
The following list contains only the particulars of D/{T1§§|Ju“j¥T$%l¥F BEXBEBK
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or EREMBRARIER - BREBFEHIN
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary Fﬁﬁﬂxfﬂi@ﬁ% B o
unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest
HAEERLD

Name of company
AR

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
Rz /s
REEME

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital
EETR
BRBRAEHR

Group’s
effective

interest
Kr5EZ
B

held

bythe heldbya
Company  subsidiary
HARR BMER

BB BB FEXK

al Principal activity

Everbright Alternative Energy PRC $125,800,000 100% = 100% Design, construction,
(Dangshan) Co., Ltd.* EF 125,800,0007C operation and
(note (0)) maintenance of

KARFER (B )BRAR biomass power
(Ht3E () generation plant

Wat o BiE - BER
BEREEME
RER

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB137,520,000 100% - 100% Design, construction,
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* mE  ARE137,520,0007C operation and
(note (d)) maintenance of

KARERRER(EM)ERAR waste-to-energy
GEG) power plant

e BE R
EW&%HW ar

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD29,300,000 100% - 100% Design, construction,
(Jiangyin) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) H 29,300,000% 7T operation and

KRBREROLR)BER A maintenance of
(P¥(d) waste-to-energy

power plants
Wah o BiE - BER
BERBNREER

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB305,460,000 100% - 100% Design, construction,

(Jinan) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) mE ARE305460,0007C operation and

XARRER B ARAH]
(M)

maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Sit R BER
BERBENREER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 BIB A RlHEzR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest
BREERLD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of ~ Group’s held

incorporation issued and  effective bythe heldbya
and operanon paid up capital interest  Company  subsidiary
Name of company (3 sEAR BETR ZYEI Bz @mALNA EBMEAR
IR EE S BRBRAEH ERER #AB o]

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB350,000,000 100% - 100%
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) mE ARE350,000,0007

AABRRER(ER)ERAG
(PzE())

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB186,667,000 80% = 80%
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) mE AR%186,667,0007C

HARRER(BR)BRAR
(BE(d)

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD15,840,000 100% - 100%
(Sugian) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) mE  15,840,000%T

KRRRER(BR)ERAA
(BitE(d))

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB568,000,000  Note (a) - Note (a)
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (‘EB Energy mE ARE568000,0007T firit(a) fitsE(a)
(Suzhou)")* (note (d))

KERRRER (BN ERAF
(TR ReeiR(EM) 1)1
(MEE())

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC  RMB186,000,000 100% = 100%
(Zhenijiang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) mE AR%186,000,0007C

KRBERER(BL)BERAR
(PitsE(a)

s CT—EER

Principal activity
FEXRH

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

et BE - BER
EERBNREER

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Hit i BER
EERBAREER

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

it i EER
BERESRHER

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plants

Rt RE B
e 1%%141& EF

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

it i EER
EERBAREER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital
BETR
HRBRAEH

16 8~ ml#Ez ()

Proportion of ownership interest
BAEERLD

Group’s held
effective bythe heldbya
interest  Company  subsidiary
K&EEZ  BARAR AMBAR Principal activity

Place of

establishment/

incorporation

and operation

Name of company XL/ AR L
SR REEME
Everbright Environmental PRC
Equipment Manufacturing M

(Changzhou) Limited*
KRRRRERE(EM)

BRAA
Everbright Environmental PRC
Protection (China) Limited* ‘:F

(formerly “Everbright
Environmental Protection
Engineering (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.")
ARBRER(FE)BERAF
(AIRS [ AIRR TR R
(RINBRAF])

Everbright Environmental PRC
Protection Technological H
Development (Beijing) Limited*

AARRRRRER(LER)

BRAFN
Everbright Photovoltaic Energy PRC
(Zhenjiang) Limited* e

RAXKER(ETL)ERRA

Everbright Water (Dezhou) Limited* PRC
(note (&) th
KRR (M) BRAF
(PizE(e))

RMB65,000,000
AR #65,000,0007C

USD30,000,000

30,000,000% 7T

$10,000,000

10,000,0007c

RMB122,090,000
AEH122,000,0007C

USD12,280,000
12,280,000 T

B iR 1B BE FEEK
100% = 100% Manufacturing of
environmental

protection equipment
RREEE

100% 100% - Provision of construction
management services
and investment holding

RETRERRBER
RERK

100% 100% - Conduct of
environmental
protection technology
research projects

ETRRBH SRR

100% = 100% Design, construction
and operation of
photovoltaic energy
plant

it REREY
ERETH

100% = 100% Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants

itk EE
BBRESKEER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

NI

Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Limited?
(notes (c)&(e))

ARKBKOIR)BRAR!
(B () R (e)

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited*
(note (e))

KRR (R ) BR DA
(MfEE(e))

Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited*
KRKE (BF) BRAA

Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited*
(note (e))

KRKBOEE) BRAR
(Ftik(e)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
ation

*/HHWE

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital
BETR
HRBRAER

RMB180,000,000
AE#180,0000007C

USD35,430,000
35,430,000% T

$174,590,000
174,590,0007C

USD31,158,000
31,158,000% T

16 B8~ ml#Ezs ()

Proportion of ownership interest
ARG

Group’s held

effective bythe heldbya
interest  Company  subsidiary

T&EBy @mARE BfBAR

Bl #AB o]

70% = 70%

100% = 100%
100% = 100%
100% = 100%

Principal activity
FEXRH

Design, construction,

operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants

B3t AR

BERETKEER

Design, construction,

operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
it iR EER
EERETKEER

Design and construction

of waste-water

treatment plant

and surface water

treatment plant
Ret REE KRR

Rt FKEER

Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
and reusable water
treatment plant

Bit R BER
EEREFKEER
RAKEARER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 B AR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest
BEEESLD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of ~ Group’s held

incorporation issued and  effective bythe heldbya

and operation paid up capital interest  Company  subsidiary
Name of company XL/ AR L BEIk AKBz HALRA AMEAR Principal activity
SR REEME BERAEH ERER B BB FEXK

Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water PRC USD15,257,000 Note (o) = Note (b) Construction, operation
Treatment Co., Ltd. i 15257000 Fit& (o) Mz () and maintenance of
(“Qingdao EB-VW")* (note (g)) waste-water treatment

BERBESKEEERA A plants
(TESE]) (i) BiE - BERBERE

/’57}<J@E!'EF

Fuzhou Guang Min Road and PRC  RMB224,730,000 - - - Development,

Bridge Construction & R ARH224,730,0007T construction,
Development Company Limited** operation and
BN EREREAZERAA maintenance of

a toll bridge
M BE EER
RERBIRERR
On Land Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% = 100% Property investment
BRERAR B $1 each MERE
BB
EE1 TR
*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment * REBRBUEEFMAINERERE -
enterprise.
*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign o REBEREDEREMATRINGERERE -

co-operation joint ventures.

"~ Disposal of during the year ended 31 December 2012 (see note 8). fREEZEZFI+A=+t—HLEFEHE
(RH5ES) °

Notes: BiEE -

(a) Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited, (@) ARAZEZEWEBRRZRNEKEREM) NG
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign EEBHRRRRER(GRM) ERB R A A&
joint venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to FEEAS KR (M) 2EEMER - K Kee
contribute the full amount of EB Energy (Suzhou)’s registered R(EMN) 2 FRI(ESFEZNHBERBARE
capital. Net profit, after payment of an agreed sum of 880,000t FH & &R ) B2 B X RIRR
RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner of EB BEIR (BRMDIZIRBERATIFAA ©

Energy (Suzhou), is fully attributable to Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited.
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”), an 60% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of Qingdao EB-VW, is committed to contribute 60% of Qingdao
EB-VW’s registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital
is contributed by the PRC joint venture partner. EB-VW is fully
entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for the first 14 years
of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint venture
period onwards, the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW is to be shared
by EB-VW and the PRC joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the
PRC (the “grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group was granted rights to construct,
operate and maintain environmental water and alternative energy
projects in the PRC for a period of 30 years. The service fees are
based on the extent of services rendered and are subject to the
approvals from the relevant local government authorities. During
the operating period, the Group will be responsible to maintain
the environmental water and alternative energy projects in good
condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the environmental water and alternative
energy projects are recognised as intangible assets.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct,
operate and manage waste-to-energy power plants in the PRC
for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to
maintain the waste-to-energy power plants in good condition.
The grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry
of the concession periods, the waste-to-energy power plants
and related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

16 KB A A#Ees (48
sk« (4)

(0)

AATEECO N < HIBARRE S ILEINT
BEBHIERBILIRKBEBERAER QR ([
REILHE]) FGEIEAT B HREO0%EMER » £
TA40%KHF A EBHEE - XABIERE
EHETHFA2BEZEGERLRFRTF - M
METAFELHE SR FRFMEL
RELHER BT & EBHIR8 22 LLHI# S -

AEEHE QA EPEEMBUTEREETAL
FISLRIS AT S - REBRISFFE 22
ZH - ARBEREAETEESE  EERERR
R RFEERIAR - BB=1%F - RBEZE
REZ R ME - WARRHREEBUTEEIE
BAEEE - REEHR - AEEFEETHITR
RKTE R FTREIRIA B B RAFAR ©

RIS FFE SRR W RELRE - BT ARK
SELERRBHGEREERNER 2BER TR L
BRI °

BRRKBEEFERBEZEEERRRET

AL BT QR EE T AT S IRIS AR S & %
B REMRBBIFEERRZY  AKEART
BlRREt B BEREBNREBR - AH
“TRE=TF - AREBEEEFREER
HREFMRR « BT ALR  BLBERERHMS - &
SEB A SFRMKEREBRER - FRHFEEH
JEmE - BIR B E RN AR B AR B 1 8 5 B S R AT
HEA -
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

(continued)

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the waste-to-energy power plants and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of
the Group to terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for solid waste treatment service from the grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy power plants is recognised as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” in the
financial statements.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and manage waste-water treatment
plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment plants in
good condition. The grantors guarantee the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste-water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be transferred to the
local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste-water treatment plants and in the event of
a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure
to receive payments for waste-water treatment service from the
grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste-water treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” in the financial statements.

16 BB A RliEZ
feaE -

(d)

/’éié-g)
(%)

(#&)

RIS E LR WRMBLREE - BT ATTT
EIREREF R L HE 2 ERBIE: AREREE
EFEL NP HEFAL G AEGKREERER -
AEEATERERMNSLEBREZBEREE © R
ERET ARGEEEYEERSEE - ARiHE
GHREERNER -

B 2 a0 3R 3% B RR T B (R E AR S P15 2 AR A IR
SEFBHRRPERS [BREFANTENE
M o

AEEM B QR EE T AT L RE TR EER
B o RIBERBRRTE SRR AREANTH
Rt BER/SHE  EEREESKERE
B R TAZE=1%F c AEEFEEHERS
IKEIERH RIFAM - BT AER - stERTH

M ARESASFRMKEREFE © 7555
ISR HERR 5K ER LR RIE S E R
EHBTHERE

RIS EE RPN MBLRIE - BT AT
ERERFR L HHEIBERABE  ARERER
& BUESGEE S KEIER - AR GE G ES
RiER ° NEE AT EREEF LR ER
B RERRTABSSKEEREE - UKk
BEETEERER -

R 722 385 ok B i 5 7K B B R T R 2 S PR 7% PR A5 Z
HERSENBREPBERR [EREF S
IeE | -



Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %& i'% I}fj‘ —%EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fr SAFERESN - FrE RS E)

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

17 B R A

PTG & B

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

N2

PN

The Group
rEH
2012

_:ﬂg
$°000
3T

2011
—E——4F
$’000
Tt

Details of the associate are as follows:

Form of

business

Name of associate structure
il YN FBREL
Qingdao Veolia Water Established
Operating Company Limited AV

BERUKEELERAR

Place of
establishment
and operation

X RES I

PRC
FE

Proportion of ownership interest

Group’s
effective

interest
r&EEZ
ERER

21%

BRI
held
by the

ok}

held by a
Company subsidiary

BALNE hEAR

Principal activity

e IEXH

21% Operation of

waste-water
treatment plants

B KEER
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17 B E R A= (E)
Summary financial information on the associate: BERNRMBERMEE

The Group
rEH
2012
== EE
$'000
Tt
(a) Operating results (a) BEHE
Turnover LR 47,042 34,187
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREL AT (EB), B (1,857) 1,059
(Loss)/profit after taxation BREi%(EB18) & (1,857) 1,059
Group’s share of result after REEMEHMERRZ
taxation for the year attributable KREEFEKRITIEES

to the associate - _

(b) Balance sheet (b) EEEER
Non-current assets JEMENEE 821 760
Current assets MENEE 10,713 6,506
Current liabilities mENaE (15,726) (9,555)
Net liabilities BEFHE (4,192) (2,289
Group’s share of net assets NE B T (HEEE A a)
attributable to the associate BEFHE - -
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group’s share RZE——FRZEFE—Z-F+A=+—
of accumulated loss of associate exceeds the Group’s B ARAEEMGHERR 2T EEER
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to AEBEFEBERR R  AEBE 2R

nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued. ERET - WEAERRE—FPHERE -
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18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

8 Rt EE

The Group The Company
REE AN/N)
2012 2011 2012 2011
——F —T—F —T——F —T——F
$’000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Tz Tz Tt T+
Available-for-sale FERAFZS :
equity securities:
Listed in Hong Kong BBELET 9,263 8,979 - -
Listed in other parts of R E M
the PRC 183,530 171,406 - -
192,793 | 180,385 - -
Unlisted in other parts of PR E M S JE ET
the PRC 3,899 3,899 3,899 3,899
196,692 184,284 3,899 3,899
Market value of listed EhEScTE
securities 192,793 180,385 - -
Fair value of individually 1IE|JE%%T§%’§%$
impaired available-for-sale ~ #FHZ AR E
equity securities 9,263 = - -

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s available-for-sale
equity securities were individually determined to be
impaired on the basis of a significant decline in their fair
value below cost and adverse changes in the market
in which these investees operated which indicated that
the cost of the Group’s investments in them may not be
recovered. Impairment losses on these investments were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(I)(i) (see note 4).

ROE——F+-A=1+—0 ERAEEZRF
ERAEFESFAAEBEKRE THREEREKANE - 0
FERBRERRZEENSHRATNED - B
FAEERBRPIRE QAR ZRE KA REE
Yeml R i AR B REE Ut F AR AN RE 7 B E B B
18 - RARERRH 1)) FHRBRNIBERE
RUFHRE 2 FEBR(RME4) -
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

19 FEURRSR ~ Ho i fE YRR -
EENE

The Group
REE
2012
—EB——F
$'000
T
Debtors FEURER SR 532,410 196,352
Loan receivable N 49,744 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEWEIE - ek
AN O] 3,228,215 3,000,977
3,810,369 3,197,329
Less: Non-current portion B FEBNERER (D
— other receivables and deposits — H At R GRIE K
bira (2,553,625) (2,181,165)
— loan receivable —EER (49,744) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (2,603,369)|  (2,181,165)
Current portion BNERER 1 1,207,000 1,016,164

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and [FEUERZ: « HibfEWZRIE « 4 RFEN =
prepayments” are debtors with the following ageing B REEERER  EREER2ERS
analysis as of the balance sheet date: W
The Group
EE
2012
—F——F
$'000
Fx
Cument 167,164 NNNIE )
Less than 1 month past due wmE DR —E A 73,360 9,655
More than 1 month but within 3 months wERkER—(E A A
past due PR=EA 61,843 12,142
More than 3 months but within 6 months mHBB=EAR
past due D7 E A 93,709 99
More than 6 months but less than 12 months BB < E H1E
past due DR+ Z{ER 116,334 403
| Amountspastdus oYeE | 356 22299
532,410 196,352
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BRI « EMEWFIE « i1 &
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) TE\H/T)\IE\(M)
The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of REERHHE  BREFRREER ZRK
invoice as of the balance sheet date is as follows: DR -

The Group

Within 1 month DR —1E A 187,164 174,053
More than 1 month but within 2 months HmiE—E A1 9)‘5 A A 73,360 9,655
More than 2 months but within 4 months R E A 18 Ar{E A 61,843 12,142
More than 4 months but within 7 months BB E /B HHEA 93,709 99
More than 7 months but within 13 months BiEHEAEIHRT=1EA 116,334 403

532,410 196,352

Debtors past due of $239,034,000 have been
subsequently settled after 31 December 2012.

Debtors are due within 30 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 32(a).

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” of the Group are debtors of $532,410,000
(2011: $196,352,000) of which $29,599,000 (2011:
$10,261,000) and $10,551,000 (2011: $9,932,000) are
due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. Debtors represent revenue from
environmental energy project, environmental water project,
alternative energy project operation services and toll bridge
revenue. There was no recent history of default in respect
of the Group’s debtors. Since most of the debtors are
local government authorities in the PRC and based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of the past due balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

460 HA & LI AR 50 239,034,000 T B A =
Ft+t-—A=1+—R®E&REM-

RUERHEEAREF =T HAARTH - K
KEEEBRZ#E— FERFNHIES2() °

AEEZ [BEER  HMEKRFIE - B
NIEMFIEIF - BEEWERR5E32,410,000
L (ZZF——4F : 196,352,000t ) * E AR
29,599,0007T (==& ——% : 10,261,0007T)
%10,551,0007¢ (=& — — % : 9,932,000
TT:) D Bl A% FE UK IF 122 PR AR BR R I8 K e U R 5%
A o BUBERFZR B IRIREEIRIE R -
f%K%%IEE MEERIER 2 ES Hﬁi%ﬂﬁlﬁn&
WEBRIKE - AEE 2 BUYRRKI I &
BRRE - AR ARBHEBAGRTEE
HFHE - REBEEERLR  EEERRBA
HRBRARRERELFEEREE  BREEE
RV EEBRERNEL MAEBERDERE
Ti%ﬂﬁl@ Kgliﬂﬁﬁﬂi%%ﬁ?%ﬁ{%
AERR R —=—F+=_HA=+—H "
AEBETEEAENERERE(ZT——
FoE)-
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AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
include balances totalling $2,784,034,000 (2011:
$2,387,032,000) which bear interest at rates ranging
from 5.94% to 7.83% (2011: 5.94% to 7.83%) per
annum and represent the considerations paid for the
acquisition of waste-water treatment plants under TOT
arrangements, among which $194,094,000 (2011:
$181,606,000) and $491,517,000 (2011: $476,468,000)
are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. The amounts are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated
during the operating periods of the TOT arrangements.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

The loan receivable is unsecured, interest-bearing at
11% per annum, due from an unrelated party and due for
repayment in 2014.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK

19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 FEUBERF - EMEIKRKIE - e Kk

BN ZEE)

[EUBRSR « Efb R TRIE e RFEMNK
B BEA K2, 7840340007z<_-—-——
F : 2,387,032,00070 ) 2 &tk 0 HIZF R
R594%FE7.83% (= EFE——4F : 594% %
7.83%)FTEFE - HATOTZH T 5K
FRIBMR < EHR(E - H 194,094,000t (=
T ——4 : 181,606,0007T ) & 491,517,000
TT(=F——4 : 476,468,0007T) 7 5l & fE
W JE 7 B% B 3R SR TE K FE AR B B R B 50 o
BEAFEHR \Jﬁﬁzam jfﬂ—rl//{TOTzzTiF—F
2R HI R T AT e ——F+=-H8
== - mﬁljﬂﬁﬁ& Eﬂﬁ%a)@ﬁa
T ——F fE) o

ERERDEET - RFEBE 1% ER
B REIFEBAL YR T —HFIH
EiE o

RERRZ P BN BB TR ER AT I — F A U
@E}Zﬁﬁmﬁﬁaﬂﬁi

20 RIME P A TIZ NIRRT

The Group
REE
2012 2011
T—_F —T——%F
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEASLKANE
profits less anticipated losses ERREAN - &
[=gi=] 9,387,755 7,785,708
Less: Progress billings B EERIE (1,854,405) (1,269,484)
Net contract work BH TS5 7,533,350 6,516,224
Representing: R
Gross amounts due from customers for FEWEBE &4 TENT
contract work R
— Non-current —3JEBNEA 6,889,550 5,963,047
— Current — BHR 643,800 553,177
7,533,350 6,516,224
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20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 20 W EFEATIEKIEE5E (&)
FOR CONTRACT WORK (continued)

Included in “Gross amounts due from customers for [BEWEFAOIRERXERLTE]FR - o5
contract work” are amounts of $227,471,000 (2011: B 35 B U IE 28 A% A% R 5K I8 227,471,000 7T
$246,876,000) and $213,243,000 (2011: $229,651,000) (ZZ=——14 : 246,876,000 7T ) X J& Us
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a Bk A B 5078 213,243,000 ( = F — — 4 :
related company respectively. 229,651,0007T) °

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” [FREFALHTIEFIEAR | TIRBOT X
represent revenue from construction under BOT and BT (i — L%y);z?iFTZEﬁHEFH& % ok
BT (Build-Transfer) arrangements or upgrade services FETOTZHE T TRz - HIZFE S
under TOT arrangements and bear interest at rates K594%E7.83% (=T ——F : 5,.94% =
ranging from 5.94% to 7.83% (2011: 5.94% to 7.83%) 7.83% ) st E F B o 1E# ¥ 7,533,350,000
per annum. Among the total of $7,533,350,000 (2011: T(=—ZF——4% :6,516,224,0007C ) A -
$6,516,224,000), $5,920,961,000 (2011: $6,297,640,000) H & 5,920,961,000 T ( = & — — F
relates to BOT and TOT arrangements with operation 6,297,640,0007T ) @ T E & AEEZBOT &
commenced. The amounts for BOT and TOT arrangements TOTZHE - BEBOTRTOTLHE T 2 HEB
are not yet due for payment and will be settled by revenue K3 Hﬂsiﬁ W AL E ER S AT » BTR
to be generated during the operating periods of the PET 2 RIBBARE S B FT 51 B8R 49 48 B8 18 50
arrangements. The amount for BT arrangements will be BESEN

settled according to respective repayment schedules as
stated in the agreements.

21 INVENTORIES 21 78
(@ Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a) HFEEEEBRIIT~TERT :
comprise:

The Group
REHE
2012 2011
—E_F —T——F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Raw materials and operating supplies EME R E ¥R S 41,219 21,430
Spare parts T2 24,098 22,045
65,317 43,475
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories recognised as an b) EERERAIULFTABRRCFESHE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DHTEATR:

The Group
rEH
2012

€ —:ﬁi
$°000
T

Carrying amount of inventories consumed BEfAEEZEEE 120,548 21,356
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22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22 pEHERWHIE
The total minimum lease payments receivable under BEREHERKNREEEERAERE
finance lease, and their present values are as follows: HEWT :

The Group
rEE
2012
—E——4F
$’000
Tt
Within 1 year —F R 1,754 1,735
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRRERAFR 7,017 6,940
After 5 years AFE 31,574 32,964
Total gross investment BMIRERE 40,345 41,639
Unearned finance income RERBERA (18,498) (19,599)
Present value of future payments receivable RIRFEWFIAZIRE 21,847 22,040
Amounts due within one year included under st ARBEEZ —FA
current assets B BARIE (463) (432)
21,384 21,608
The present value of future payments receivable is as RREUWHIBZHEWT -
follows:

The Group
PN
2012 2011
—T—F —T——%F
$’000
Tt
withintyear — T®N 463 | 482
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFNH 2,149 2,005
After 5 years hE® 19,235 19,603
R SR 21,384 | 21,608 |
21,847 22,040
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23 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts are pledged to secure certain bank loans of

the Group. 2B o

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 He kB &F

23 ERFERITERK
ZEREEEET  EAREEEFHRITE

B

The Group The Company
REE PAN/NY|

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F ZT——F - ZT——F
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
¥ ¥ Fi Fi
Deposits with banks RITHER 337,283 327,426 223,322 =
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEB RIS 1,469,585 | 1,356,873 129,420 252,063
1,806,868 | 1,684,299 352,742 252,063

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at the balance
sheet date are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to B :
which they relate:

The Group
REE

2012
—E——4F
USD 000

FET

2011
—F——F
USD '000

TET

United States Dollars e I 27,190 ' 16,173 I

REER [RelREeEEY ] T

- H LR 2 T A A 2 B

The Company
ZAYNE]

2012

USD '000
TR

241 '

2011
—F—F
USD *000

TET

6,868

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the following

deposits placed with a related party bank: TEHRITZHER

The Group
REE
2012 2011
—T——%F
$000
T

—E——4F
$'000
Tz

Deposits with related party
bank

7 PR AR A T ERTT

ZTEER 503,328 60,155

[RERBEEEY |7 T 5170

The Company
RAT]

2012
—E——4F
$’000

Ft

1,033

2011
—F—F
$'000
Tt

13,993
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25 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

25 SRITER
R-ZF——#+-A=+—8 BEEHZ
BREMT :

The Group
REH
2012

The Company
PiN/NE]
2012

2011 2011

—F——F
$°000

—F——4F
$°000

_Within 1 year oron demand  —#WEER | 1,635,386 | 1,064,080 | 344,600 | 90,000
After 1 year but within 2 years — {12 B G A 1,069,321 810,950 140,000 27,500
After 2 years but within MERERAFR

5 years 2,385,850 | 2,056,681 506,250 70,000
After 5 years hF% 913,794 | 1,161,298 - =
I 4,368,965 | 4,028,929 | 646,250 | 97,500
6,004,351 | 5,093,009 990,850 187,500
At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were secured as R-E——F+=-_F=+—H ' BT7ER

follows: ZIIF RN ¢
The Group The Company
REE ¥N/NE]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2——F —T—F —T——F —FT——F
$’000 $’000 $'000 $’000
Tt Tt Tt T
Bank loans RITER

- Secured —AHEH 3,708,310 | 3,519,740 47,500 87,500
- Unsecured — 2,296,041 | 1,573,269 943,350 100,000
6,004,351 | 5,093,009 990,850 187,500
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25 BANK LOANS (continued) 25 IRITER(E)

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by
certain revenue and receivables in connection with
the Group’s service concession arrangements, bank
deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to $5,524,262,000 (2011: $3,837,563,000),
were utilised to the extent of $3,708,310,000 (2011:
$3,519,740,000) at 31 December 2012. Among the
secured banking facilities, $3,392,901,000 (201 1:
$1,672,905,000) are guaranteed by the Company and
were utilised to the extent of $1,920,837,000 (2011:
$1,671,682,000) at 31 December 2012.

Certain banking facilities of the Company are secured by
the land and building of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2012, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to $4,367,740,000 (2011: $2,196,642,000),
were utilised to the extent of $2,296,041,000 (2011:
$1,573,269,000). Among the unsecured banking facilities
of the Group, $278,648,000 (2011: $394,379,000) are
guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent
of $258,648,000 (2011: $374,379,000) at 31 December
2012. All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised costs. None of the non-current
interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year.

Banking facilities of $5,285,817,000 (2011:
$2,800,411,000) are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. At 31
December 2012, such facilities were utilised to the extent
of $3,542,001,000 (2011: $2,418,565,000). The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 32(b). As at 31 December 2012, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2011: Nil).

REBETRITHEANLEBREFFL
ERTHETZE T haE REWRIE -« R’17
TR BEEERBRASEETE TH
BRARIZBRMDERER RZT—Z—F+=
A=+—H8 - £il5524,262,0007T (=
T — — £ : 3,837,563,000 7T ) 2 & & #
R1T R & E B F 3,708,310,000 7T ( = &
— — % : 3,519,740,000 7T ) ° it A&
HERITAEE - H 7 3,392,901,000 7T ( =
T — —4F :1,672,905,000JC ) B AN A A
EER R —=—&+=-A=+—H
2 8 A 1,920,837,000 7t ( =& — — F
1,671,682,0007¢) °

RRRETRITRE A —RHTE LB L
FABFIEEA -

R=ZZE—=—F+=-_A=Z+—8  £iK
HRITEE 2 2 % & 4,367,740,000 7T

—ZF — — % :2196,642,0007T) ' B
&) A 2,296,041,000 T ( = & — — F
1,5673,269,0007T ) ° |t 78 & B % 35 7 iR
TREE - H A 278,648,000 (= F — —
& : 394,379,000 7T ) A A A A EER
R—_ZE——F+_A=+—H ' E&FH
258,648,0007t ( —Z ——4F : 374,379,000
TT) o FTAEENEG BB E REHKAA
Bk - HEAFTAERI BT EBEHTER—F
AN{EE

o

SR 17 R £ 5,285,817,000 T ( =T — —4F :
2,800,411,0007T) B & & T EHE A S
BB R RE - WASEEEREBE
% AERMoBMEREERESR - R
—E-——_HF+_-_A=+—H BHERAE
B2 ) A 3,542,001,000 . ( =& — — F
2,418,565,0007T) - A& E g FHAER B
RHE BB BERNEBEERRDESD
BB 2 3 — BB EH K EES2(0) c KT
——F®+-_A=+—8 AEETEERE
IR BME s RHE (2 —F 1 E|E) -
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25 BANK LOANS (continued)

Included in “Bank loans” are the following amounts

denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

USD ’000
TR

United States Dollars

157,258

25 SRITEN (&)
[BTERIRETIIHE - HAEEEE
R B RS ASN 2 A -

The Group
REE
2012

The Company
ZA/NE]

2011 2011

—=

USD 000
TET

USD 000
TXT

USD '000
FTET

116,200 - =

Included in “Bank loans” are the following loans from a
related party bank:

—=E——4F
$°000
Tt

Loans from related party BB A TIRITER

bank

193,877

[RITERIBRE T A LRITEN

The Group
rEE
2012

The Company
PAN/NG]|

2012

== EE

$°'000

Tt

2011
—F——F
$'000
T

2011
—F——F
$'000
T

153,873 - =

Included in loans from a related party bank are bank
loans of $131,697,000 (2011: $1583,873,000) which
are unsecured, bear interest at rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China and will be settled by instalment
until 2018. Remaining loans from a related party bank of
$62,180,000 (2011: Nil) are unsecured, interest-bearing at
6% per annum and will be fully repaid by 2013.

AHATRITREZERNBRERITER
131,697,000 (= Z ——4& : 153,873,000
) EREER  RBBEARRITIAM
ZERHAB UK R T N\FrD HE
BoREMBATRITZBTSEERL
62,180,0007c (= ——4F : ) « HAEK
B RFEB6%TE  WEARZ-ZT—=F5]
ZEERE -
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses

26 EFTARFR - E e 58 R B 5T

£H

The Group
REE
2012

2011
—E——fF —T——F
$°'000 $°'000

F7T FT

FERRRSR - EAb A
AN ETER

1,190,736 1,423,305

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are creditors with the following ageing analysis
as of the balance sheet date:

[EAERI - HMENRKIERESER I+
BIEENER  HRGEER ZRE ST
T

The Group
rEEH

2012 2011
T —T—F
$’000 $’000
+7t T
Due within 1 month or on demand —1{& B N E| Bk i Bk 78,611 63,463
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —Z2={AAREIE 12,212 51,125
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =Z XA AREH 15,697 36,797
Due after 6 months 7~ B A 1% % 51 686,687 737,422
793,207 888,807

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” of the Group is an amount of $14,161,000
(2011: $4,610,000) which is payable to an associate. The
balance is due within one month and represents service fee
for operation of waste-water treatment plants.

RNEE 2 [FERMARR - H MM 38 K e
ERIR BR—ZENMT-XBERAZ
FKI814,161,00070( == ——4F : 4,610,000
TL) o ZEHR —EAANEE  EAEEES
KRB 2 IRTEE -
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 JETTERFR -~ EAh FE (I 5RIE K fE &t

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Apart from the above, balances totalling $774,155,000
(2011: $868,230,000) represent construction payables
for the Group’s BT, BOT and certain BOO arrangements,
among which $10,241,000 (2011: $12,257,000) is due to a
non-controlling shareholder. The construction payables are
not yet due for payment. Included in “Other payables and
accrued expenses” of the Group as at 31 December 2012
is an amount of $6,218,000 (2011: Nil) which is payable
to a non-controlling shareholder. The amount due to non-
controlling shareholder is unsecured, interest free and
expected to be settled within one year.

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate:

BH(E)

Br ECRTiiE SN - BH A 774,155,000
(ZZ——4 : 868,230,0007T) Z &k » H
AENEBBT « BOTREMHBOOLZHE T2
BETEEMNKIE - HH10,241,0007T (=
T——4F : 12,257,0007T) & & F IR A%
BRZHIE - BEIRENREBRIEXR
feR-_TE——F+_A=+—HAEEZ
[HibERRERETERF - BFEEME
PR RR A R 3K 7H 6,218,000t ( =T — — 4 -
M) o BN TIEERBRRZHEAEIRR -
BB WEHAR—FANEE -

(R AR R HOR R B 3T 8 )
THRE - KRR ER 2 N E 2
A

The Group The Company
rEE PA/NC]
2012 2011 2012 2011

—F—F ZF-F ZT——F

EUR'000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR '000
TEZE TEZE TR TR ZE

Euros B 2 87 1,669 87 80

27 OTHER LOANS 27 EMER
The Group NEH
The loans as at 31 December 2011 were unsecured,

interest-bearing at rates announced by the People’s Bank
of China and repayable in 2023. The loans were fully repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

28 LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group

The loan from ultimate holding company was unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within one year as at
31 December 2011. The loan was partially repaid and
subsequently disposed of through disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2012 (see note 8(d)).

R-ZB——F+-A=+—H8 BHEERA
A P EARBITAMZ BRETE
WERZTEZ=FEE ZEXCREEZ
T——_F+-A=T—HIFEZHEHFE -

REEERRRE R

AEE

R-T——F+-A=+—8  ZLEEBEA
AERAEER  REREBAER -—FAE
B -REE_Z——F+-HA=+—HL*F
B EHEERCEITHER  WHRHESR
HEMBLRRE L (RHEESQ)) -
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 29 EEBEBERFIRNATER
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEEBRFITINAPHIES :
represents:

The Group
AEE
2012
—ET——F
$’000
Tt
Provision for PRC income tax for the year N4 JE 50 B FT 15 71 2 5 144,528 91,544
Provisional tax paid BT E S (112,467) (47,351)
Balance of profits tax provision relating to @7t 4 /Z F 5 i B
prior years e - 7,908
32,061 52,101
Represented by: (A3
Tax recoverable Al Y [B] 7 18 (26,118) -
Tax payable FE A F I8 58,179 52,101
32,061 52,101
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued) 29 BEBRBERFIREIFTEH (&)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAELERELEERESE !
The Group rEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERGEEEABRERCELEHIE(E
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the F)/ﬁ BEBMD R FANEENT -

movements during the year are as follows:

Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised
under
HK(FRIC 12)
b

Fair value
adjustment on - Undistributed
ZE®)RE) available-for- profits of
F12% %7 Revaluation sale securiies  subsidiaries
ZEE ofproperties HEFHL BT
LEBER NEER  DRERE KPREH

$000 $000 $'000 $000

T T i T
At 1 January 2011 RZE—%—-A-H 190,441 3,878 12,315 78,341 284,975
Exchange adjustments [ 73 2% 10,310 - 150 4,141 14,601
Credited to reserve SARE - - (15,739) - (15,739)
Charged to profit or loss B R MR 140,147 - - 35,446 175,593
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-f=1—H 340,898 3,878 (3,274) 117,928 459,430
At 1 January 2012 W-Z-—F-f-R 340,898 3,878 (3274) 117,928 459,430
Exchange adjustments R 5,218 - (6) 1,625 6,837
Charged to reserve REERNR - - 2,528 - 2,528
Charged to profit or loss feERR TR 127,684 - - 52,367 180,051

Disposal of subsidiaries i EF B AR (Fr8(d)

(note 8(d)) (2,093) - - (14,822) (16,915)

At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-A=1-H 471,707 3,878 (752) 157,098 631,931
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued) 29 BE&RBERFIREIFTER (&)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAELERELEEREE : (&)
(continued)
The Group (continued) REM(E)

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RiGEBEBBRER
consolidated balance sheet IR I & EF R (27,508) (12,836)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RiGz&EEBBRER
consolidated balance sheet IR B BT 659,439 472,266
631,931 459,430
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) RERELEHEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out BEM 1 OME 2 SFTEEE - AEB K
in note 1(t), the Group and the Company have RA RIS BB 25 AT H B B R
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect IEE R THE E 52,217,000 (= ——
of cumulative tax losses of $52,217,000 (2011:  : 41,881,0007T ) 44,764,000 (=
$41,881,000) and $44,764,000 (2011: $34,428,000) T——14F :34,428,0007t) r RAAER
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable AT R AR R B E R AT g2
profits against which the losses can be utilised will FEADRBINMSZBEERNUER -
be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. BBERTRB A - Al iEE T
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax RIERAMRA o

legislation.
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 30 UMD 2 RAR 5

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was AAalRAE —(AERKES  ER =TT =
adopted on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the FRAZHNEHEM - Bt - ARRESFE
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite FRETHSEBEAEEREE (BEAEEE
employees of the Group, including directors of any AIKERARZER) BN RRHEARER
company in the Group, to take up options at nominal BARNAIRMD 2 ERE - BRESRT A
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. BREA(HARAREZEZTREZREZBH)
The options are exercisable six months (or a later date as BEMRHETFHAERETRZETFX
determined by the directors of the Company) after the date E_ZT—=ZFRA-THEBHLEUUAREES
on which the options are granted for a period up to ten )  GRBRER FTESEARE KX
years or 25 May 2013, whichever is earlier. Each option NAlEBEIE 2R o

gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that (a) TXBIIFAERITEZEBEREZR
existed during the years are as follows, HIERR R B FTEBRENL
whereby all options are settled by physical BRHABYRWAFRNEERI :

delivery of shares:

Number of Contractual

instruments Vesting conditions life of options

XEZB ERGE BEREIANFH

Options granted to directors:

RTYEZ2ERE
- on 29 September 2003 12,500,000 Six months from the 9.7 years
“EE=FAA=TNA date of grant 9.7F
R B EEE <A A
- on 29 September 2003 18,500,000 One year from the 9.7 years
ZEE=FARAZTNA date of grant 9.7%F
AL B R —F
- on 3 August 2006 8,000,000 One year from the 6.8 years
—ZTR EN\A=R date of grant 6.8
R AR —F
- on 3 August 2006 8,000,000 Two years from the 6.8 years
—EERENA=ZH date of grant 6.8F
AR BB mE
Options granted to employees:
RTEEZERE
- on 3 August 2006 1,700,000 One year from the 6.8 years
—ZTRF/\A=R date of grant 6.8
AR A —4F
- on 3 August 2006 2,550,000 Two years from the 6.8 years
“EEXENA=H date of grant 6.8
A% B R E

Total share options
BB 51,250,000
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning &4 K171

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

30 AR XN Z AR 5 (&)

(b) BREZHE RMEFHIITEBELE :

2012
—E——F

Weighted
average

exercise
price
e
IE(E

Weighted
average
exercise

Number of price
options INEFE
k2 T8

2011
—F—F

Number of
options
BREHE

of the year $0.6545t 28,250,000 $0.515;t 51,250,000
Exercised during the year FREBITE $0.5937T (12,950,000)| $0.3447t (23,000,000)
Outstanding at the end FIEBRITEE

of the year $0.705;t 15,300,000 $0.6547T 28,250,000
Exercisable at the end FLEATITE

of the year $0.705;t 15,300,000 $0.6547T 28,250,000

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares options exercised during the year
was $3.9 (2011: $3.4).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had
an exercise price of $0.296 or $0.85 (2011: $0.296 or
$0.85) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 0.4 year (2011: 1.4 years).

FARBITEBBRERITE B2 ¥
BRER3IT(ZF——F :3.47) °

RZZTE——F+-_A=+—HHERTE
2B 217 {8 /0.2967T540.85 7T
—FT——4% :0.2967080.857C) ' M
MEFHHTEHNFHAAR0.4F

TR —F I 14F) -
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30 AR X Z AR 5 (&)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model.

(c) BREZAAEBRRR

AEBAREBREMES ZRE A
REREEBERBZAAERE - BR
BEREZEFAAER AR -F8
H | EERAE - BREZENF
HRUERA 2 —BHAZH -

Fair value of share options and BREzAAEBERRER

assumptions
Fair value at measurement date REERHZARE $0.297T $0.297C
Share price I (E $0.857T $0.857T
Exercise price 11fE(E $0.857TC $0.857T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TEHRE 18 (LA [958 —

average volatility used in the modelling SRR AT JEAEE BE

under Black-Scholes Option Pricing I F /9 I S 2908

Model) &) 52.13% 52.13%
Option life (expressed as weighted BT EA(LAT R 17 —

average life used in the modelling under SRR AT JEAEE BELR

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model) A ER A A b 19

HA) 3 yearsF 3 yearstF

Expected dividends TEHARR B 2.28% 2.28%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange #& &\ fg | =

Fund Notes) (RIBINEESFE) 4.30% 4.30%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on public
available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

There were no service conditions or market conditions
associated with the share options granted.

TEHPR B TY IR BRI SLOR iR At B (VAR Aukg
ZINETFHRBFERGFE) - BRARM
BERPERFRE G EBIELR
E-BHRENIREBEREEE - /I
RETEBERRZEHAIHAAE AR
BREATE -

B4t 27 8 PR S 4 W 854 (0 PR e
IR L -
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31 A~ HEE AR
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REID 22 E

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

The Company

Share Share
capital  premium

RA g

$'000 $:000

r T

Balance at 1 January 2011 W-8--E-A-RzE&s 365,246 2,153,349
Changes in equity for 2011: TE--EURERY.

Total comprehensive income for AMESENALE

the year - -
Dividends approved in respect of BHELERRE

the previous year (note 31(o)(i) (P31 (o)) - -
Shares issued under share option BEEREAERTZRG

scheme (note 31(c)fii) (P31 (o)) 2300 6,731
Dividend declared in respect of BERAEERE
the current year (note 31(0)(i) (P31 (o)) - -

AEEREREZ BN FVNREREH
ZHERENGERGEEHR - ARAF
EERBORFNRFRZEDHBER
BT :

Capital
Special redemption  Capital  Retained
reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total
RRIRE B ARER  RERA g
$:000 $000 $:000 $:000
T T T T T

= 70 6,444 714,075 3,239,184

) ; - (2624) (22,624)
_ ; - (54802 (54,802
_ - (1,119 - 7916

i _ - (73509 (73509)

Balance at 31 December 2011 R-B--E+-A=t-Hzis 367,546 2,160,080

= 70 5329 563,140 3,096,165
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 31 B&Z ~ (8 RIS (&)
(a) Movements in components of equity (continued) (a) MRAEEZBH 2 BB (E)
The Company (continued) KQT (&)

Capital
Share Share  Special redemption  Capital  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits

RE  KOEE  KPIER e EREE RERN
$000 ' 00 $'000 $000
T T 7 T T
Balance at 1 January 2012 RIE-ZE-R-Regh 367,546 2,160,080 - 70 5329 563,140 3,096,165
Changes in equity for 2012: E-CEZREED.
Total comprehensive income REE2ANAES
for the year - - - - - 466,015 466,015
Dividends approved in respect BHELERRE
of the previous year (HrzE31(o)i)
(note 31(0)i) - - - - - 01,892 (91,899)
Issue of ordinary shares BTERR (10
(note 31(c)i) 35,000 1,202,100 - - - - 1,237,100
Shares issued under share option R EERE 2% 2R
scheme (note 31(c|fi) (BiEEs1 (i) 1,205 8,418 - - (2029 - 7684
Dividend declared in respect of the  BERAEERS
current year (note 31(0)(i) (Bi&Es1(0)) - - - - - (120,834) (120,834)

Balance at 31 December 2012 RIBE-ZE+ZR=+-RA2&H 403,841 3,370,508 - 70 3,300 816,429 4,594,238
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 31 f&7 - @ MR B (&)

(b) Dividends (b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () [ERNT T AL E]REZ A F/EARE

Company attributable to the year

Interim dividend declared and paid of B =& & Z 2 F H

3.0 cents per ordinary share (2011: i SR AR 3.01L
2.0 cents per ordinary share) (ZZF——%:
BRI REAR2.010) 120,834 73,509
Final dividend proposed after the REEBRRBREZEDIRZ

balance sheet date of 3.0 cents per REARS B BN AL
ordinary share (2011: 2.5 cents per 3.0M( =T ——4%:

ordinary share) BRI REAR2.510) 121,152 91,887
241,986 165,396
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet REEHREZD R Z ARSI
date has not been recognised as a liability at the AEFERERAERAGE -

balance sheet date.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) BR_E—EEEE - RF A
Company attributable to the previous financial JEIL T AR A E 2 FE1T AR E

year, approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the previous B E—EEFE -

financial year, approved and paid WA AL X2 A

during the year, of 2.5 cents per ZAREBAREERER

ordinary share (2011: 1.5 cents per f&2. 5 ( Z T ——4 :

ordinary share) B @A%1.510) 91,892 54,802
In respect of dividends attributable to the year MEBEE—_ZT——F+=—A=+—H
ended 31 December 2011, the difference between IEFEZREME @ BRENZK
the final dividend proposed and the amount ARG BB N R AT 2 RARAR
approved and paid during the year represents the BrHHAER BHEEABR
additional dividends to the ordinary shareholders EREAREGEHERNBLER
upon the exercise of share options before the FERIT B ARARE T Ak 2 E B AR AR

closing date of the register of members. R WEmMERE 2 FEIMNRE o
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

(i)

31 /A - EERKRE(E)
(c) B
() ZEREETRA

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SRMEE.107TZ

$0.10 each T 5,000,000 500,000 | 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, issued LZER ' B&TR

and fully paid: BEAR :
At 1 January n—HA—H 3,675,462 367,546 | 3,652,462 365,246
Issue of ordinary shares 2577 AR 350,000 35,000 - -
Shares issued under BIEBARERT 2

share option scheme 1T 12,950 1,295 23,000 2,300
At 31 December RNt+=—_HA=+—H 4,038,412 403,841 | 3,675,462 367,546

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Issue of ordinary shares

On 7 September 2012, 350,000,000 new ordinary
shares were allotted and issued to Guildford
Limited, the immediate parent of the Company,
at a subscription price of $3.58 per share.
Net proceeds from such issue amounted to
$1,237,100,000 (after offsetting direct expenses
of $15,900,000), out of which $35,000,000 and
$1,202,100,000 were recorded in share capital

and share premium respectively.

=z

EERBAEARREKDTEEIR .2
BB YRARAANE LA BER
ENEBE-—ERER -RARALZ
N EEMmMS - MEEBRZEER
FHER -

=z
=

3

el

(i) F1TEER
RZEBE—Z—FNALEH ' XAAM
HE# & AGuildford Limitedfit 3
K %£177350,000,0000% 3 & EA © R
BEATM3.58T ° BT LK
FT18 708558 41,237,100,0007C(E
85 E B3 $15,900,0007T) © HAF
35,000,0007T % 1,202,100,0007T 2
D RIABRARAS AR A0 5 8 o
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

31 /A - EERKRE(E)
(c) BA& (&

Shares issued under share option scheme (i) RIEBIRIEGTEIZE TR 7

During the year ended 31 December 2012, options
were exercised to subscribe for 12,950,000
ordinary shares (2011: 23,000,000 ordinary
shares) in the Company at a consideration
of $7,684,000 (2011: $7,916,000) of which
$1,295,000 (2011: $2,300,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of $6,389,000 (2011:
$5,616,000) was credited to the share premium
account. $2,029,000 (2011: $1,115,000) has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out
in note 1(s)(ii).

RBE_T——F+-_A=+—8H
IEFE  BREFBEATEER
7 - REE12,950,000 K A A &) i@
B (=—Z——% : 23,000,0000% &}
i) - R{BA7,684,0007T(—ZF——
£ :7,916,0007T) ° H 11,295,000
o (== —— 4 : 2,300,000 7T )
i AR - 8 T 6,389,000 7T
(ZZ——% : 5,616,000 7t ) Al
a0 A Bk 7 & 8 Bk ° 2,029,000 JT
—ZF——% :1,115,00070) B &R
BEEE () (i) TR R 2 R TE - AR
REERERMDEER -

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at the balance sheet date

(iv) RAEE H iR BRI L R 15 KT
Z BRI Z IF

Exercise
price
Exercise period T 1EE
29 September 2004 to ZZTMFENAZTHLAZE
25 May 2013 —Z-=fRA-+%H $0.2967C 4,000,000 10,000,000
3 August 2007 to “TT+F/\A=RZE
25 May 2013 —E-—=FRA-fHH $0.857C 3,900,000 7,700,000
3 August 2008 to —TE\FNR=HZE
25 May 2013 —Z-=f1A-+%H $0.857C 7,400,000 10,550,000
15,300,000 28,250,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of
these options are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

BREBEER TESAATRE —
BARRBEBRZERN - FEBER
RZE—FERBRFHRERME
30 °
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and the capital redemption reserve is governed by
sections 48B and 49H respectively of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(s)(ii).

Special reserve

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced
its intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same
amount of credit arising from such reduction
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses
of the Company. The reduction of share premium
account, approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) on 2 March 2004
and became effective upon registration of the said
order by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on the same date.

31 KA - RERKRE(E)
(d) EEEERBEH

() BR17 5B R E B Ll E
B aERREABLFE AR
DRIZEBCABEED) F48BIE K
FAHIFMRE ©

(i) EXEE
B EE B IR RN A (s) (i) FTE
BREENRAZ G BRBERER
SEFERTAEEEB MW RTT
EEREZARE -

(iii) #%ﬁ//?ﬁ%

N_ZEZTWMFE—HAA - $
mERREEER @ HURAARA
5&7’11;‘3;,5%2,372,172,8247%(EMK’AE?
BHE-_ZT=FNA=1+HZZR:
B18) - WK BB G & ERTEE
ZR—HHEERSCEANKHELAR
RlZ RETER - BIRRD BEERS
BER-_TTWNE-_A-_BET2
BRFNAZ EERERE IR
—EEPNEFE=/ = Ej%é;/aﬁ—r/i'
B (R DIEHES TUARR R
$“ﬂﬁﬁ5ﬁiﬁfﬁﬂaﬂﬁﬁﬂ&€’é
R EMBSEERR -
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction
of share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(1) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of
the Company (the “Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to the
benefit thereof shall not have consented to the
said reduction of share premium account or
agreed otherwise, the Company shall credit to
a special reserve in the books of the Company
(the “Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of
the Company shown in the balance sheet
of the management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2003; or

— any amount received by the Company
as profit by way of distribution from a
corporation which was a subsidiary or an
associated company of the Company at
the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date
or any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary or
an associated company commencing prior
to the Effective Date; and

31 &A - RERRE(E)
(d) REEHEERBNH(E)
(i) 1R ()
BTIREADNGBEREAZ#EZ @ K&
N A EVARE (A EE - REDRIR S
B IRR R — AR R E - B
nR:

(1) MRRAN R B H R0 )4 B AR A R
ER(EMBEH]) (FZARK
NANEERHFKGB) QMDA ERMR
RBEBHRARTHERR - Mk
FEBLAHFR/ARAFERER
ZRIEMERER  BLEER
FRRZZBATELTRE
Bt RIR A i AR =R - AR
RAEVBIE TS HEARNRERR
BZ%hlEE(TEREEDT

— REBOEAHARRREEC
ZE=FNA=+TRHINHE
AEERBTZEERABR
PR RET 18 2 (B 6 A
EEZTH %

— AABR—KRBRWEFE
ERBN DK% B
UNGIE s g =R =P NN [ )
BRaE ki E AR (DR
WAEIMBAR ]k [HEA
All) MEE&BEIIHAB
=N =N P
A8 BB AT AT 9 R 2 & A
XA - skAN QR B A B
AERARBEITIHZHBA
A2 A A IR 1S 2 B
B &
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31 CAPITAL,

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

(2)

the Special Reserve:

— shall not be treated as realised profits of

the Company; and

— shall, for so long as the Company shall
remain a limited company, be treated as
an undistributable reserve of the Company
for the purposes of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China) or any
statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof.

Provided always that:

(1)

the Special Reserve may be applied for the
same purposes as a share premium account
may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an amount
equal to any increase, after the Effective Date,
in the share premium account of the Company
which results from an issue of shares (other
than for the purposes of any redemption or
purchase by the Company of its own shares)
for cash or other consideration or by way of
the capitalisation of distributable profits or
reserves, and the Company shall be at liberty
to transfer the amount so reduced to the
general reserves of the Company and the same
shall become available for distribution;

the amount credited to the Special Reserve in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of
this undertaking shall not at any time exceed
$1,762,999,500 (the “Limit");

31 A - B RRE (&)
(d) REHERBN(E)
(iiy) 55kt ()

(@)

e

(1)

KR

- TRERARARARZEEH
&7 K

- REARADSAERRAR] -
RIFSRFHRAD (R EAR
HMEF AR IR ES
FE=t_2)IEFRERM
H P {E 2 (B R SERT
HERBR/ARE 2 A D
IR o

5 Bl 8 AT A AEE R DA B s (B
R BERE

i Bl R E B 2 BRI AR ERL - 2K
BREEMABEK - FHBETRN
(ARAREEHBERS KN
EBRINBIIR R EMAES
BBEANE A DR B A K T
SIBARAO S ERENZ
Bl o AN A] B AR
ZHERRBZ—REE ME
FAEEAHEDIKZA

RIE AN # G < iR E e ARFR
REzZEBEEARERETE
#B3i81,762,999,5007T ([ A FER
)
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

31 A - FE MBS ()
(d) REBMEERA®(HE)

Provided always that: (continued)

(4) the Limit may be reduced by the amount
of any increase, after the Effective Date, in
the paid-up share capital or share premium
account of the Company which results from
an issue of shares (other than for the purposes
of any redemption or purchase by the
Company of its own shares) for cash or other
consideration or by way of the capitalisation of
distributable profits or reserves;

(5) the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation,
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company
or any of the financial or fixed assets of the
Company by the amount of the provision
made in relation to such subsidiary, associated
company or financial or fixed assets as at 30
September 2003 less such amount (if any) as
credited to the Special Reserve as a result of
such liquidation, disposal or realisation; and

(6) in the event that the amount standing to the
credit of the Special Reserve at any time
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) above,
the Company shall be at liberty to transfer
the amount of any such excess to the general
reserves of the Company and the same shall
become available for distribution.

The Special Reserve of $112,016,000 credited in
2004 was reduced to Nil during the year ended 31
December 2006 due to an increase in the share
premium account of the Company which resulted
from an issue of shares in 2006.

After the Effective Date, shares were issued during
the current year and prior years through placing
and exercise of share options. Pursuant to the
proviso (4) above, the Limit was reduced by the
amount of any increase in the paid-up share capital
or share premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares for cash or other
consideration. At 31 December 2012, the Limit
was reduced to Nil and no further amount will be
credited to the Special Reserve.

(ii)) FFF R (&)
:3ENE

4) EEZBHIE  FABTRO (R
AR B B s B AN & B n & Bk
SM BB & S E MR ERER
BAMEA] 7k & ) 3 R T 5] 2R
AR Z B0 B AR S B 4 (B Bl
Nz Bl BIER B RARER

(6) MEMBERE - FIFHE - HHER
NEM S AERMEAR - B2
RAHA R UL 5 EEE
ER - R-TZE=FALA=+H
SERMEBAT - BE QR R
BREEEEMERE AR
bR HEXERER
FEE 2SR EER SR
B)z8  "IRERSEBR
B R

6) THARE EXE 4R, (5)IEH
A FEREESFEE CERE
HHEBAAE R - ARFREA
SR 2 BEARE 2 — MR
B MEBESBAHRIIRZHA -

REBEEZTEF+-_A=1+—8H
IEFE  RZZETWNFARZER
f#1#5112,016,000BEZ T * JRE
BRRARRZZEZNFEITRGO A
BR (0)5 (E AR IZ AN TR ©

EERBHE  RAFERBESF
B ARARREFELEREE
TTREMETRD - RELEXF@E)
i EBTROBEESIEMA
EBmslHALRRZHRBRASKND
HEREMZ B BIERDBEBR
M- -R_ZE—ZF+_A=+—
H BHEREEHRZET  ALBE
EfRI SRR AR AR -
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Gooadwill arising on consolidation

The goodwill arising on consolidation has been
set up and dealt with in accordance with the
transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3 (August
2004), goodwill which had previously been taken
directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised
in profit or loss on disposal or impairment of
the acquired business, or under any other
circumstances.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(x).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in notes 1(g) and (I).

31 &

B RRE ()

(d) #EEERENE)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

HERBEELZHE
ARBERBCEEH B REEL)
FIR(ZFEZTWENR) 2 BEK
XRIMBEEGERBMELEZRE
BBl ERMREEBROEN
HIRFERE - HETAEMER
T BEEEFAREZEHE (AR
—EE-F-HA-HZAELZEA
BT TS EBRRTER -

& 5 1
EXHEERREIINERE W’
BRAEEZHBELEZRE - AR

A RBM () PTE & AT BUR R 12
& -

DA EE

Afifﬁfuﬁﬁ BENEEBREZAF
EEFANBEZRFESHFELE
*ETE%M#E? 1(9) B () P 8 & 5T UK R
B o
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 31 B&A ~ @& MK B (&)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) EEEERBEWNE)

(vii) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned enterprises
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow
the accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”),
in the preparation of its accounting records and
financial statements. Pursuant to the accounting
regulations for business enterprises (1% &5t
E 8= (2000)25%]), the subsidiaries are required
to appropriate 10% of the profit arrived at in
accordance with PRC GAAP — WFOE for each year
to a statutory reserve. The profit arrived at must
be used initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of dividends
to equity owners. The appropriation is required
until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. This statutory reserve is not
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but
may be used to set off losses or be converted into
paid-in capital.

(vij) #E %

EERE - 2INERE

AEBURPRZHEBRR(ZINE
TE)VRKEBEERANREINELEZRRH
e RARBEBHBER((HEA
REFTRA -—2HNERE]) RER
SRR BRE - BREBE(LE
2o #IE [BF = (2000)255%]) © M E
REIEBEBRB[PRARE:
RAI—2NERE IFTEMRBZAT
HAP10% | BEETRHE - B L
AE LA NEE T RETEE - It
Hh - RBEEEBAF(EMREIWR
STERR) BATE REER T 7 R ARE
BEEADRRE - HBARIA—&H
SIRBNELETERHE  EEEER
BEEFMEAR0N B ° AT
EETSUBREREFEXNDIK -
AAREEEERER BT

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) REEDIRIER

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, was $816,429,000 (2011:
$563,140,000). After the balance sheet date the
directors proposed a final dividend of 3.0 cents per
ordinary share (2011: 2.5 cents per ordinary share),
amounting to $121,152,000 (2011: $91,887,000) (note
31(b)). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

RN—ZZETE——F+_-_A=+—H " #&
BEBCRAGH) BE79BKTE -
ALK TFTARAABRRE ZHEMERRE
%% 816,429,000 ;¢ ( = & — — -
563,140,000 ) - R&EEBHZ - =
EERBERBERE SR YT ERI.0N
—E——&F: gRETBERKR251) -
& #£121,152,000t (= F — — F -
91,887,000 T ) (M sE31(b)) - R&EH
A HWERSLERERRAE -
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations
of the board of directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, new shares issues
or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2012 was 48% (2011: 52%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

31 BA - R RERE(E)
() BXEE

AEEEREAZTERANRERTE
BOEEFERBRNEARLE - AX
REBEE > ARRREREANER -

AEBETEEARBENRE  TEHE
JELEMRRA 2 EBHERNEBELR
B o AREBE TR EARZRE - W
NERERNKARAERR - BREES
eZEE ASESBEEANTN TR
RZBREHE  BITHROKEETH
BEEME O TEHERENER - KX
Hez—Z2——F#r=-_FT——F+=A
=t+t—HIEREFERN  BBEEEZE K
KRR FHERFTE -

AEEFRBL2BEBEBRRERENS
W REBMZERRE  RRF/EZEARE
MEETE BRETHEEESS
NEH RZE——F+ZA=+—
H AEBEC2EEAGELEX(BAAEE
ZIBAEBERUNBEEMSZH) B48%
(ZF——F :52%) °

BTHMBRRMIMEZRITHE
BRNEETERAKEM B R 225H
CIRINNCTDS R e )= INCTE SRS
FE N2 B AT PTRR B
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Debts are usually due within 30 days from the
date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of toll bridge revenue and revenue from environmental
energy, environmental water and alternative energy
project operation services which are settled on a
monthly basis. In addition, the Group has gross
amounts due from customers for contract work and
other receivables in respect of the BT, BOT and TOT
arrangements.

At the balance sheet date, debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work of the Group
amounted to $3,760,625,000 (2011: $3,197,329,000)
and $7,533,350,000 (2011: $6,516,224,000)
respectively, of which $2,359,708,000 (2011:
$1,418,213,000) and $4,309,205,000 (2011:
$4,300,712,000) were due from the largest customer
and five largest customers in aggregate of the Group.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. Since the parties to BT, BOT and TOT
arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low.

32 BHRAREERAAE

AEBEEREEBBEPAREZZRENE
% BREERR RBHESEAR - FXME
B MOMNERRR o b4 AREREMERE
H2 BRARE RS REEAIRAERRR

AEBASZ Bl ERFBARAEER
EE AR sEREEBRETR
£l

(a) FERE
ERERETRENEERK  XHE
ERKEMEHZEERR - BRAER
HEEAHES=1THRIH -

AERE 2 ERERIER BREBRIKE
RIRBERRER - BIRKERFERE
BrEERB K2 EBUKGRTE - BEX
BZAWE - it XREBETE B H
BT - BOTRTOTZH v EWEF & 4T
TRRIBAERE I H A R UL IR o

REER XEBZ [ ERER -
HiERAE - e REBEMKRHE
RITEREFEHNIREREBELE] D
A A 3,760,625,000 7% ( — & — — 4
3,197,329,000 7t ) & 7,533,350,000
T(=F——4%F : 6,516,224,0007C ) °
H /12,359,708,000 T ( =& — — 4 ¢
1,418,213,000 7T ) % 4,309,205,000 7T
—ZT——4F : 4,300,712,0007T) 7 Bl &
AEBEABEFRAARAREFEK
FeoEERRzZESEEREERER
PERESEMNGEECEEEBEZRY - AR
BT - BOTRTOTZHE T 25147 A+ E
EHHRERE  SAEERREERR
B -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continueq)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company to its subsidiaries, the Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of the financial guarantees at
the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 36.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from “Debtors,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments” as well
as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” are set out in notes 19 and 20 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

32 MBERER R AAEGE)

(a)

(b)

FERRE)

BT ARRRBETHERRIEL 2/
ERN AEELERETAESAE
B ARBAZEERRZER - N
BB ARERUEVBERMARZ
EERBR R ESHNHIES6

ANEE AR - EtERIE - =&
REMFIEIR [EREFELHTIERIE
RE IS EERR 2E—SEBREE -
2RISR EE195%20 o

REBE SRR
AEEETNBYLEEREABTRAR
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fEEBHBEEESRE AR RQF
EXeZHETAEE - AEBEZHK
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity ri

The Group

sk (continued)

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

32 BIBERERERAABEGE

(b) RBEE R (E)

rEE

Totdl Morethan ~ More than Totdl Morethan  More than
contractual Within 1year 2 years contractual Within 1year 2 years
undscounted ~ Tyearor  butwithin -+ but within Tyearor  butwithin-— butwithin
Carying ~ cashfiow o demand Morgthan ~ Camying on demand S More than
amount AE] Syears  amount 5 years
REk EEf it
$000 §000
1 o
Bank loans FhER 6,004351 6,952,159 1947353 1201494 2747732 965580 | 5093009 6221632  1,966451 1045030 2467238 1343813
Other loans HER - - - - - - | B30 1M 392 32 70T 82666
Lonfromutimate ~~ BRARATER
holding company - - - - - - 1202 12202 - 1202 - -
Crecitors, other A Lf
payables and ERFER
accruedexpenses B3R 1,190,736 1,190,736 1,190,736 - - - | 1423306 1423306 1423305 - - -
7195087 8142895 3,138,089 1201494 2747732 965580 | 6093686 70869035 2792658 1170954 2478945 1426478
The Company ¥ NN

Total Morgthan  More than Total Morethan  More than
contractual Wihin 1 year AT contractual Within 1 year 2years
undscounied ~~ 1yearor  butwithin  but within wiscowted  Tyearor  butwitin - butwithin
Carrying ~ cash flow 2 years Syears  Camying  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years
amount —ERE  BERE  amout ]
L] WEh  DEA REE
$000 $000 $000 $000
i r r n
Bank loans FAEH 990850  1,084353 373835 196922 523506 | 187500 192218 92,463 28743 71,012
Other payables and EHERTER
accrued expenses EiER 0004 004 2001 - - | 1987 19,871 19871 - =
1010874 1074377 303859 156,922 523596 | 207371 212080 112,33 2,743 71,012
Financial quarantees issued: B ZBER
Maximum amount guaranteed RRERSE
(note 36) (H:x36) - 2179485 2179485 - - - 2046061 2,046,061 - =
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 WKREREERALEE)
VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) R=ER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the AEEERH MERRE  FEFBTEE
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, ZBERREFRBY - RITFR - RIT
bank loans and other loans. Borrowings issued at BEHREMER - ZFEFI R K EEF
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to EWHZERSAEB D RIAFTE SR
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate EMEREREARBENERRE - NEE
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial WEMNBSMITET ARG FFER
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. R o AEBH X RBEREER -
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by FEEUP T ()
management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEBL
The following table details the interest rate profile TR AEBRARAINEEH
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings ZEEFE (BB ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ
(being interest-bearing financial liabilities less loan WEH RITERXEReRRE
receivable, bank deposits and cash and cash BY)) 2 FEBER,

equivalents) at the balance sheet date.

The Group AEHE

2012
—E--F

Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate

UL A%

Fixed rate deposits/receivable: EE%7Z/BUWEE

Loan receivable EWER 1% (49,744) - -
Deposits with bank RITER 0.38% - 4.25% (943,352) - -
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEZEY 0.38% - 2.85% (337,283) | 0.95% - 6.3% (327,426)

(1,330,379) (327,426)

Net variable rate borrowings:  FEEEEE

Bank loans FITER 0.99% - 7.40% 6,004,351 | 1.23% - 7.40% 5,093,009
Other loans HHER - - 7.05% 55,350
Less: Pledged bank deposits —~ Jii : BEMBITER 0.39% - 1.27% (46,289) | 0.5%-1.31% (215,670)

Cash and cash BERBLSEY
equivalents 001%-1.27% (1,469,585 | 0.01%-0.50% (1,356,873
4,488,477 3,575,816

Total net borrowings BREETE 3,158,098 3,248,390
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

The Company

HESLABIRBERAR « —T——FFH

32 BIBERERE R AAEE)

(c) FIRRE (&)
() FIEBR(E)

ZNNS|

2012

—F_—

Effective
interest rate

<

2011
2
Effective
interest rate

T

Fixed rate deposits: EEER:
Deposits with bank BIRH 1.54% - 2.04% (680,000) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEN 0.50% - 1.50% (223,322) - -
(003,322) -
Net variable rate borrowings/ ~ HEHEE/
(deposits): (FRFE:

Bank loans BEH 0.99% - 2.89% 990,850 1.23% - 1.38% 187,500
Less: Cash and cash equivelents 51 B2 RBESEY 0.01% - 1.27% (129420) | 0.01%-050% (252,069)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, a0 | (6406
Total net deposits BHHEE (41,892) (64,563)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of one percent
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit before taxation by approximately
$31,581,000 (2011: $32,484,000).

(i) SRS

R—E——F+=-A=+—H ' &
RNEB GG - MFREE LR T
A—EELE MAEEMTER
ERBFIE  NEBZRBATRF
# & 4 1% hn 431,581,000 7T

(Z=T——4% : 32,484,0007T) °
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on the
Group’s profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) Currency risk

Forecast transactions

Majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. Presently, there is no hedging policy
with respect of the foreign exchange exposure. The
Group’s transactional currencies are Chinese Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars as substantially all the turnover
are within Hong Kong and other parts in the PRC. With
the natural hedging of the revenue and costs being
denominated in Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, the Group’s transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.

With respect to borrowings and creditors denominated
in United States dollars (USD), the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations is insignificant as Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to USD.

32 MBERER R AAEGE)

(c) FIZ=mEp(E)

(i) SRS (&)
FBERESTREREREER 2GR
RIERN TR EL 2 N & F) - GUK
EAOMBRANEZHRNEEAER
BAE - WEARENGFEARAEEM
FRAYNGEEAEASBEREAA
ENZXERZEBTA - HRAX
SERNGEERRTAEZFENERIE
?ﬁiiﬂﬁﬁﬁfziﬁimbﬂrﬂ

CHEAEBERBAAN 2 ZE
E%mﬂf“@ﬁFiZﬂgﬁﬁ
FWAEGE - ZF——F 20
THIRIBARRI B ST o

(d) SMER

FEET X5
AEERBNRZEAEEER 28
E¥iE- B ARELEFBIME
BB ZHHAER  AEEZXZE%R
AREREE RESELRLMBER
BMORBEBRTEEAMIMTT - &R
ARBRAANRE R EEEE - MEE
EERENER  WAKEEX S LA
A 2 SNE R B E D
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(e) Equity price risk

32 BIBERERE R AAEE)

(e) RAEE R

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
equity securities (see note 18). The Group’s listed
investments are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. The management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments against
expectation, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% (2011: 5%) in that relevant stock
market index (for listed investments) or the price/
earning ratios of comparable listed companies (for
ungquoted investments) as applicable, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

AEEAZRARE (FRE/FER
KBS FRME18) ZRAEREE
R o REBEZ EHREHPEFTEHR
Pk LBBHFXBA LD - AEEZFE
EHREAR/ERMURBEENMETAE - &
BEETHERSRAREZERERHR
B YHEEBERERERGAKEZ
REIREEETE -

R-EBE——F+-_A=+—8 A&
EfbEt - AR ERCGERR LK
B)SAIHEREMARCTAXCGER
RIEEMRE) (RAEEA) LA/ TH
5%(=ZF——%F :5%) * MATAHMT
EERREFIE  AEEB L GEERZ
H At ZR 0 i &G /T

The Group AEE
2012 2011
—E—_—fF —E——F
Effect on other Effect on other
components components
of equity of equity
HiER R
H A #3102 HAh & D2
2 2
$000 $’'000
T T
Change in the relevant #8B3 i% Z< & &k T
equity price risk EEREZBL :
variable:
Increase EF 5% 7,540 5% 7,072
Decrease Tk 5% (7,540) 5% (7,072)
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(e) Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index or other relevant
risk variables had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock market index or other relevant risk
variables, and that all other variables remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

(f) Fair values
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following tables present the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of
each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are

defined as follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable

market data

32 MBERER R AAEGE)

(e) RA&ERER(E)

U]

FRFREDTELAEE Z&RE S
ZHMED TR EE 2 BN # F) o BUK
EoE&REmESSEMERERR T
EREZEPNEEADREL I B
AREFTEASEMPBAELANEER
FEASERGRAERRARZ /T
B o MRERASERAREZ R
fo (B & AR 1% S AE B A 5 Bk AR R L B2
TEREZEFENELARENES
e AEEZFERETERARAH
P Th fE sk E A AR B Rl B T E R Z= N R
MmigRSE HIREE - URABEMT
EARGHIE - —T——F 2o
RIFARZEEELT

DRE

() ARAESEZ /M TA
TREVNEAEAR(EEY B RS
BRDETR (2@ LA - KEFEIRE
EZAREBE=EZHP  AARE
SRz EMTAZREME  M&E
MIAZARBEUHEZARERNE
BEAZ&ERE B ABIRMNER
DR FTREZSHFHBWT ¢

- E-R(RFER)  MNAEE
BhmETEReRITAZRE

(REHAB)HEAAE

— B4 MREEEMST AU
TRTAZKRE IMBEEH
ABBYERSREERABE
MR BERN - FEAA
(=]

- F=ZR(ZEFR) : MBEM
ERHABBALFERNATEED
SR HERNAEARE
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MKRERERERANEE)
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values (continued) ) 2REE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) () URAEZFRZ 2/ TAE)

The Group The Company
AEE VN

Level 1  Level2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level 3
EF—H FZH F=H B E—H FZH  F=R
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T

Assets BE
Available-for-  FER&
sale equity B
securities:
- Listed -t 192,793 - - 192,793 - - - -
- Unlisted —JLmm - 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,899
192,793 3,899 - 196,692 - 3,899 - 3,899

The Group The Company
AEE VN

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level 3
F—H F-HR F=H By -8R FIH F=R
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr T T T T T T

Assets BE
Available-for-  FERA
sale equity B
securities:
- Listed — kMW 180,385 - - 180,385 - = - —
— Unlisted —3FEm = 3,899 = 3,899 = 3,899 = 3,899
180,385 3,899 - 184,284 - 3,899 - 3,899
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and REBEE_ZTE—Z—FRZF——F
2011, there were no significant transfers between TZA=T—BILEFEA - F—&
instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. RE_fzemTAEZHANESK

B o
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued)

(i)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, bank deposits, current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short
term maturity of these financial instruments. The
carrying amounts of non-current portion of other
receivables and deposits, gross amounts due
from customers for contract work, bank loans,
other loans and interest-bearing loan from ultimate
holding company approximate their fair values.

As set out in notes 16 and 28, the Company had
amounts due from/to subsidiaries and non-interest
bearing loan from ultimate holding company which
are interest-free, it is not considered practicable
to estimate the fair values of the amounts because
the cost of obtaining discount and borrowing rates
for comparable borrowings would be excessive.

(g) Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i)

(i)

(i)

Listed securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Unlisted securities

The Group’s investment in unlisted securities
represents investment in a property investment
company, with its investment properties (being
significant part of the total assets) stated at fair
value. Fair value of the Group’s investment in
unlisted securities is based on net asset value of
the investee which is approximate the fair value.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

32 MBERER R AAEGE)

f) 2AREE)

(i)

IR B EZ B TR AR E

BeEMREFEY  BURERENR - R
Tl - REKIA - He kB
MRE D - A RE MK
R HMENRBAREFEREFRA
BZAAERNEZREELES
RER RARLETSRTAYE
BNEF s B HA A B H o EL i IR
BAREe 2 ARG - BRERP
BHTRERERLRE  RITEK H
EREZFEERABRZFEER
ZARERREFZEEERS -

BN E16 X 28FTE - A ARIAH
FEUL, FE I BB A R) 3B I Az 4R 4%
BRABTHEER(HARE) - A
RERS 2B LUE B &9 B3R R K & 3k 7
EWRABE  WARRARBETE
HEtBEERBEZ ARE -

(9) ARfEMET
TXHAEGBF NI SR TAERAARER
FifERZEBTNEARMBR -

(i

(i)

(i)

B
RABRREER 2 5% E S
H R AR PR o

FELTAES
AEEZELTEFREENR K
MERERBIZWE  HREWME
(EREENERIBN)RAAET
R AKEBFELMEFREZIAR
ERERRERRCEEFE(HERA
RERE)FTE -

FEEAREER
AREBEARBREEREZRE K
BUSRT AT ZRAMSHNER
REIR(ES -
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 B A T2 EAR 5

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRTHETERREMITOMBERE RS K

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered EERIN - AEE T R A TET THEKR

into the following material related party transactions. R °

(a) The Group entered into the following related party (a) AEEBE—R@EALTRITFIZT N5
transactions with a related party bank: BABMALRS

Dividend income from listed securities ETFESRBUA 7,911 5,514
Interest expense FEZH 11,350 11,775
(b) The Group entered into the following related party (b) NEEE—KEENTIFISL T K5I EE
transactions with an associate: ATRS :

Service expense for operation of ERELSKEERZ
waste-water treatment plants AR 75 % (M33E33(f)
(note 33(f)) 53,303 44,783
(c) The Group entered into the following related party (c) AEEHEEIEEAMEFT L T T 5 Fa8
transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of the ATRS :
Group:

Revenue from environmental water RIRIKFEIEB
project operation services EE RSN RS 70,343 72,103
Finance income B U A 27,800 27,902
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BEHEBA T 2EAR 5 (&)

(continued)

(d) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related company and subsidiaries
of non-controlling shareholders of the Group:

(d AEEREEEE AR REFEBERRZ

MIBARFILT THMBMALRS

Revenue from environmental water project IR{R/K75IE B &

ZIRP

operation services

Yoz

Revenue from environmental water project IB{R/KF&IE B 21 R1%

construction services
Finance income
Technical service expense

Y gs
BT A
BT ART &

33,566

20,888
52,837
1,326

29,124

23,561
75,204
1,331

(e) The Group paid key management personnel compensation

as follows:

Ban T

e AEEEXNTEIEEEABZEAR

Salaries and other short-term employee

e hEMERESREN

benefits 53,259 45,156
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETE|E 1,210 1,014
54,469 46,170

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see
note 5(b)).

() During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group entered into certain continuing connected
transactions. The Company’s independent
non-executive directors have reviewed these
transactions. Details of which are disclosed under the
paragraph “Continuing connected transactions” in the
report of the directors.

()

Me@BAATEIXNA AR ME
5(b)) e

RBE-_T-——_F+-_A=1t—HLLF
ERIVN: S uT_LT%:H—iriEE% X5 e
ARABZBIFFATEFTCEMARR
5 AARGHBEESTERST [HE
MBS | —f NRE -
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34 COMMITMENTS
(@) At 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the Group’s
construction contracts not provided for in the financial
statements of $470,034,000 (2011: $571,939,000).

(b) At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

34 HFE
() RZEBE——F+-_A=+—8 " ¥ARE
BRI BEEEANEERESOZ
BB A & B 470,034,000 (=& — —
4 1 571,939,0007T) °

b) RAZE—=—F+=-—A=+—H8 ' BET
AR EHETEHRENNRER
ERF@I|OT ¢

The Group
REHE

2012 2011
—E-CF ZE——F
$'000 $°000
Tz T+
Within 1 year —F R 777 704
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 82 =
859 704

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of these leases
includes contingent rentals.

35 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 25. The
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests in
subsidiaries pledged amounted to $7,684,579,000 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: $4,911,369,000).

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued
financial guarantees to seven wholly-owned subsidiaries
and a non-wholly owned subsidiary. The directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under
the guarantees issued is the facility drawn down by the
subsidiaries of $2,179,485,000 (2011: $2,046,061,000).

AEERBELKEHEHRZEYE -5
AEE—ROP /Y —Z0%F  AXT
BRE%BEHEE -

35 EEEH
EEFEEFBEHNKEF2S R —=
F+=ZA=+—H EEHREERHNBA
AR HE 2 BR S {E #8573 7,684,579,0007T
(ZZ——% : 4,911,369,0007T) °

36 HBEAEE

SR HBBER

HELER  ARAAERZEMBATK
—XI2EMBRARMEL M BER - EFR
B BRAEREE ATKAERE ElER
MARNFMELEERZR - REER - XAFEL
MPBERT2ERBEAEBANBARE
RER 2 @& 2,179,485,0007C (— T ——4F :
2,046,061,0007T) °
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 36
Financial guarantees issued (continued)
Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the
directors considered it is not practicable to estimate the
fair values of the financial guarantees and therefore they
have not been recognised in the Company’s financial
statements.

37 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 37

PARTY

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Guildford Limited and China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited, which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong respectively. Neither

of them produces financial statements available for public

use.

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 38
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

XBREE)

B % MBI R ()

MR BB A TS  REERAT R
BRMBERZAAE  REBRAARZ
BB ME T HREMER -

BEREEEERAL

RZE-—ZF+_A=+—8H EBEFRE
AEB v EESRARIRGERERA LS 5
#Guildford Limited R B X AEEBRA
A BESHIRNEBHEBRES REBTM
BXA o REHEFERAEARATEA 28
K o

EAMERBE_ZT——F+=A4
S t+t—HEFERRERZEET -
EARRE O E

Rt EMBRETIZAE  BESHMAE
ERAMEZEETRABEHEN - ZEETK
MEARBEE-_T—=—F+=-A=+—8B1t
FEMARER  HEVMBRENERAZS
7T RFTER - AIRERAKBARBMISET &
AR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
BIATH#k &
Fita 2 gt AR

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of (CEBSE)FE1H 2B — 1 July 2012
financial statements — Presentation of items [ #fx 2 25— A2 EH —E——F+H—H
of other comprehensive income WasIB Bz 22

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements {Z&&R 7SR E28]) F 1058 — 1 January 2013

[ARE B E#HZE —F—=F—H—H

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (BT BRMEERD)FE 115 — 1 January 2013

=3 3

—F—=%—A—H
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, BEAMERBE_T—_F+_A

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(continued)

=+ —BLEFERRERZIER
TR LR AIRE & (&

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
BIATH#R &
Fita 2 &t i A

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other (& BB M E LR ) F125% — 1 January 2013
entities [REMEFEZ a2 175 —ET—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement (BB BRELRER)E135% — 1 January 2013
[AnEEE ) —F—=F—H—H

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (ERGTEAD)FE27H — 1 January 2013
(2011) [ BT FE#HEX | —E——F) —E2—=F—H—H

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint {EFB&=t#8I)F285% — 1 January 2013
ventures [BENGIRAEETLEZRE —2—=%—H—H

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits BKIERIKE B G ER)E 1958 — 1 January 2013

[ES 57/ —F—=F—H—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 —ZEZE/F 7 —F——FHjfE] 1 January 2013
Cycle BB FEIREER 2 FEIE —E—=F—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial (BAEVBMEERDFE7THR & 1 January 2013
instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting R[22/ T A #E—HH —E—=%—H—H
financial assets and financial liabilities B EEHEE &

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial (EBEFTER)FEI25 218 1 January 2014
instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Sl—[2mIT A 25— #Hy —E—NFE—H—H
financial assets and financial liabilities BB A ESEEE]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (BAVBREER)FEH — 1 January 2015

(=& T A/ —FE—RHF—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application but is
not yet in a position to state whether these amendments
and new standards would have a significant impact on
the Group’s or the Company’s results of operations and
financial position.

AREBR EFERFERT LA EAE S [EE
RMBEREEL 2T E EBAIREEESR
RET R EN L EARERANAR 2%
EERENMBANBRERNEAZE -
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At 31 December

®»+-B=1+—H
2010
—T-TF
$'000
T
Assets and liabilities BERER
Fixed assets BETEE8E 1,471,047 887,597 413,877 168,011 164,573
Intangible assets B EE 613,564 1,069,730 638,728 553,828 577,754
Goodwill S 20,793 46,133 46,133 46,133 46,133
Interest in associate BN ERER - - = 588 =
Other financial assets HB%EE 196,692 184,284 244,949 21,385 22,336
Other receivables Hipfelizog
and deposits Kike 2,603,369 2,181,165 2,399,734 1,736,218 1,386,280
Gross amounts due from BREFAHTRE
customers for contract work REEH 6,889,550 5,963,047 4,629,124 3,174,793 2,686,012
Finance lease receivables MERERENZE 21,384 21,608 - - -
Deferred tax assets EERELE 27,508 12,836 14,080 22,622 26,538
Net current assets e R E R 1,854,906 973,731 868,932 1,755,970 364,815
13,698,813 11,340,131 9,255,557 7,479,448 5,274,441
Non-current liabilities EREEE (5,028,404) | (4,678567)  (3,506,908)  (2,549,682)  (2,143,400)
NET ASSETS BERE 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649 4,929,766 3,131,041
Share capital [y&N 403,841 367,546 365,246 363,932 314,378
Reserves i 7,945,918 5,822,478 4,972,806 4,208,900 2,505,237
Total equity attributable to equity 7872 7] B& 5 fE{
shareholders of the Company BEmBsE 8,349,759 6,190,024 5,338,052 4,572,832 2,819,615
Non-controlling interests El3 g 320,650 471,540 410,597 356,934 311,426
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649 4,929,766 3,131,041




Five Year Summary
ﬂ él::‘ % »E *Ej.:; g (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #EtE )

B RE

BRAERDR « —T—

For the year ended 31 December
HE+T-A=t—HLEE

—EFFR 259

2011 2010 2009 2008
—F—— —E-FF ZETNF —TTNF
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Restated RENEIED RENEIED) RENEIED)
(ER) (E%) (E3) (=3%)
Results %
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover St 3,409,938 3,486,697 2,781,438 1,652,259 1,754,920
Profit from operations R BT 1,483,202 1,260,280 922,298 595,685 534,525
Finance costs HBEHR (312,640 (240,778) (167,322) (155,099) (131,072)
Share of (loss)/profit of ik =N
associates (B18)/ &7 - - (688) 588 -
Profit before taxation KA B 1,170,562 1,019,502 754,388 441174 403,453
Income tax FiEH (266,554) (254,713) (165,010) (82,591) (84,263)
Profit from continuing operations  #&& & %75 2 7l 904,008 764,789 589,378 358,583 319,190
Discontinued operation RILREER
Profit from discontinued operation #2|F4%%& %% 7 & F|
(net of tax) (BHire) 250,096 80,475 63,787 49,894 46,201
Profit for the year AEEEF 1,154,104 845,264 653,165 408,477 365,391
Attributable to: E(GER
Equity shareholders of the NG
Company 1,123,269 801,441 616,433 371,898 339,018
Non-controlling interests iR 30,835 43,823 36,732 36,579 26,373
Profit for the year AEEEF 1,154,104 845,264 653,165 408,477 365,391
Basic earnings per share BREARRT 29.65 centsfll | 21.86 centsfll  16.92 centsfll  11.39 centsfll  10.80 centsll

The consolidated operation results of Greenway and its
subsidiaries, which was disposed of by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012, are presented as discontinued
operation in the financial statements. Figures for the years
ended 31 December 2008 to 2011 have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentations.

EFEBRERA - Greenway R EH B A TZNT:'
BEEFEZINARIEREEZB(REEREBE
T+ HA=1— ElJtEfH:l%Greenway

SEi] PN

A) - BE

—EENFEC

T——F

T-A=t—HLEFEZRFEEHRIE - UK
BARFEZZ5TR -
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Major Properties held by the Group
AGEM PR Z REWE

Location

Ho b

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

BEBERE T/ %

BB AL

Tt tEE R =R EENE

25th Floor to 28th Floor

Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza
No. 1003 Shennan Avenue
Futian District, Shenzhen
FlmEEE

R A 100358

R R EISARE25E =28

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC
TEAERERSLNEE
T—B=RMET

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

R ERE R EE =
BE-—RN\+/\BFRLEBRE

—=2-E-=FNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education

Science & Technology Building
Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

BB B R A R

BHE T
HERMBEAE_THME

Block JO7, Zhongguancun Science Park
No. 156 Wenquan Town

Haidian District

Beijing, the PRC

PR TR

R B — 7SR

R IR R EHR EJO7 5%

Existing use
W RE

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[CES

Residential
F=

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GE

Commercial

[GE

Term of lease

HEFH

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Percentage
of interest

Frib#Ezm A oL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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